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You should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all of the other information set forth in this report. Based on
the information currently known to us, we believe that the following information identifies the most significant risk factors
affecting our Company. However, the risks and uncertainties we face are not limited to those set forth in the risk factors
described below. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to not presently create
significant risk to us may also adversely affect our business. In addition, past financial performance may not be a reliable
indicator of future performance and historical trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in future periods. If any of
the following risks and / or uncertainties develop into actual events, these events could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations. In such case, the trading price of our common stock could decline. Risks
Relating to Our Industry The lodging industry is highly competitive, and we are subject to risks related to competition that may
adversely affect our performance and growth. Our continued success depends upon our ability to compete effectively in markets
that contain numerous competitors, some of whom may have significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than
we have. We compete with other hotel franchisors for franchisees and we may not be able to grow our franchise system. New
hotels may be constructed and these additions to supply create new competitors, in some cases without corresponding increases
in demand for lodging. Competition may reduce fee structures, potentially causing us to lower our fees and / or offer other
incentives, and may require us to offer terms to prospective franchisees less favorable to us than current franchise agreements,
which may adversely impact our profits. Our franchisees also compete with alternative lodging channels, including third- party
providers of short- term rental properties and serviced apartments. Increasing use of these alternative lodging channels could
adversely affect the occupancy and / or average rates at franchised hotels and our revenues. The use of business models by
competltorq that are different from ours may requlre us to change our model so that we can remaln Competmve 5Fhe—€9¥l—]9——1—9

the travel and hotel mdumle% may adversely affect us. We face rmk% affectlng the travel and hotel mdumle% that 1nclude but are
not limited to: economic slowdown and potential recessionary pressures; economic factors such as inflation, rising interest rates,
employment layoffs, increased costs of living and reduced discretionary income, which may adversely impact decisions by
consumers and businesses to use travel accommodations; domestic unrest, terrorist incidents and threats and associated
heightened travel security measures; political instability or political and regional strife, including the ongoing conflict between
Russia and Ukraine; acts of God such as earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, floods, volcanoes and other natural disasters; war ,
including the Israel- Hamas war ; concerns with or threats of known and novel contagious diseases or health epidemics or
pandemics ;sueh-as-COVID-—9-; environmental disasters; lengthy power outages; cyber threats, increased pricing, financial
instability and capacity constraints of air carriers; airline job actions and strikes. Increases in the frequency and severity of
extreme weather events and other consequences of climate change (including any related regulation) could impact travel
demand generally, lead to supply chain interruptions, cause damage to physical assets or adversely impact the accessibility or
desirability of travel to certain locations. For example, certain of our franchisees’ properties are located in coastal areas that
could be threatened should sea levels dramatically rise , or are located in areas where the risk of natural or climate- related
disaster or other catastrophic losses exists, and the occurrence of such an event could cause substantial damage to our
franchisees and / or the surrounding area . Because a significant portion of our revenues is derived from fees based on room
revenues, disruptions at our franchised properties due to elimate-ehange-such occurrences may adversely impact the fees we
collect from these properties. In the event of a substantial loss, the insurance coverage carried by our franchisees may not
be sufficient to pay the full value of financial obligations, liabilities or the replacement cost of any lost investment or
property held by our franchisees. Additionally, certain types of losses may be uninsurable or prohibitively expensive to
insure, and other types of losses or risks that our franchisees may face could fall outside of the general coverage terms
and limits of our policies. Such factors could lead to certain losses by our franchisees being completely uninsured in
which case we could lose future franchisee fees and may be exposed to a potential impairment of any development
advance notes funded to the franchisee should the underlying guarantees provided to us prove to be insufficient. Any
deeline-declines in or disruptions to the travel or hotel industries may adversely affect travel demand and the results of our
operations, and those of our current franchised hotels and potential franchisees and developers. Any of these factors could
increase our costs, reduce our revenues and otherwise adversely impact our profitability and / or opportunities for growth. The
ongoing eenfhet-conflicts between Russia and Ukraine has-and Israel and Hamas, respectively, have and may continue to
negatively impact macro- economic conditions, which may adversely affect discretionary consumer spending and, as a result,



our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Russia’ s invasion of Ukraine has-and the Israel- Hamas
war have negatively affected the global economy. Financial and economic sanctions imposed on certain industry sectors and
parties in Russia by the U. S., United Kingdom and European Union, as well as petenttatretaliatory actions by Russia, could
alse-have a negative impact on the global economy. The current eenfhet-conflicts between Russia and Ukraine has-and Israel
and Hamas, respectively, have not materially affected our overall operations and our operations in both eeuntries-regions arc
immaterial. However, the-these eenfliet-conflicts has-have negatively impacted global macro- economic conditions and &
prolonged eenfhet-conflicts , the potential expansion of the eenfliet-conflicts into other European and Middle Eastern
countries, or the direct involvement of the U. S. or other countries where we source our guests could have more significant
impacts on macro- economic conditions, which could adversely affect discretionary consumer spending and, consequently, our
operations. Additional risks to our business relating to the Russia and Ukraine and Israel and Hamas eenfliet-conflicts include
potential interruptions in global supply chains and the availability of items essential to our operations, the heightened possibility
of cyberattacks and terrorist activity, volatility or disruption in financial markets and the potential for travel restrictions affecting
our guests’ ability to access our franchisees’ hotel locations. Third- party internet travel intermediaries and peer- to- peer online
networks may adversely affect us. Consumers use third- party internet travel intermediaries, including search engines, and peer-
to- peer online networks to search for and book their lodging accommodations. As the percentage of internet reservations
increases, travel intermediaries may be able to obtain higher commissions and reduced room rates to the detriment of our
business. Additionally, such travel intermediaries may divert reservations away from our direct online channels or increase the
overall cost of internet reservations for our affiliated hotels through their fees and a variety of online marketing methods,
including the purchase by certain travel intermediaries of keywords consisting of or containing our hotel brands from Internet
search engines to influence search results and direct guests to their websites. If we fail to reach satisfactory agreements with
travel intermediaries, our affiliated hotels may not appear on their websites and we could lose business as a result. Further, travel
intermediaries may seek to offer distribution services under their own brands directly to lodging accommodations in competition
with our core franchise business . Pandemics and other health crises could affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. The emergence, severity, magnitude and duration of global or regional health crises are uncertain
and difficult to predict. A pandemic, such as another wave of COVID- 19 which in the past had an adverse impact on our
business, could again affect certain business operations, consumer demand in the hospitality industry, costs of doing
business, availability of labor, access to inventory, supply chain operations, our ability to predict future performance,
exposure to litigation, and our financial performance, among other things. Other factors and uncertainties related to
potential pandemics and health crises include, but are not limited to: « Evolving macroeconomic factors, including
general economic uncertainty, unemployment rates, and recessionary pressures; * Changes in labor markets affecting us
and our suppliers; * Unknown consequences on our business performance and initiatives stemming from the substantial
investment of time and other resources to the pandemic response; * Potential government actions including, but not
limited to, restrictions on travel and stay- in- place directives; * The pace of post- pandemic recovery; * The long- term
impact of the pandemic on our business, including consumer behaviors; and ¢ Disruption and volatility within the
financial and credit markets . Risks Relating to Our Operations and Acquisitions We are subject to business, financial,
operating and other risks common to the hotel and hotel franchising industries which also affect our franchisees, any of which
could reduce our revenues, limit our growth or otherwise impact our business. A significant portion of our revenue is derived
from fees based on room revenues at hotels franchised under our brands. As such, our business is subject, directly or through our
franchisees, to risks common in the hotel and hotel franchising industries, including risks related to: ¢ our ability to meet our
objectives for growth in the number of our franchised hotels and hotel rooms in our franchise system and to retain and renew
franchisee contracts, all on favorable terms; ¢ the number, occupancy and room rates of hotels operating under our franchise
agreements; ¢ the delay of hotel openings in our pipeline; ¢ changes in the supply and demand for hotel rooms; ¢ increased
pricing or supply chain disruptions for raw materials which could cause delays in the completion and development of new
hotels; ¢ our ability to develop and maintain positive relations and contractual arrangements with current and potential
franchisees under our franchise agreements and other third parties, including marketing alliances and affiliations with e-
commerce channels; ¢ our franchisees’ pricing decisions; ¢ the quality of the services provided by franchisees and their
investments in the maintenance and improvement of properties; ¢ the bankruptcy or insolvency of a significant number of our
franchised hotels; ¢ the financial condition of franchisees, owners or other developers and the availability of financing to them; ¢
adverse events occurring at franchised hotel locations, including personal injuries, food tampering, contamination or the spread
of illness, including €6VHB-—19-through pandemics or other health crises ;  negative publicity, which could damage our
hotel brands; ¢ our ability to successfully market our current or any future hotel brands and programs, including our rewards
program, and to service or pilot new initiatives; ¢ our relationship with certain multi- unit franchisees; ¢ changes in the laws,
regulations and, legislation and government spending affecting our business, internationally and domestically , including
changes relating to the U. S. Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, the CHIPS Act and the Inflation Reduction Act
resulting from a change in governing party, if any ; - our failure to adequately protect and maintain our trademarks and other
intellectual property rights; ¢ the relative mix of branded hotels in the various hotel industry price categories; ¢ corporate budgets
and spending and cancellations, deferrals or renegotiations of group business; ¢ seasonal or cyclical volatility in our business; *
operating costs, including as a result of inflation, energy costs and labor costs, such as minimum wage increases and
unionization, workers’ compensation and health-healthcare —eare-related costs and insurance; and ¢ disputes, claims and
litigation and other legal proceedings concerning our franchised hotels’ operations, including with consumers, government
regulators, other businesses, franchisees, organized labor activities and class actions. Any of these factors could reduce our
revenues, increase our costs or otherwise limit our opportunities for growth . We have been the subject of unsolicited interest
from Choice, which has been, and may continue to be, a distraction to our management and employees and could have a



material adverse impact on our business and operations. On December 12, 2023, Choice commenced the Exchange Offer.
The uncertainty regarding the Exchange Offer may be disruptive to our business, which could have a negative effect on
our operations, financial condition or results of operations. Management and employee distraction related to Choice’ s
unsolicited interest also may adversely impact our ability to optimally conduct our business and pursue our strategic
objectives. As discussed in our Solicitation / Recommendation Statement filed in response to the Exchange Offer on
Schedule 14D- 9, on December 18, 2023 (the “ Solicitation / Recommendation Statement ”’), Choice previously made a
series of proposals to acquire all of our outstanding shares of common stock (the “ Proposals ). Our Board rejected
each of the Proposals, concluding that the Proposals were inadequate in terms of price, consideration mix and other
terms. Upon rejection of the Proposals, Choice subsequently commenced the Exchange Offer. On January 22, 2024,
Choice sent us notice of their intent to nominate directors to replace our entire Board at the company’ s 2024 annual
meeting of stockholders and a proposal to repeal any amendments to our third amended and restated by- laws adopted
subsequent to January 4, 2023. We believe Choice’ s purported nominations are made in furtherance of its Proposals and
Exchange Offer. Responding to and defending against the Proposals, the Exchange Offer and Choice’ s potential proxy
contest has been, and may continue to be, a distraction for our Board, management and employees, and has required,
and may continue to require, us to incur additional expenses and costs. As of December 31, 2023, we had (i) an aggregate
principal amount of $ 160 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility due April 2027, (ii) an aggregate
principal amount of $ 385 million outstanding under our term loan A due April 2027, (iii) an aggregate principal amount
of $ 1. 14 billion outstanding under our term loan B due 2030 and (iv) an aggregate principal amount of $ 500 million
outstanding of 4. 375 % senior unsecured notes due 2028 (the “ 2028 Notes ). In the event of a change of control, there is
a potential risk of default under the credit agreement governing our term loans and revolving credit facility and under
the indenture governing the 2028 Notes. Pursuant to the credit agreement, the Exchange Offer and subsequent change of
control could result in an event of default permitting the lenders thereunder to terminate their commitments and declare
any outstanding principal and accrued interest amounts immediately due and payable under our term loan A and term
loan B. Pursuant to the indenture governing the 2028 Notes, in the event that the consummation of the Exchange Offer
constitutes a change of control and such change of control is accompanied by a ratings downgrade of the 2028 Notes by
each of Moody’ s and S & P’ s within a specified period of time and subject to certain conditions, then Wyndham would
be required to offer to repurchase the 2028 Notes at a price of 101 % of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to, but not including, the date of repurchase. We cannot assure stockholders that any waiver or
amendment of such change of control provisions would be obtainable or that any replacement financing would be
available, in each case on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. In short, if the Exchange Offer is consummated, our
liquidity and ability to operate our business could be materially and adversely impacted. Any of our future debt
agreements could contain similar restrictions and provisions. We might not have sufficient funds to repay the amounts
due in relation to our debt instruments following a change of control. The uncertain regulatory timeline and an extended
period of time between commencement of the Exchange Offer and its closing or termination may present significant
risks to our business. There may be an extended period between announcement and closing or termination of the
transaction, which coupled with an uncertain and extended regulatory review period, exposes us and our stockholders to
meaningful risks, including, among others (i) fewer room openings and new business development disruption (through
both fewer new signings added to the pipeline and higher breakage of the existing pipeline) and deterioration in segment-
leading retention rates, (ii) competitors (including Choice) capitalizing on franchisee uncertainty, (iii) stagnated
development of our fast- growing ECHO Suites brand and (iv) challenges attracting and retaining team members. Such
factors could have a material impact on our business, reducing its growth rate, EBITDA, cash flow, valuation multiple
and, ultimately, the share price of our common stock. The consummation of the Exchange Offer also presents additional
risks, as discussed in Item 4, “ The Solicitation or Recommendation — Background of the Offer and Reasons for
Recommendation ” of the Solicitation / Recommendation Statement in our Schedule 14D- 9 filed on December 18, 2023
with the SEC . Our international operations are subject to additional risks not generally applicable to our domestic operations.
Our international operations are subject to numerous risks including: exposure to local economic conditions; potential adverse
changes in the diplomatic relations of foreign countries with the U. S.; hostility from local populations; political instability,
including as a result of the ongoing eenfhet-conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and Israel and Hamas, respectively ; trade
disputes with trade partners, including China, potential military conflict resulting from escalating political tensions with Russia
and China and other geopolitical risks; threats or acts of terrorism; the effect of disruptions caused by severe weather, natural
disasters, outbreak of disease, such as €0ViHD-—19-pandemics or other health crises, or other events that make travel to a
particular region less attractive or more difficult; the presence and acceptance of varying levels of business corruption in
international markets; restrictions and taxes on the withdrawal of foreign investment and earnings; government policies against
businesses or properties owned by foreigners; investment restrictions or requirements; diminished ability to legally enforce our
contractual rights in foreign countries; forced nationalization of hotel properties by local, state or national governments; foreign
exchange restrictions; fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, including the negative impact of the weakening of foreign
currencies in geographic regions in which we operate relative to the U. S. dollar; our ability to, or our decision whether or not in
particular instances to, hedge against foreign currency effects, and whether we are successful in any such hedging transactions;
the ability to comply with or the effect of complying with new and developing laws, regulations and policies of foreign
governments, including with respect to climate change; conflicts between local laws and U. S. laws, including laws that impact
our rights to protect our intellectual property; withholding and other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries;
and changes in and application of foreign taxation structures including value added taxes. Any adverse outcome resulting from
the financial instability or performance of foreign economies, the instability of other currencies and the related volatility on



foreign exchange and interest rates could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. We are
dependent on our senior management and the loss of any member of our senior management could harm our business. We
believe that our future growth depends in part on the continued services of our senior management team. Losing the services of
any member of our senior management team could adversely affect our strategic relationships and impede our ability to execute
our business strategies. The market for qualified individuals may be highly competitive and finding and recruiting suitable
replacements for senior management may be difficult, time- consuming and costly. While we have updated our policies and
practices to provide more flexibility for remote work, we may experience increased attrition of employees to other opportunities
as a result of the tightening and increasingly competitive labor market and, particularly as certain employees may seek more
flexible work alternatives than we offer, may seek positions with companies outside of the geographic area in which they live
that offer remote work opportunities, or may decide to scale back their work life for personal reasons. If we are unable to retain
our personnel, particularly our executive officers and senior management team, our business could be harmed. Acquisitions and
other strategic transactions may not prove successful and could result in operating difficulties and failure to realize anticipated
benefits. We regularly consider a wide array of acquisitions and other potential strategic transactions, including acquisitions of
hotel brands, businesses and real property, joint ventures, business combinations, strategic investments and dispositions. Any of
these transactions could be material to our business. We often compete for these opportunities with third parties, which may
cause us to lose potential opportunities or to pay more than we may otherwise have paid absent such competition. We may not
be able to identify and consummate strategic transactions and opportunities on favorable terms and any such strategic
transactions or opportunities, if consummated, may not be successful. Risks Relating to Our Relationships with Third Parties
Our license and other fees could be impacted by any softness in Travel Leisure’ s sales of vacation ownership interests. In
connection with our 2018 spin- off (the “ Spin- Off ”’) from Wyndham Worldwide, now known as Travel Leisure Co. (“ Travel
Leisure ), we entered into a number of agreements with Travel Leisure that govern our ongoing relationship with Travel
Leisure. Our success depends, in part, on the maintenance of our ongoing relationship with Travel Leisure, Travel Leisure’ s
performance of its obligations under these agreements and continued strategic focus on sales of vacation ownership interests,
including Travel Leisure’ s maintenance of the quality of products and services it sells under the “ Wyndham * trademark and
certain other trademarks and intellectual property that we license to Travel Leisure. Under the License, Development and
Noncompetition Agreement, Travel Leisure pays us significant royalties and other fees based on the volume of Travel Leisure’ s
sales of vacation ownership interests and other vacation products and services. If Travel Leisure is unable to compete effectively
for sales of vacation ownership interests, our royalty fees under such agreement could be adversely impacted. If we are unable
to maintain a good relationship with Travel Leisure, or if Travel Leisure does not perform its obligations under these
agreements, fails to maintain the quality of the products and services it sells under the “ Wyndham ” trademark and certain other
trademarks or fails to pay such royalties, our earnings could decrease. Risks Relating to Regulation and Technology Our
operations are subject to extensive regulation and the cost of compliance or failure to comply with regulations may adversely
affect us. Our operations are regulated by federal, state and local governments in the countries in which we operate. In addition,
U. S. and international federal, state and local regulators may enact new laws and regulations that may reduce our profits or
require us to modify our business practices substantially. If we are not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
including, among others, those governing franchising, hotel operations, lending, information security, data protection and
privacy (such as the General Data Protection Regulation, U. S. State privacy laws, the Personal Information Protection Law of
the People’ s Republic of China or similar laws or regulations), credit card security standards, marketing, including sales,
consumer protection and advertising, unfair and deceptive trade practices, fraud, bribery and corruption, licensing, labor,
employment, anti- discrimination, health care, health and safety, accessibility, immigration, gaming, environmental, intellectual
property, securities, stock exchange listing, accounting, tax and regulations applicable under the Dodd- Frank Act, the Office of
Foreign Assets Control, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Sherman Act, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and local
equivalents in international jurisdictions, including the United Kingdom Bribery Act, we may be subject to regulatory
investigations or actions, fines, civil and / or criminal penalties, injunctions and potential criminal prosecution. Changes to such
laws and regulations and the cost of compliance or failure to comply with such regulations may adversely affect us.
Additionally, some jurisdictions are considering or have undertaken actions to regulate greenhouse gas emissions, energy
efficiency, energy consumption reporting and green building codes. Such actions could affect the operation of our franchisees’
properties and result in increased capital expenditures, such as those used to improve the energy efficiency of properties. The
cost of such governmental actions would depend upon the specific requirements and may impact our financial condition, results
of operations or ability to compete. Failure to maintain the security of personally identifiable and proprietary information, non-
compliance with our contractual obligations regarding such information or a violation of our privacy and security policies or
processes with respect to such information could adversely affect us. In connection with our business, we and our service
providers collect, use and store large volumes of certain types of personal and proprietary information pertaining to guests,
franchisees, stockholders and employees. Such information includes, but is not limited to, large volumes of guest credit and
payment card information. We are at risk of attack by cybercriminals operating on a global basis attempting to gain access to
such information. In connection with data security incidents involving a group of Wyndham brand hotels that occurred between
2008 and 2010, one of our subsidiaries is subject to a stipulated order with the U. S. Federal Trade Commission (the “ FTC ™),
pursuant to which, among other things, it must meet certain requirements for reasonable data security as outlined in the
stipulated order. While we maintain what we believe are reasonable security controls over personal and proprietary information
as part of our risk assessment program in an effort to protect, detect, respond to, and minimize or prevent risks and to
enhance the resiliency of our information technology systems , a breach of or breakdown in our systems could result in
operating failures, unauthorized access, service interruptions or failures, security breaches, malicious intrusions, theft,
exfiltration, ransomware, cyber- attacks, or other compromises of our systems that results— result in the unauthorized



release of personal or proprietary information . Such breach could nevertheless-eeenrand-have a material adverse effect on our
hotel brands, reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as subject us to significant fines,
litigation, losses, third- party damages and other liabilities, or our subsidiary could fail to comply with the stipulated order with
the FTC. We may face increased cybersecurity risks due to our increasing reliance on internet technology and the number of our
employees who are working remotely, which may create additional opportunities for cybercriminals to exploit vulnerabilities.
Cybercriminal *“ hacker ” activity has increased in sophistication, duration and frequency since 2020 the-start-ofthe-COVID—9
pandemie-and poses additional risks. Data breaches, viruses, ransomware, worms, malicious software, and other serious cyber
incidents have increased globally, along with the methods, techniques and complexity of attacks, including efforts to discover
and exploit any design flows, bugs or other security vulnerabilities. Additionally, continued geopolitical turmoil, including the
ongoing eenfhet-conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and Israel and Hamas, respectively , has heightened the risk of cyber-
attacks. We have been, and likely will continue to be, subject to such cyber- attacks. Also, the same cyber security issues exist
for the third parties with whom we interact and share information, and cyber- attacks on third parties which possess or use our
eustemer-guest , personnel and other information could adversely impact us in the same way as would a direct cyber- attack on
us. Although we do not believe we have incurred any ongeing material adverse impact on our business strategy, results of
operations or financial results-condition as a result of any present or recent cyber- attack, there is no guarantee that cyber-
attacks have not gone generally undetected or without general recognition of magnitude or will not occur in the future, any of
which could materially adversely affect our brands, reputation, consumer confidence in us, costs and profitability. In addition,
the security measures we deploy are not perfect or impenetrable, and we may be unable to anticipate or prevent all unauthorized
access attempts made on our systems or those of our third- party service providers. Additionally, the legal and regulatory
environment surrounding information security and privacy in the U. S. and international jurisdictions is constantly evolving,
including recent developments and complexities with regard to requirements for the cross- border transfer of personal
information due to emerging laws, regulations and judicial decisions (such as cross- border data transfer regulations issued by
the People’ s Republic of China authorities). Other jurisdictions may impose additional restrictions or requirements on cross-
border transfers including limitations on transferring data beyond the originating country. Violation or non- compliance with any
of these laws or regulations, contractual requirements relating to data security and privacy, or with our own privacy and security
policies or processes , cither intentionally or unintentionally, or through the acts of intermediaries could have a material adverse
effect on our hotel brands, reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as subject us to significant
fines, litigation, losses, third- party damages and other liabilities. While we maintain cyber risk insurance, in the event of a
significant security or data breach, this insurance may not cover all of the losses (including but not limited to financial,
operational, legal, business or reputational losses) that we may suffer and may result in increased cost or impact the future
availability of coverage. We rely on information technologies and systems to operate our business, which involves reliance on
third- party service providers and on uninterrupted operation of service facilities. We rely on information technologies and
systems to operate our business, which involves reliance on third- party service providers (including cloud- based service
providers) such as Sabre Corporation and its SynXis Platform and uninterrupted operations of our and third- party service
facilities, including those used for reservation systems, hotel / property management, communications, procurement, call
centers, operation of our loyalty program and administrative systems. We and our vendors also maintain physical facilities to
support these systems and related services. As a result, in addition to failures that occur from time to time in the ordinary course
of business, we and our vendors may be vulnerable to system failures, computer hacking, cyber- terrorism, computer viruses and
other intentional or unintentional interference, negligence, fraud, misuse and other unauthorized attempts to access or interfere
with these systems and our personal and proprietary information. The increased scope and complexity of our information
technology infrastructure and systems could contribute to the potential risk of security breaches or breakdown. Any natural
disaster, disruption or other impairment in our technology capabilities and service facilities or those of our vendors could
adversely affect our business. In addition, failure to keep pace with developments in technology could impair our operations or
competitive position. We may use artificial intelligence in our business, and challenges with properly managing its use
could result in reputational harm, competitive harm, and legal liability, and adversely affect our results of operations.
We may incorporate artificial intelligence (“ AI ”) solutions into our business, offerings, services and features, and these
applications may become important in our operations over time. Our competitors or other third parties may incorporate
Al into their products more quickly or more successfully than us, which could impair our ability to compete effectively
and adversely affect our results of operations. Additionally, if the content, analyses, or recommendations that Al
applications assist in producing are or are alleged to be deficient, inaccurate, or biased, our business, financial condition,
and results of operations may be adversely affected. The use of Al applications may result in cybersecurity incidents that
implicate the personal data of end users of such applications. Any such cybersecurity incidents related to our use of Al
applications could adversely affect our reputation and results of operations. Al also presents emerging ethical issues and
if our use of AI becomes controversial, we may experience brand or reputational harm, competitive harm, or legal
liability. The rapid evolution of Al including potential future regulation of AI, may also result in additional costs
associated with compliance with emerging regulations. The rapid evolution of Al including potential government
regulation of Al, may require significant resources to develop, test and maintain our business, offerings, services, and
features to help us implement Al ethically in order to minimize unintended, harmful impact. Risks Relating to Our
Indebtedness-and-Tax Treatment and Indebtedness Changes in U. S. federal, state and local or foreign tax law, interpretations
of existing tax law or adverse determinations by tax authorities could increase our tax burden or otherwise adversely affect our
financial condition or results of operations. We are subject to taxation at the federal, state and local levels in the U. S. and
various other countries and jurisdictions. Our future effective tax rate and cash flows could be affected by changes in the
composition of earnings in jurisdictions with differing tax rates, changes in statutory rates and other legislative changes, changes



in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in determinations regarding the jurisdictions in which we are
subject to tax and our ability to repatriate earnings from foreign jurisdictions. From time to time, U. S. federal, state and local
and foreign governments make substantive changes to tax rules and their application, which could result in materially higher
corporate taxes than would be incurred under existing tax law and could adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations. We are subject to ongoing and periodic tax audits and disputes in U. S. federal and various state, local and foreign
jurisdictions. An unfavorable outcome from any tax audit could result in higher tax costs, penalties and interest, thereby
adversely affecting our financial condition or results of operations. In addition, we are directly and indirectly affected by new
tax legislation and regulation and the interpretation of tax laws and regulations worldwide. Changes in such legislation,
regulation or interpretation could increase our taxes and have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.
This includes potential changes in tax laws or the interpretation of tax laws arising out of the Base Erosion Profit Shifting (*
BEPS ”) project initiated by the Organization for Economic Co- operation and Development (“ OECD ”). In July and October
0f 2021, the OECD / G- 20 Inclusive Framework on BEPS released statements outlining a political agreement on the general
rules to be adopted for taxing the digital economy, specifically with respect to nexus and profit allocation (Pillar One) and rules
for a global minimum tax (Pillar Two). Prehminary-agreement-On December 15, 2022, the European Union Member States
formally adopted the European Union’ s Pillar Two Directive with effective dates of January 1, 2024 and January 1,
2025 for certaln aspects of the dlrectlve. The Plllar Two dlrectlve has been 1mplemented or is feaehed—be’eween—eEGB

afe—expected to be—ﬁfmrzed—m—th&nea-ﬁfafufe—"Phese—fu%es—shet&d—theyhbe 1mplemented via domestlc legmlatlon of countries or

via international treaties ;-. The enactment could have a material impact on our effective tax rate or result in higher cash tax
liabilities. There can be no assurance that our tax payments, tax credits or incentives will not be adversely affected by these or
other initiatives. We are subject to risks related to our debt, hedging transactions, our extension of credit and the cost and
availability of capital. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , we had aggregate outstanding debt of $ 2, 677201 million. We may
incur additional indebtedness in the future, which may magnify the potential impacts of the risks related to our debt. Our debt
instruments contain restrictions, covenants and events of default that, among other things, could limit our ability to respond to
changing business and economic conditions; take advantage of business opportunities; incur or guarantee additional debt; pay
dividends or make distributions or repurchases; make investments or acquisitions; sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of certain
assets; create liens; consolidate or merge; enter into transactions with affiliates; and prepay and repurchase or redeem certain
indebtedness. Failure to meet our payment obligations or comply with other financial covenants could result in a default and
acceleration of the underlying debt and under other debt instruments that contain cross- default provisions. In order to reduce or
hedge our financial exposure to the effects of currency and interest rate fluctuations, we may use financial instruments, such as
hedging transactions. Changes in interest rates may adversely affect our financing costs and / or change the market value of our
hedging transactions. Any failure or non- performance of counterparties under our hedging transactions could result in losses.
Changes in interest rates may also adversely change the market value of our hedging transactions and may adversely affect
financing costs. While a significant portion of our debt is effectively at a fixed rate of interest and our nearest maturity is not
until 2625-2027 , an increase in financing cost due to increased interest rates may hinder our efforts to expand our franchisee
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h-xgheiktrﬁewst—eesfs—fer—us— In addltlon we extend credlt to a%%lit franchlsees in Convertlng to or bulldlng anew hotel under
one of our hotel brands through development advance notes and mezzanine or other forms of subordinated financing and we
have a program that guarantees a portion of loans taken by franchisees for certain new construction projects . The
inability of franchisees to pay back such loans could materially and adversely affect our cash flows and business. We may need
to dedicate a significant portion of our cash flows to the payment of principal and interest. Our ability to obtain additional
financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service requirements or general corporate or other
purposes may be limited, and we may be unable to renew or refinance our debt on terms as favorable as our existing debt or at
all. Additionally, certain market liquidity factors, including uncertainty or volatility in the equity and credit markets, outside of
our control could affect our access to credit and capital in the future and adversely impact our business plans and operating



model. Our credit rating and the market value of our common stock could also be affected. While we believe we have adequate
sources of liquidity to meet our anticipated requirements for working capital, debt service and capital expenditures for the
foreseeable future, if we are unable to refinance or repay our outstanding debt when due, our results of operations and financial
condition will be materially and adversely affected. Changes to estimates or projections used to assess the fair value of our assets
or operating results that are lower than our current estimates may cause us to incur additional impairment losses and require us
to write- off all or a portion of the remaining value of our goodwill or other intangibles of companies we have acquired. Our
total assets include goodwill and other intangible assets. We evaluate our goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or at other
times during the year if events or circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value is below the carrying
value. We may be required to record significant non- cash impairment charges in our financial statements during the period in
which any impairment of our goodwill, other intangible assets or other assets is determined, which would negatively impact our
results of operations and stockholders’ equity. Risks Relating to Litigation, Reputation and Insurance We are subject to risks
related to litigation. We are subject to a number of disputes, claims, litigation and other legal proceedings as described in this
report, and any unfavorable rulings or outcomes in current or future litigation and other legal proceedings may materially harm
our business. For additional information, see our Commitments and Contingencies note (Note +5-14 ) in the notes to our
financial statements. We are subject to risks related to human trafficking allegations. Our business, along with the hospitality
industry generally, faces risk that could cause damage to our reputation and the value of our hotel brands due to claims related to
purported incidents of human trafficking. Along with many of our competitors, we and / or certain of our subsidiaries have been
named as defendants in litigation matters filed in state and federal courts (and incurred litigation- related fees and costs), alleging
statutory and common law claims arising from purported incidents of human trafficking perpetrated by third parties at certain
franchised facilities and hotels once managed by certain of our subsidiaries. For additional information, see our Commitments
and Contingencies note (Note +5-14 ) in the notes to our financial statements. The insurance we carry may not always pay, or be
sufficient to pay or reimburse us, for our liabilities, losses or replacement costs. We carry insurance for general liability,
property, business interruption and other insurable risks with respect to our business and franchised hotels. We also self- insure
for certain risks up to certain monetary limits. The insurance coverage we carry, subject to our deductible, may not be sufficient
to pay or reimburse us for the amount of our liabilities, losses or replacement costs, and there may also be risks for which we do
not obtain insurance in the full amount, or some amount, or at all concerning a potential loss or liability, due to the cost or
availability of such insurance. As a result, we may incur liabilities or losses in the operation of our business that are not
sufficiently covered by the insurance we maintain, or at all, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Risks Relating to Our Common Stock and Corporate Governance The market price
of our common stock may continue to fluctuate. The market price for our common stock, and the market price of stock of other
companies operating in the hospitality industry, has been highly volatile. For example, during the year ended December 31,
2022-2023 , the trading price of our common stock ranged between a low sales price of $ 58-63 . 8369 and a high sales price of
$93-81 . 86-73 . The market price of our common stock may continue to fluctuate depending upon many factors, some of which
may be beyond our control, including the-effeets-of the-COVID-—19-pandemie-pandemics or other health crises , our ability to
achieve growth and performance objectives, the success or failure of our business strategy , the Exchange Offer , general
economic conditions, our quarterly or annual earnings and those of other companies in our industry, changes in financial
estimates and recommendations by securities analysts, changes in laws and regulations, political instability, increased
competition and changes affecting the travel industry and other events impacting our business. The stock market in general has
experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a particular company. These market
fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock. Certain of our Directors and executive officers may
have actual or potential conflicts of interest because of their ownership of Travel Leisure equity or their current or former
positions at Travel Leisure. Two of our Directors also serve on the Travel Leisure Beard-board of directors and certain of our
executive officers and non- employee Directors own shares of Travel Leisure common stock because of their current or former
positions with Travel Leisure. This could create, or appear to create, potential conflicts of interest when our or Travel Leisure’ s
management, officers and directors face decisions that could have different implications for us and Travel Leisure. We are
subject to risks related to eerperate-environmental, social respensibility-and governance activities . Our business, along with
the hospitality industry generally, faces scrutiny related to environmental, social and governance activities and the risk of
damage to our reputation and the value of our hotel brands if we fail to act responsibly or comply with regulatory requirements
in a number of areas, such as safety and security, responsible tourism, environmental stewardship, supply chain management,
climate change, diversity, equity and inclusion, philanthropy and support for local communities. In particular, our stakeholders
(notably our eustemers-guests , stockholders and team members) are increasingly interested in our approach to managing
climate- related risks and opportunities (including, but not limited to, targets that keep global average temperature rise to no
more than 1. 5 ° C, measure Scope 3 franchisee emissions and expand participation in the Wyndham Green Certification
program) and may affect our guests’ travel choices and directly impact our revenue. Provisions in our corporate governance
documents and Delaware law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our business, which could decrease the market price of our
common stock. Our corporate governance documents and Delaware law contain provisions that are intended to deter or delay
coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids, including requiring advance notice for stockholder proposals, placing
limitations on convening stockholder meetings and authorizing our Board to issue one or more series of preferred stock.
Additionally, Delaware law also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any
holder of 15 % or more of our outstanding common stock. These provisions may prevent or delay an acquisition that some
stockholders may consider beneficial, which could decrease the market price of our common stock. Our third amended and
restated by- laws designate the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for certain types of
actions and proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders and the federal district courts of the United States as the



exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action under the Securities Act, which could limit our
stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our Directors or employees. Our third amended
and restated by- laws provide that, subject to limited exceptions, (1) the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the
sole and exclusive forum for derivative actions; claims related to a breach of a fiduciary duty, corporate law, our seeend-third
amended and restated certificate of incorporation, as amended or our third amended and restated by- bylaws—- laws , as
amended; or under the internal affairs doctrine; and (2) the federal district courts of the United States will be the exclusive
forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause or causes of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, including all causes of action asserted against any defendant to such complaint. We believe these provisions may
benefit us by providing increased consistency in the application of Delaware law and federal securities laws by chancellors and
judges, as applicable, particularly experienced in resolving corporate disputes, efficient administration of cases on a more
expedited schedule relative to other forums and protection against the burdens of multi- forum litigation. However, these choice
of forum provisions may limit a stockholder’ s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with
us or our current or former Directors, officers or employees, which may discourage such lawsuits. Alternatively, if a court were
to find these provisions of our third amended and restated by- laws inapplicable or unenforceable with respect to one or more of
the specified types of actions or proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other
jurisdictions, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and result in
a diversion of the time and resources of our management and Board. We may not continue to pay dividends on, or effect
repurchases of, our common stock, and the terms of our indebtedness could limit our ability to pay dividends on our common
stock. The declaration and payment of dividends and share repurchases are at the sole discretion of our Board and will depend
on, among other things, our results of operations, cash requirements, financial condition, contractual restrictions under our
indebtedness and other factors that our Board may deem relevant. Though we expect to make regular dividends, there can be no
assurance that a payment of a dividend will occur in the future. Risks Relating to the Spin- Off and Related Transactions In
connection with the Spin- Off and Travel Leisure’ s sale of its European vacation rentals business, we agreed to indemnify
Travel Leisure and Travel Leisure agreed to indemnify us for certain liabilities, including taxes, and if we are required to
perform under these indemnities or if Travel Leisure is unable to satisfy its obligations under these indemnities, our financial
results could be negatively affected. In connection with the Spin- Off and Travel Leisure’ s sale of its European vacation rentals
business, we agreed to indemnify Travel Leisure and Travel Leisure agreed to indemnify us for certain liabilities, including
taxes, and if we are required to perform under these indemnities or if Travel Leisure is unable to satisfy its obligations under
these indemnities, our financial results could be negatively affected. Additionally, the contingent liabilities we assumed in
connection with the Spin- Off and Travel Leisure’ s sale of its European vacation rentals business could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition as a result of our indemnification obligations. Should our indemnification
obligations exceed applicable insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected. Additionally, the indemnities from Travel Leisure may not be sufficient to protect us against the full amount of these
and other liabilities. Third parties also could seek to hold us responsible for any of the liabilities that Travel Leisure has agreed
to assume. Even if we ultimately succeed in recovering from Travel Leisure any amounts for which we are held liable, we may
be temporarily required to bear those losses ourselves. Each of these risks could negatively affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. If the Spin- Off, together with certain related transactions, were to fail to qualify
as a reorganization for U. S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 368 (a) (1) (D) and 355 of the Code, then our
stockholders, we and Travel Leisure might be required to pay substantial U. S. federal income taxes. The Spin- Off was
conditioned upon Travel Leisure’ s receipt of opinions of its Spin- Off tax advisors to the effect that, subject to the assumptions
and limitations described in the opinions, the Spin- Off, together with certain related transactions, would qualify as a
reorganization for U. S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 368 (a) (1) (D) and 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the *“ Code ), in which no gain or loss would be recognized by Travel Leisure or its stockholders, except, in
the case of Travel Leisure stockholders, for cash received in lieu of fractional shares, which opinions were delivered on the
closing date of the Spin- Off. The opinions of the Spin- Off tax advisors are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“ IRS
) or a court, and there can be no assurance that the IRS will not challenge the validity of the Spin- Off and such related
transactions as a reorganization for U. S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 368 (a) (1) (D) and 355 of the Code
eligible for tax- free treatment, or that any such challenge ultimately will not prevail. In addition, Travel Leisure received certain
rulings from the IRS regarding certain U. S. federal income tax aspects of transactions related to the Spin- Off. Although the IRS
Ruling generally is binding on the IRS, the continued validity of the IRS Ruling is based upon and subject to the continuing
accuracy of factual statements and representations made to the IRS by Travel Leisure. If the Spin- Off does not qualify as a tax-
free transaction for any reason, including as a result of a breach of a representation or covenant with respect to such tax opinions
or the IRS Ruling, Travel Leisure would recognize a substantial gain attributable to our hotel business for U. S. federal income
tax purposes. In such case, under U. S. Treasury regulations, each member of the Travel Leisure consolidated group at the time
of the Spin- Off, including us and certain of our subsidiaries, would be jointly and severally liable for the entire resulting amount
of any U. S. federal income tax liability. Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity. Our
cybersecurity program incorporates a robust process for the assessment, identification, and management of material
risks from cybersecurity threats. This begins with our threat intelligence program that integrates several methods to
identify potential threats to the Company, including paid / unpaid threat feeds, custom threat alerts, keeping abreast of
the latest threats to the technologies that exist within our information systems and daily dialogue with industry peers to
the threats to the hospitality industry as a whole. Information regarding these threats is then built into our security tools.
This takes the form of hardening systems through vulnerability identification and patching, as well as enabling early
detection and response capabilities across our network and endpoints. Any detected threat or potential cybersecurity



incident is handled by our hybrid Security Operations Center, or “ SOC ” which utilizes both internal and external
resources for monitoring 24 / 7 and is responsible for triaging and appropriately handling or escalating the potential
incident. Other than the incidents that occurred prior to the Spin- Off, described in more detail in “ Item 1A. Risk
Factors — Failure to maintain the security of personally identifiable and proprietary information, non- compliance with
our contractual obligations regarding such information or a violation of our privacy and security policies or processes
with respect to such information could adversely affect us ” as of the date of this Annual Report, we are not aware of any
risks from cybersecurity threats that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our business
strategy, results of operation, or financial condition. There is no guarantee that such risks will not evolve in the future
and materially adversely affect the Company or that our processes to manage cybersecurity risks, including those
described here, will operate effectively and as designed. Board & Management Cybersecurity Risk Oversight We
incorporate all of the Company’ s cybersecurity processes and assessments into our overall enterprise risk program. This
allows us to develop a complete consolidated view of our risk factors across our cybersecurity, information technology,
and business functions. As part of the Company’ s enterprise risk program, the Information Risk Committee (“ IRC ”) is
responsible for developing and coordinating the Company’ s cybersecurity policy and strategy, and for managing the
prevention, detection, mitigation and remediation of cybersecurity incidents. The IRC is chaired by the Chief
Information Security Officer (“ CISO ”) and the Senior Vice President — Legal (“ SVP — Legal) ” responsible for Privacy
and Compliance Issues, with the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Information and Distribution Officer, and the General
Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer as members. The IRC meets regularly to review operations of the Company’ s
cybersecurity programs and processes, and to discuss emerging legal, technical, or other risks. The Audit Committee of
the Board is the Board- level committee with oversight of privacy and security matters. The IRC updates the Audit
Committee quarterly to provide risk updates and general education on privacy and information risk trends. The Board
is made aware promptly of any cybersecurity incidents that are deemed critical or that could potentially have an impact
on the business. The Board also receives periodic privacy and security awareness training from third- party subject
matter experts. Our CISO has been with Wyndham since 2012, and has worked in the cybersecurity industry for 19
years. Prior to his time at Wyndham, as a forensic investigator, he performed cyber investigations in both civil and
criminal matters and has worked closely with various industries to educate and provide guidance on cybersecurity best
practices. The SVP — Legal has been with the Company since 2010, and has served in his current role since 2019. The
SVP — Legal leads the legal team responsible for, among other things, corporate secretary matters, SEC reporting,
privacy, compliance and legal operations. The SVP — Legal has several years of experience managing risks related to the
Company’ s operations, including data privacy. The IRC also includes our Chief Information and Distribution Officer,
Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Financial Officer, each whom has over 15 years of business and senior leadership
experience managing risks in their respective fields, collectively covering aspects of cybersecurity, technology strategy,
capital allocation and compliance. Cybersecurity Incident Response Plan We have established a Cybersecurity Incident
Response Plan (“ CIRP ”), which details the steps to be followed to properly respond to, contain, and remediate a
cybersecurity incident. Within this plan, there are also engagement processes for our external cybersecurity incident
response firm, which also assists Wyndham’ s cybersecurity team by annually testing the CIRP through custom tabletop
exercises. The CIRP provides a process for escalating certain cybersecurity incidents to the IRC and to other members of
management to facilitate management- level consideration as to whether a cybersecurity incident may be material to the
Company and whether public disclosure of the incident is required. Information Security Program Access to our
information systems is managed through our Identity and Access Management process, which governs the appropriate
level of access for each user on an ongoing basis. Wyndham performs a certification process bi- annually to ensure the
accuracy and completeness of each user’ s access. Tracking and measuring of the above certification processes takes
place within our Information Security Program. This program reports on the risks and remediation progress across our
information systems, as well as measures them against our own standards and processes, which have been developed in
part using the National Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework 2. 0. The Information Security
Program also measures the overall cybersecurity program against other key regulatory standards such as the Payment
Card Industry standard known as PCI 4. 0 and the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. Third Party Risk Program The
Company’ s third- party risk program includes a process for assessing and overseeing the risk profile of third parties we
do business with at the time of contract execution and also in the event that the scope of the work done with any third
party materially changes. Our teams conduct vendor risk assessments of third- party suppliers that may receive access to
personal data or connectivity to Wyndham’ s systems, for which such vendor risk assessments include information
security control assessments and privacy impact assessments, regardless of the sensitivity of personal data potentially
involved. The teams conduct similar internal assessments should any process potentially result in a significant change to
the Company’ s data processing practices concerning sensitive data, or have a potentially material impact on individuals’
data and respective rights. The data from the threat intelligence program mentioned above also feeds into a third- party
risk evaluation to ensure that any impactful event (cyber or otherwise) experienced by a third- party doing business with
Wyndham is considered in the risk profile of that organization. Cybersecurity Insurance To help mitigate the financial
risks associated with any cyber security incidents, Wyndham Hotels also maintains cyber insurance that is renewed
annually and covers both cyber events and business interruption. We closely monitor costs of breaches within the
industry in an effort to ensure that our coverage is sufficient to address all reasonably foreseeable threats and levels of
risk. Item 2. Properties. Our corporate headquarters is located in a leased office at 22 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, New Jersey,
with the lease expiring in 2029. We also lease space for our reservation center and data warehouse in Saint John, New
Brunswick, Canada pursuant to a lease that expires in 2029. In addition, we have an additional 412 leases for office space in +8



11 countries outside the United States and one additional lease within the United States. We will evaluate the need to renew
each lease on a case- by- case basis prior to its expiration. We believe our current leased properties are adequate to support our
existing operations. Item 3. Legal Proceedings. We are involved in various claims, legal and regulatory proceedings and
governmental inquiries arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which, in the opinion of management, is expected to
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition. See Note +5-14 - Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated
Financial Statements contained in Part IV of this report for a description of claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of our business. [tem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. Not applicable. PART II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s Common
Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. MARKET PRICE OF COMMON STOCK Our
common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“ NYSE ”) under the symbol “ WH ”. As of January 31, 2623-2024 ,
the number of stockholders of record was 4, 226-092 . DIVIDEND POLICY We declared cash dividends of $ 0. -32—35 per share
in each of the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2622-2023 ($ H6-119 million in aggregate) - whiehts-eonsistent-with-our
pre—pandemie-quarterty-dividendpershare-. The declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common stock is
at the discretion of our Board and depends upon many factors, including our financial condition, earnings, capital requirements
of our business, covenants associated with certain debt obligations, legal requirements, regulatory constraints, industry practice
and other factors that our Board deems relevant. ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES In May 2018, our Board
approved a share repurchase plan pursuant to which we were authorized to purchase up to $ 300 million of our common stock.
Our Jnr-Augast2049;-the-Board has increased the capacity of the program by $ 300 million —~Our-Beard-inereased-the-eapaeity
ofthe-programby-in 2019, $ 800 million in 2022, and $ 400 million in February2622-2023 and-an-additional-$-400-milienin
Oetober2022-. Below is a menthly summary of our common stock repurchases, excluding excise taxes and fees and-expenses-,
by-month-for the quarter ended December 31, 2622-2023 : PeriodTotal Number of Shares PurchasedAverage Price Paid per
ShareTotal Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced PlanApproximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under PlanOetober318-PlanOctober970 , 796-597 $ 66-70 . 543148-26 970 , 796-597 $ 547693500
November522-, 903 728-72-69-522-, 728-569-673 November446 , 697232 75. 94 446 . 5+4-232 467, 016, 026 Decembert
December305 , 244 79 638;266-70-. §2-04 305, 244 442, 888, 623 Totall, 722, 073 $ 73. 29 1, 838722 . 073 266-436;:168;
920-FetaH-879,796-5 442 70611 879-888 , 623 796-$436;168;920-STOCK PERFORMANC E GRAPH The following
graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return of our common stock against the S & P 500 Index and the S & P Hotels,
Resorts & Cruise Lines Index (consisting of Booking Holdings Inc., Carnival Corporation & plc, Expedia Group, Inc., Hilton
Worldwide Holdings Inc., Marriott International, Inc., Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., and Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd.)
for the period from Juned52048te-December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2622-2023 . The graph assumes that $ 100 was
invested on June+December 31 , 2018 (the first day of regular- way trading) and all dividends and other distributions were
reinvested. The Stock Performance Graph is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ) and shall
not be deemed incorporated by reference into any of our prior or future filings made with the SEC. Cumulative Total Return
December 31, Fane+264826482619262620212022 Wyndham—--- 201820192020202120222023Wyndham Hotels & Resorts,
Inc. $ 100. 00 $ 74-141 . 9440 $ +65-135 . 93-64 $ +64—-61-5155-06-206 $325-. 53-98 $ 167. 56 $ 192. 58 S & P 500 $ 100. 00
$93-131 . 7249 $ +23-155 . 23-68 $ +45-200 . 96-37 $ +87164 . 75-08 $ +53-207 . 78-21 S & P Hotels, Resorts & Cruise Lines
$100.00 $84-137 . 58-05 $ H5-101 . 59 $ 121. 75 $ 92 $-85-. 92-23 § +62-153 . 39 9F-$F80+-Item 6. Reserved. Item 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. (Unless otherwise noted, all amounts
are in millions except share and per share amounts) References herein to “ Wyndham Hotels, ” the “ Company, ” *“ we, ” “ our ”
and “ us ” refer to bet-h—fﬁ-Wyndhdm Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and its consolldated subs1d1arles for time perlods followm;a the
consummdtlon of'the spin- off and - 3 6 55

;Dlobal hotel fIdl’lChlSOl’ llcensmo its renowned hotel br"mds to hotel owners in over 95 countries dIOUnd the W011d Our primary
TFhe-Company-operatesin-the-foHowingsegments— segment is -~Hetel-hotel Franehising-franchising —lieenses-which
principally consists of licensing our lodging brands and prevides-providing related services to third- party hotel owners and
others. «In the first quarter of 2023, we changed the composition of our reportable segments to reflect the recent changes
in our Hotel Management —prevides-hotel-segment due to the exit from the select- service management servieesfor
business, the sale of our two owned hotels and the exit from substantially all of our U. S. full- servicc management
business in 2022. The remaining hetels— hotel management business, which is predominately the full- service
international managed business, no longer meets the quantitative thresholds to be considered a reportable segment and
as a result, we have aggregated, on a prospective basis, such management business within our Hotel Franchising
segment. Rejection of Unsolicited Offer and Commencement of Exchange Offer On October 17, 2023, we announced that
our Board unanimously rejected a highly conditional, unsolicited stock- and- cash proposal by Choice to acquire all
outstanding shares of Wyndham. Our Board, together with our financial and legal advisors, closely reviewed Choice’ s
latest proposal with a nominal value of $ 90 per share, comprised of 45 % in stock and 55 % in cash, and determined
that it was not in the best interest of stockholders to accept the proposal. On December 12, 2023, Choice commenced the
Exchange Offer for any and all issued and outstanding shares of our common stock for, at the election of the holder, (i) $
49. 50 in cash and 0. 324 shares of Choice common stock (together with the § 49. 50 in cash, the “ Standard Offer
Consideration ”), (ii) an amount in cash equal to the equivalent market value of the Standard Offer Consideration based
on the volume- weighted average of the closing prices of Choice common stock as quoted on the NYSE over the five
NYSE trading days ending on the 10th business day preceding March 8, 2024 (the “ Expiration Date ) or (iii) a number
of shares of Choice common stock having a value equal to the equivalent market value of the Standard Offer
Consideration (based on the volume- weighted average of the closing prices of Choice common stock as quoted on the
NYSE over the five NYSE trading days ending on the 10th business day preceding the Expiration Date), subject to



proration, as disclosed in Choice' s Prospectus / Offer to Exchange dated December 12, 2023 and the related Letter of
Transmittal. On December 18, 2023, we filed a Solicitation / Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D- 9 with the
SEC providing for the unanimous recommendation by our Board that our stockholders reject the Exchange Offer and
not tender any of the shares of common stock to Choice pursuant to the Exchange Offer. On January 22, 2024, Choice
sent us notice of their intent to nominate directors to replace our entire Board at the Company’ s 2024 annual meeting of
stockholders and a proposal to repeal any amendments to our third amended and restated by- laws adopted subsequent
to January 4, 2023 . The Consolidated Financial Statements presented herein have been prepared on a stand- alone basis. The
Con%ohdated Fmancml Statements 1nclude the Company s assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows and all entmes

3—35—616—89%97—Pr0v1810n for / (benefit hom) income ’faxes—l—99—taxes121 -1%1—91 (26) 50 61 Net income / (loss) $ 2-89—$—355 $ 244
$ (132) $ 157 $ 162 Per share data:Diluted earnings / (loss) per share $ 3. 4+-$3-91 $2.60 $ (1.42) $1.62 $ 1.62 Cash
dividends declared per sharel. 48428 0.88 0.56 1.16 0.75 Balance Sheet data:Cash $ 66-$-161 $ 171 $ 493 $ 94 $ 366 Total
assets (&b ) 4033-4,123 4,269 4,644 4,533 4,976 Total debt (&b ) 2264+2.077 2,084 2,597 2,122 2,141 Total liabilities (&b )
3:287-3,161 3,180 3,681 3,321 3,558 Total stockholders’ equity746-equity962 962-1,089 963 1,212 1,418 Other financial
data:Royalties and franchise fees $ 532-$-512 $ 461 $ 328 $ 480 $ 441 License and other fees100 feesH2+06-79 84 131 111
Adjusted EBITDA (b-¢ ) Hotel Franchising segment $ 727$-679 $ 592 $ 392 $ 629 $ 521 Hotel Management segmentn
segment37 £a37-57 13 66 47 Corporate and Other ( d €}468-) (66) (59) (69) (74 ) (55 ) Total adjusted EBITDA ( d-e ) $659-$
650 $ 590 $ 336 $ 621 $ 513 Operating statistics:Total CompanyNumber of properties ( e-f) 95378-9,059 8,950 8,941 9,280
9,157 Number of rooms ( g ) 8H5868-842,500 810,100 795,900 831,000 809,900 RevPAR (gh ) $43306-5 41.88 $35.95$
24.51 $40.92 $ 40.80 Average royalty rate (#i)3-596-3.9 % 4.1 % 4.0 % 3.8 % 3.8 % United StatesNumber of properties (e-f
) 6;636-0,081 6,139 6,175 6,342 6,358 Number of rooms ( £g ) 49%606-493,800 490,600 487,300 510,200 506,100 RevPAR (g
h)$50.42-$56-72 $45.19 $ 30.20 $ 46.39 $ 45.30 Average royalty rate (hi ) 4.6 % 4.6 % 4. 6%4-5 % 4.5 %

4.5 % (a) In May 2018,we acquired La Quinta Holdings’ hotel franchise and hotel-
management business,spanning a portfolio of over 900 La Quinta- branded hotels.(b ) Reflects the impact of the adoption
of the new accounting standard in 2020 for the measurement of credit losses on financial instruments and the 2019 accounting
standard for lease accounting.(-¢ ) “ Adjusted EBITDA  is defined as net income / (loss) excluding net interest
expense,depreciation and amortization,early extinguishment of debt charges,impairment charges,restructuring and related
charges,contract termination costs, separation—relateditems;-transaction- related items (acquisition-,disposition- sor debt
separation - related),(gain) / loss on asset sales,foreign currency impacts of highly inflationary countries,stock- based
compensation expense,income taxes and development advance notes amortization. We believe that adjusted EBITDA is a useful
measure of performance for our segments which,when considered with U.S.Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“ GAAP
””) measures,allows a more complete understanding of our operating performance.We use this measure internally to assess
operating performance,both absolutely and in comparison to other companies,and to make day to day operating
decisions,including in the evaluation of selected compensation decisions.Our presentation of adjusted EBITDA may not be
comparable to similarly - titled measures used by other companies.During the first quarter of 2021,the Company modified the
definition of adjusted EBITDA to exclude the amortization of development advance notes to reflect how the Company’ s chief
operating decision maker reviews operating performance beginning in 2021.The Company has applied the modified definition of
adjusted EBITDA to all periods presented.( e-d ) Corporate and Other reflects unallocated corporate costs that are not
attributable to an operating segment.( €€ ) The reconciliation of net income / (loss) to adjusted EBITDA is as follows:Year
Ended December 31,(in millions) 2023202226242620---- 202220212020 (2) 2019 (a) 2018 (a) Net income / (loss) $ 289-$-355
$ 244§ (132) $ 157 $ 162 Provision for / (benefit from) income taxest99-taxes121 42491 (26) 50 61 Depreciation and
amertizattonF6-amortization77 7795 98 109 99 Interest expense, net80 aetH62-86-93 112 100 60 Early extinguishment of

debt3-debt2 2-18 — — — Stock- based compensation expense39-expense33 33-28 19 15 9 Development advance notes
amertizattontS-amortization12 42-11 9 8 7 Gain on asset sale,net (35) — — — — Separation- related expensesl 3 2 22 77
Impalrments,net —6 206 45 — Restructurmg costs — — 34 8 — Transaction- related expen%es ﬁet—1—1—~ net — — 12 40 36

eesfs—34—8—C0ntract termlnatlon costs — — — —42 — Transaction- related 1tem _
impact of highly inflationary eetntrtest4— countriesd 4-1 2 5 3 Adjusted EBITDA $ 659-$-650 $ 590 $ 336 $ 621 $ 513 (a)
Adjusted EBITDA has been recasted to conform with the current year presentation. Amounts may not foot due to rounding. (f)
Represents the number of hotels at the end of the period.(g) Represents the number of rooms at the end of the period
which are (i) either under franchise and / or management agreements and (ii) properties under affiliation agreements for
which the Company receives a fee for reservation and / or other services provided.(h) Represents revenue per available
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room and is calculated by multiplying the average occupancy rate by the average daily rate.(i) Represents the average
royalty rate earned on our franchised properties and is calculated by dividing total royalties,excluding the impact of
amortization of development advance notes,by total room revenues.In presenting the financial data above in conformity
with U.S.GAAP,we are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported.See *
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial
Condition,Liquidity and Capital Resources — Critical Accounting Policies,” for a detailed discussion of the accounting
policies that we believe require subjective and complex judgments that could potentially affect reported

results. DEVELOPMENT We awarded 882 new contracts this year,a 35 % increase compared to the 655 contracts we
awarded during 2021.As of December 31,2022 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Discussed below are our key operating
statistics, consolidated results of operations and the results of operations for each of our reportable segments. The reportable
segments presented below represent our operating segments for which discrete financial information is available and used on a
regular basis by our chief operating decision maker to assess performance and to allocate resources. In identifying our reportable
segments, we also consider the nature of services provided by our operating segments. Management evaluates the operating
results of each of our reportable segments based upon net revenues and adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net
income / (loss) excluding net interest expense, depreciation and amortization, early extinguishment of debt charges, impairment
charges, restructuring and related charges, contract termination costs, separation- related items, transaction- related items
(acquisition-, disposition- , or separation-debt - related), (gain) / loss on asset sales, foreign currency impacts of highly
inflationary countries, stock- based compensation expense, income taxes and development advance notes amortization. We
believe that adjusted EBITDA is a useful measure of performance for our segments and, when considered with U. S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“ GAAP ) measures, gives a more complete understanding of our operating performance. We
use this measure internally to assess operating performance, both absolutely and in comparison to other companies, and to make
day to day operating decisions, including in the evaluation of selected compensation decisions. Adjusted EBITDA is not a
recognized term under U. S. GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or other measures of financial
performance or liquidity derived in accordance with U. S. GAAP. Our presentation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable
to similarly —titled measures used by other companies. We generate royalties and franchise fees, management fees and other
revenues from hotel franchising and hotel management activities, as well as fees from licensing our “ Wyndham * trademark,
certain other trademarks and intellectual property. In addition, pursuant to our franchise and management contracts with third-
party hotel owners, we generate marketing, reservation and loyalty fee revenues and cost reimbursement revenues that over time
are offset, respectively, by the marketing, reservation and loyalty costs and property operating costs that we incur. OPERATING
STATISTICS- 2023 VS. 2022 ¥5—202+The table below presents our operating statistics for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 and2024- “ Rooms ” represent the number of hotel rooms at the end of the period which are either under
franchise and / or management agreements s-er-are-Company—owned-(as-of Beeember3+-2621H;-and properties under affiliation
agreements for which we receive a fee for reservation and / or other services provided. “ RevPAR ” represents revenue per
available room and is calculated by multiplying average occupancy rate by average daily rate. “ Average royalty rate ”
represents the average royalty rate earned on our franchised properties and is calculated by dividing total royalties, excluding
the impact of amortization of development advance notes, by total room revenues. These operating statistics are drivers of our
revenues and therefore provide an enhanced understanding of our business. Refer to the section below for a discussion as to how
these operating statistics affected our business for the periods presented. Year Ended December 31, 20232022 %
ChangeRoomsUnited States497, 600 493, 800 1 % International374, 200 348, 700 7 % Total rooms871, 800 842, 500 3 %
RevPARUnited States $ 50. 42 § 50. 72 (1 %) International (a) 33. 21 29. 05 14 % Global RevPAR (a) 43. 10 41. 88 3 %
Average Royalty RateUnited States4. 6 % 4. 6 % — International2. 4 % 2. 1 % 30 bpsGlobal average royalty rate3. 9 %
3.9 % — (a) Excluding currency effects, international RevPAR increased 21 % and global RevPAR increased S %.
Rooms as of December 31, 2023 increased 3 % compared to the prior year, reflecting 1 % growth in the U. S. and 7 %
growth internationally. As expected, these increases included strong growth in both the higher RevPAR midscale and
above segments in the U. S. and the direct franchising business in China, which grew 3 % and 13 %, respectively. We
also achieved our goal of increasing our retention rate by 30 bps year- over- year. Excluding currency effects, global
RevPAR for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased S %, compared to the prior year, including a 1 % decline in the
U. S. and 21 % growth internationally. During 2022, we achieved record- breaking RevPAR in the U. S. due to COVID-
impacted travel patterns. Comparing to 2019 to neutralize for COVID- impacted travel patterns, U. S. RevPAR grew 9
%. International RevPAR growth from prior year was driven by higher occupancy levels and stronger pricing power in
connection with the COVID- 19 recovery, and compared to 2019, grew 36 % on a constant- currency basis. U. S. average
royalty rate was consistent and international average royalty rate increased 30 basis points compared to the prior year.
Global average royalty rate for the year ended December 31, 2023 remained consistent at 3. 9 %, compared to the prior
year due to faster system growth internationally. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 VS. YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 Year Ended December 31, 20232022Change % ChangeRevenuesFee- related and other revenues $
1,384 $ 1,354 $ 30 2 % Cost reimbursement revenues13 144 (131) (91 %) Net revenuesl, 397 1, 498 (101) (7 %)
ExpensesMarketing, reservation and loyalty expense569 524 45 9 % Cost reimbursement expensel3 144 (131) (91 %)
Gain on asset sale, net — (35) 35 n / aOther expenses312 307 5 2 % Total expenses894 940 (46) (5 %) Operating
incomeS03 558 (55) (10 %) Interest expense, net102 80 22 28 % Early extinguishment of debt3 2 1 50 % Income before
income taxes398 476 (78) (16 %) Provision for income taxes109 121 (12) (10 %) Net income $ 289 $ 355 $ (66) (19 %) Net
revenues during 2023 decreased by $ 101 million, or 7 %, compared to the prior year, primarily driven by: ¢ $ 102
million of lower cost- reimbursement revenues associated with the exit of all of our U. S. full- service management
business, which have no impact on net income; and * $ 79 million of lower revenues associated with our select- service



management and owned hotel businesses which were exited in the first half of 2022 (of which $ 29 million represented
cost- reimbursement revenues that have no impact on net income); partially offset by * $ 34 million of higher marketing,
reservation and loyalty fees reflecting a 3 % increase in both global RevPAR and rooms as well as revenues associated
with our global franchisee conference in 2023, our first conference since 2019; * $ 27 million of higher royalty, franchise
and management fees due to the RevPAR and rooms increases; * $ 12 million of higher license and other fees; and  $ 7
million of higher other revenues. Total expenses during 2023 decreased $ 46 million, or 5 %, compared to the prior year,
primarily driven by: ¢ $ 102 million of lower cost- reimbursement expenses associated with the exit of all of our U. S. full-
service management business, which have no impact on net income; ¢ $ 65 million of lower expenses associated with our
select- service management and owned hotel businesses, which were exited in the first half of 2022 (of which $ 29 million
represented cost- reimbursement expenses as discussed above); partially offset by ¢ $ 45 million of higher marketing,
reservation and loyalty expenses primarily as a result of timing of spend and costs associated with our global franchisee
conference; * $ 35 million from absence of the gain on asset sale in 2022 related to the sale of our owned hotel Wyndham
Grand Bonnet Creek Resort; « $ 17 million of higher operating expenses primarily driven by revenue- generating
activities and $ 10 million of higher foreign currency losses on highly inflationary countries, primarily Argentina; « $ 11
million of transaction- related expenses primarily related to the unsolicited Exchange Offer from Choice and our term
loan refinancing; and ¢ $ 9 million of higher general and administrative expenses. Interest expense, net during 2023
increased $ 22 million, or 28 %, compared to the prior year primarily due to a higher variable interest rate on our term
loan A in 2023 and a higher debt balance. Early extinguishment of debt of $ 3 million in 2023 relates to the refinancing of
our term loan B, while $ 2 million in 2022 relates to the third amendment of our credit agreement and $ 400 million
partial pay down of our term loan B. Our effective tax rate increased to 27. 4 % in 2023 from 25. 4 % in 2022. The
change was primarily related to a foreign tax assessment received in 2023 that we are currently challenging. As a result
of these items, net income during 2023, decreased $ 66 million compared to the prior year. A reconciliation of net income
to adjusted EBITDA is represented below: Year Ended December 31, 20232022Net income $ 289 $ 355 Provision for
income taxes109 121 Depreciation and amortization76 77 Interest expense, net102 80 Early extinguishment of debt3 2
Stock- based compensation expense39 33 Development advance notes amortization15 12 Transaction- related expenses11
— Separation- related expensesl 1 Gain on asset sale, net — (35) Foreign currency impact of highly inflationary
countries14 4 Adjusted EBITDA $ 659 $ 650 Following is a discussion of the results of our Hotel Franchising segment
and Corporate and Other for 2023 compared to 2022: Net RevenuesAdjusted EBITDA20232022 % Change20232022 %
ChangeHotel Franchising $ 1,397 $1,2779 % $ 727 $ 679 7 % Hotel Managementn / a221 n/an /a37 n / aCorporate
and Other — — — (68) (66) (3 %) Total Company $ 1,397 $ 1, 498 (7 %) $ 659 $ 650 1 % Net revenues during 2023
increased $ 120 million, or 9 % compared to the prior year, primarily driven by: o $ 36 million of higher royalty and
franchise fees, primarily reflecting the RevPAR and rooms increases; ° $ 35 million of higher marketing, reservation and
loyalty revenues, primarily reflecting the RevPAR and room increases as well as revenues associated with our global
franchisee conference; © $ 14 million of management fees primarily from our international full- service management
business which were reported within our Hotel Management segment in 2022; © $ 13 million of higher cost-
reimbursement revenues primarily from our international full- service managed properties that have no impact on
adjusted EBITDA; - $ 12 million of higher license and other fees; and o $ 10 million of higher other revenues. Adjusted
EBITDA during 2023 increased $ 48 million compared to the prior- year period, primarily driven by the revenue
increases discussed above, partially offset by $ 45 million of higher marketing, reservation and loyalty expenses as well as
$ 7 million of higher operating expenses principally driven by revenue- generating activities and $ 6 million of higher
general and administrative expenses. Adjusted EBITDA during 2023 was unfavorable by $ 2 million compared to the
prior year. OPERATING STATISTICS- 2022 VS. 2021 The table below presents our operating statistics for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. “ Rooms ” represent the number of hotel rooms at the end of the period which are
either under franchise and / or management agreements, or are Company- owned (as of December 31, 2021), and
properties under affiliation agreements for which we receive a fee for reservation and / or other services provided. «
RevPAR ” represents revenue per available room and is calculated by multiplying average occupancy rate by average
daily rate. “ Average royalty rate ” represents the average royalty rate earned on our franchised properties and is
calculated by dividing total royalties, excluding the impact of amortization of development advance notes, by total room
revenues. These operating statistics are drivers of our revenues and therefore provide an enhanced understanding of our
business. Refer to the section below for a discussion as to how these operating statistics affected our business for the
periods presented. Year Ended December 31, 20222021 % ChangeRoomsUnited States493, 800 490, 600 1 %
International348, 700 319, 500 9 % Total rooms842, 500 810, 100 4 % RevPARUnited States $ 50. 72 $ 45. 19 12 %
International (a) 29. 05 21. 52 35 % Global RevPAR (a) 41. 88 35. 95 16 % Average Royalty RateUnited States4. 6 % 4. 6 % —
International2. 1 % 2. 1 % — Global average royalty rate3. 9 % 4. 1 % (20) bps (a) Excluding
currency effects, international RevPAR increased 49 % and global RevPAR increased 20 %. Rooms as of December 31, 2022
increased 4 % compared to the prior year, reflecting 1 % growth in the U. S. and 9 % growth internationally. As expected, these
increases included strong growth in both the higher RevPAR midscale and above segments in the U. S. and the direct
franchising business in China, which grew 4 % and 10 %, respectively, as well as 80 basis points of growth globally and 200
basis points internationally from the acquisition of the Vienna House brand in September 2022. Excluding currency effects,
global RevPAR for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased 20 %, compared to the prior year, including U. S. growth of 12
% and international growth of 49 %. The increases were primarily driven by stronger pricing power and COVID- 19 recovery
internationally. Global average royalty rate for the year ended December 31, 2022 decreased by 20 basis points to 3. 9 %,
compared to the prior year due to mix as both international RevPAR and net room growth outpaced the U. S., with the RevPAR




growth primarily the result of COVID- 19 recovering more slowly internationally than it did in the U. S. YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 VS. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 Year Ended December 31, 20222021Change %
ChangeRevenuesFee- related and other revenues $ 1,354 $ 1, 245 $ 109 9 % Cost reimbursement revenues144 320 (176) (55
%) Net revenues], 498 1, 565 (67) (4 %) ExpensesMarketing, reservation and loyalty expense524 450 74 16 % Cost
reimbursement expensel44 320 (176) (55 %) Gain on asset sale, net (35) — (35) n/ aOther expenses307 349 (42) (12 %) Total
expenses940 1, 119 (179) (16 %) Operating income558 446 112 25 % Interest expense, net80 93 (13) (14 %) Early
extinguishment of debt2 18 (16) (89 %) Income before income taxes476 335 141 42 % Provision for income taxes121 91 30 33
% Net income $ 355 $ 244 § 111 45 % Net revenues during 2022 decreased by $ 67 million, or 4 %, compared to the prior year,
primarily driven by: « $ 261 million of lower revenues associated with our select- service management and owned hotel
businesses which were exited in the first half of 2022 (which $ 186 million represented cost- reimbursement revenues that have
no impact on net income); partially offset by ¢ $ 76 million of higher marketing, reservation and loyalty fees reflecting a 16 %
increase in global RevPAR; ¢ $ 65 million of higher royalty and franchise fees due to the RevPAR increase; * $ 21 million of
higher license and other fees resulting from higher travel demand associated with the COVID- 19 recovery; ¢ $ 20 million of
higher other revenues primarily due to favorable co- branded credit card activity; and * $ 10 million of higher cost-
reimbursement revenues related to the COVID- 19 recovery in our full- service managed properties that have no impact on net
income. Total expenses during 2022, decreased $ 179 million, or 16 %, compared to the prior year, primarily driven by: * $ 267
million of lower expenses associated with our select- service management and owned hotel businesses, which were exited in the
first half of 2022 (which $ 186 million represented cost- reimbursement expenses as discussed above); and ¢ a $ 35 million gain
related to the sale our owned hotel Wyndham Grand Bonnet Creek Resort in March 2022; partially offset by * $ 81 million of
higher marketing, reservation and loyalty expenses primarily as a result of the increase in marketing revenue; * $ 14 million of
higher variable expenses primarily associated with the improvement in travel demand due to the COVID- 19 recovery; * $ 13
million of higher costs primarily due to inflation, as expected; and « $ 10 million of higher cost- reimbursement expenses related
to COVID- 19 recovery in our full- service managed properties. Interest expense, net during 2022 decreased $ 13 million, or 14
%, compared to the prior year as a result of the redemption of our $ 500 million senior notes in April 2021 and an increase in
interest income. Early extinguishment of debt of $ 2 million in 2022 relates to the third amendment of our credit agreement and
$ 400 million partial pay down of our term loan B, while the $ 18 million in 2021 relates to the redemption of our $ 500 million
senior notes. Our effective tax rate decreased to 25. 4 % in 2022 from 27. 2 % in 2021. The change was primarily related to the
release of valuation allowances for net operating loss carryforwards, which was partially offset by an additional valuation
allowance for certain foreign tax credits generated durlng the year Asa result of these 1tems net income durmg 2022, increased
$ 111 million compared to the prior year. # 0 e S-tep elow:Y car Ended
December 31, 2022202 1Net income $ 355 $ 244 Pr0V1s10n for income taxelel 91 Depreciation and amortlzat10n77 95 Interest
expense, net80 93 Early extinguishment of debt2 18 Stock- based compensation expense33 28 Development advance notes
amortization12 11 Gain on asset sale, net (35) — Separation- related expenses!l 3 Impairments, net — 6 Foreign currency
impact of highly inflationary countries4 1 Adjusted EBITDA $ 650 $ 590 Following is a discussion of the results of each of our
segments and Corporate and Other for 2022 compared to 2021: Net RevenuesAdjusted EBITDA20222021 % Change20222021
% ChangeHotel Franchising $ 1,277 $ 1,099 16 % $ 679 $ 592 15 % Hotel Management221 466 (53 %) 37 57 (35 %)
Corporate and Other — — — (66) (59) (12 %) Total Company $ 1,498 $ 1, 565 (4 %) $ 650 $ 590 10 % Year Ended December
31,20222021 % ChangeRoomsUnited States493, 500 465, 100 6 % International333, 600 304, 300 10 % Total rooms827, 100
769, 400 7 % RevPARUnited States $ 50. 00 $ 43. 95 14 % International (a) 28. 11 20. 86 35 % Global RevPAR (a) 41. 23 34.
85 18 % (a) Excluding currency effects, international RevPAR increased 49 % and global RevPAR increased 22 %. Rooms
increased 7 % from the prior year period reflecting: « Organic growth of 4 %; « The conversion of managed properties to
franchise in connection with the exit of our select- service management business and the sales of our two owned hotels, which
resulted in 270 basis points of growth; and * The acquisition of the Vienna House brand in the third quarter of 2022, which
resulted in 80 basis points of growth. Excluding currency effects, global RevPAR increased 22 % from the prior year period due
to a 14 % increase in the U. S. and a 49 % increase internationally, both driven by stronger pricing power. Net revenues during
2022 increased $ 178 million, or 16 % compared to the prior year, primarily driven by: ¢ $ 60 million of higher royalty and
franchise fees reflecting the RevPAR increase; * $ 76 million of higher marketing, reservation and loyalty revenues also
reflecting the RevPAR increase; * $ 21 million of higher other revenues primarily due to favorable co- branded credit card
activity; and ¢ $ 21 million of higher license and other fees due to strong travel demand associated with the COVID- 19
recovery. Adjusted EBITDA during 2022 increased $ 87 million, or 15 %, compared to the prior year, driven by the revenue
increases discussed above, partially offset by; * $ 81 million of higher marketing, reservation and loyalty expenses primarily as a
result of the increase in marketing revenues; * $ 8 million of higher costs primarily reflecting variable expenses associated with
the improvement in travel demand due to the COVID- 19 recovery; and ¢ $ 5 million of higher costs due to inflation, as
expected. Year Ended December 31, 20222021 % ChangeRoomsUnited States300 25, 500 (99 %) Internationall5, 100 15, 200
(1 %) Total rooms15, 400 40, 700 (62 %) RevPARUnited States $ 92. 66 $ 63. 20 47 % International (a) 48. 61 34. 31 42 %
Global RevPAR (a) 64. 07 53. 81 19 % (a) Excluding currency effects, international RevPAR increased 50 % and global
RevPAR increased 23 %. Rooms declined 62 % from the prior year period, driven by the conversion of managed properties to
franchise in connection with the exit of our select- service management business and the sale of our two owned hotels.
Excluding currency effects, global RevPAR increased 23 % from the prior year period primarily due to the impact from the exit
of our select- service hotel management business. Net revenues during 2022 decreased $ 245 million, or 53 %, compared to the
prior year, primarily driven by: ¢ $ 261 million of lower revenues associated with our select- service management and owned
hotel businesses which we exited in the first half of 2022 and, of which $ 186 million represented cost- reimbursement revenues,
that have no impact on adjusted EBITDA; partially offset by * $ 10 million of higher cost- reimbursement revenues related to




our full- service managed properties; and * § 4 million of higher royalty, management and other fees. Adjusted EBITDA during
2022 decreased $ 20 million, or 35 %, compared to the prior year primarily driven by the revenue decreases discussed above
(excluding cost reimbursements), partially offset by $ 56 million of lower expenses associated with the exit from our select-
service hotel management business and owned hotel businesses. Adjusted EBITDA during 2022 was unfavorable by $ 7 million
compared to the prior year primarily due to inflationary cost pressures, as expected. DEVELOPMENT On OPERATING
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fneeme+axes47-6—3—3§—61§-89%97€%3—2023 Provmon for/ (benel‘lt hom) ....... As of December 31, 2022 , our (’lObdl dev Llopmult
pipeline consisted of over 1, 706-950 hotels and approximately 2+9-240 , 000 rooms, representing another record high level
and a 10 % increase year- over- year, including 8 % growth in the U. S and 11 % internationally. This represented the
14th consecutive quarter of sequential pipeline growth. Approximately 70 % of our pipeline is in the midscale and above
segments and 58 % is international. Additionally, approximately 79 % of our pipeline is new construction, of which
approximately #3-34 % is-tr-the-midseale-has broken ground. During 2023, we awarded 766 new contracts for our legacy
brands, and-- an increase of 8 abeve—segmeﬂts—éé%{rm—fhe—U—S—)—eﬁr—ptpehne—grew—H— %o LOaldlLd to %92—1,—rne-l-&d-mg—34%
g-rewt-h—rn—t-he—U—S—As—e-PBeeembeH—l,—%)ﬂ ““““““ P

v A-grotid fllhe—pfpehne—me}u&es—l—’fe-Addltlonally, we
awarded 98 addltlonal new contracts W&rded—lm our t-he—Gemp&ny—s—E( HO Suites Extended Stay by Wyndham brand ,

brlnglng the total number of contracts awarded for the brand to 268 representlng over 33, 000 rooms smu 1ls launeh b+

LIQUIDITY AND (APITAL RES()UR( ES Ymr Ended Decunbm 31, %922%92—1—Ghangefl:efa-l————— 20232022ChangeT0tal
assets $ 4,033 $4, 123 $ 4,269-$-( 44690 ) Total liabilities3, 287 3, 161 126 338639 -Total stockholders’ eguity962—
equity746 962 +-689-( 127216 ) Total assets decreased $ +46-90 million from December 31, 20242022 to December 31, 2022
2023 p1 imar 1ly éue—related to utlhzmg our excess cash a—$—1—54—na-rl-l-ten—re&ueﬁeﬂ—rn—assefs—he}d— or share repurchases sa-}e—d-ue

year- over- year prlmarlly related to an increase in our debt balance relatlng to borrowmgs under our revolving credit
facility. Total equity decreased $ +9-216 million year- over- year primarily due to areduetioninrliabititiesheldforsate-asa

fewk—e%ﬂ%e—eﬂmed—hetel-sa%es—Tetal—equy—deefeased% 397 12F-millienyear—over—yearprimarty-dueto-$445-million of
stock upulchases dnd % -1—1-6—119 million of dividend pdvmunls pdllld“v ol[su by t-he—our net mcome we—geﬂera-ted—rn—t-he—ye&r

otr-interestrate-Swaps-. Hl%l()llulll\’ our business Lulualcs suMlcmnl msh 110\\ to not onlv supp(nl our current opcmuons as
well as our future growth needs and dividend payments to our stockholders, but also to create additional value for our
stockholders in the form of share repurchases and business investment. As of December 31, 20222023 , our liquidity



approximated $ 966-650 million. Given the minimal capital needs and flexible cost structure of our business, we believe that our
existing cash, cash equivalents, cash generated through operations and our expected access to financing facilities, together with
fundmo tthLl(’h our rev olVlng credit facility, will be sufhelent to fund our opelatmg dCthItleS ant1c1pated Capltal expendltures

fefﬂ‘l—leﬂ‘ﬂ—léi—AS of December 31, %92—2—2023 we were in comphanee with the hnancml covenants of our credlt agreement and
expect to remain in such compliance. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , we had a term loan B with a principal outstanding
balance of § 1. 1 billion maturing in 2025-2030 , a term loan A with a principal outstanding balance of $ 466-384 million
maturing in 2027 and a five- year revolving credit facility maturing in 2027 with a maximum aggregate principal amount of §
750 million, of which sene-$ 160 million was outstanding and $ 9 million was allocated to outstanding letters of credit. The
interest rate per annum applicable to our term loan B is equal to, at our option, either a base rate plus a margin of 6-1 . 7525 %
or E1BOR-the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“ SOFR ”) plus a margin of +2 . 7525 % plus a 0. 10 % SOFR
adjustment . Our revolving credit facility and term loan A are subject to an interest rate per annum equal to, at our option, either
a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0. 50 % to 1. 00 % or the-Seenred-Overntght FandingRate-C~SOFR Zplus a 0. 10 %
SOFR adjustment, plus a margin ranging from 1. 50 % to 2. 00 %, in either case based upon the-our total leverage ratio efthe
Company-and its-the total leverage of our restricted subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , the margin on our term
loan A was 1. 75 %. As of December 31, 2023 . § 1. | billion of our termteanB-variable- rate debt is hedged with pay- fixed
/ receive- variable interest rate swaps hedging our term loan interest rate exposure. The aggregate fair value of these interest rate
swaps was a $ 53-13 million asset as of December 31, 2622-2023 . In January 2024, we entered into new pay- fixed / receive-
variable interest rate swaps that hedge the interest rate exposure on $ 275 million of our variable- rate debt with an
effectlve date in the fourth quarter of 2024 and an explratlon date in the fourth quarter of 2027 The fixed Federat

eeﬁtraets—t-heugh—through etuee*rs&ﬂg—swaps—w&keeﬁﬁﬂue—tefefefeﬁee—hPBGR—feHhe -fefeseeab}e—futufe-fourth quarter of
2027 . As of December 31, 2622-2023 , our credit rating was Bal from Moody’ s Investors Service and BB from beth Standard
and Poor’ s Rating Agency and Fitch Ratings . A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and is
subject to revision or withdrawal by the assigning rating organization. Reference in this report to any such credit rating is
intended for the limited purpose of discussing or referring to aspects of our liquidity and of our costs of funds. Any reference to
a credit rating is not intended to be any guarantee or assurance of, nor should there be any undue reliance upon, any credit rating
or change in credit rating, nor is any such reference intended as any inference concerning future performance, future liquidity or
any future credit rating. Our liquidity and access to capital may be impacted by our credit ratings, financial performance and
global credit market conditions. We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents, cash generated through operations and our
expected access to financing facilities, together with funding through our revolving credit facility, will be sufficient to fund our
operating activities, anticipated capital expenditures and growth needs. CASH FLOW The following table summarizes the
changes in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;and 2021 and-2626-
Year Ended December 31, 202220242620€ash-—--- 202320222021Cash provided by / (used in) Operating activities $ 376 $ 399
$ 426 $-6FInvesting aetivittest?9—-- activities (66) 179 (34 H3+) Financing activities ( 402) (584) (713) 363-Effects of
changes in exchange rates on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ( 3) (4) (1) —Net change in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash $ (95) $ (10) $ (322) During 2023, net cash provided by operating activities decreased $ 399-23 million
compared to the prior year primarily due to higher development advance notes provided to franchisees in support of
system growth and higher interest expense, partially offset by higher cash generated from net income. Net cash used in
investing activities was $ 66 million in 2023 compared to cash provided by investing activities of $ 179 million in 2022.
The change of $ 245 million was primarily due to the absence of the proceeds received in 2022 from the sales of our
owned hotels and the termination fee from CorePoint Lodging associated with the exit of our select- service management
business. Net cash used in financing activities decreased $ 182 million compared to the prior year primarily due to $ 137
million of net borrowings primarily from our revolving credit facility, which was used for investments in the business
and share repurchases. Stock repurchases decreased $ 55 million as 2022 benefited from the deployment of the proceeds
received in connection with the sale of the owned hotels and exit of the select- service management business. During 2022,
net cash provided by operating activities decreased $ 27 million compared to the prior year primarily due to higher development
advances provided to franchisees in support of system growth, as well as the impact from the sale of our two owned hotels and
the exit of our select- service management business and lower cash collected from 2020 COVID- 19 related fee deferrals. Net
cash provided by investing activities increased $ 213 million compared to the prior year, primarily due to the proceeds from the
sales of our two owned hotels and the termination fee received from CorePoint Lodging associated with the exit of our select-
service management business, partially offset by $ 44 million of cash used for the acquisition of the Vienna House brand. Net
cash used in financing activities decreased $ 129 million compared to the prior year primarily due to the absence of cash used



for the redemption of our $ 500 million 5. 375 % senior unsecured notes 1n 2021, partlally offset by a$ 341 mllhon increase in
stock repurchases and a $ 34 million i increase in d1v1dend payments Ae prey operating-ae es

%%Géssuaﬁe&ef—lewef-eest—}eﬂger—maﬁ&&y—debt—Capltal Deployment Our first prlonty is to invest in the busmess Thls
includes deploying capital to attract high quality assets into our system, investing in select technology improvements across our
business that further our strategic objectives and competitive position, brand refresh programs to improve quality and protect
brand equity, business acquisitions that are accretive and strategically enhancing to our business, and / or other strategic
initiatives. We also expect to maintain a regular dividend payment. Excess cash generated beyond these needs is expected to be
available for enhanced stockholder return in the form of stock repurchases or potential acquisitions from time to time. During
2622-2023 , we spent $ 39-37 million on capital expenditures, primarily related to information technology, including digital
innovation. During 2823-2024 , we anticipate spending approximately $ 35-40 million on capital expenditures. fraddition;
during-During 2022-2023 | we spent $ 48-72 million, net of repayments, on development advance notes. During 2623-2024 , we
anticipate spending approxnnately $ 66-90 million on development advance notes. We may also provide other forms of ﬁnan01al
support such as enhanced credit support to further assist in the growth of our business. In addition, during 2024, we anticipate
spending approximately $ 75 million of cash associated with legal and advisory fees related to the unsolicited offer by
Choice. We expect all our cash needs to be funded from cash on hand and cash generated through operations, and / or
availability under our revolving credit facﬂlty arreHre and-avatable e . Contractual Obligations
Material contractual obligations arising in the normal course of busmess prlmanly Con51st of long- term debt and related interest
payments, purchase commitments and lease payments. See Note +3-12 - Long- Term Debt and Borrowing Arrangements and
Note 28-19 - Leases to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV of this report for more information. As of
December 31, 20222023 , we had future long- term interest payment obligations of approximately $ 337623 million of which $
94-119 million is payable within twelve months. We have purchase commitments primarily consisting of non- cancelable
obligations for marketing and technology related services. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , we had purchase commitments of $
+40-146 million of which $ 57-58 million is payable within twelve months. Stock Repurchase Program In May 2018, our Board
approved a share repurchase plan pursuant to which we were authorized to purchase up to $ 300 million of our common stock.
Our IrAugust2649;-the-Board has increased the capacity of the program by $ 300 million —OurBeardinereased-the-eapaeity
ofthe-programby-in 2019, $ 800 million in 2022, and $ 400 million in February2622-2023 and-an-additional-$-400-milienin
Oetober2022-. Under the plan, we may, from time to time, purchase our common stock through various means, including,
without limitation, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions or tender offers, subject to the terms of the tax
matters agreement entered into in connection with our spin- off. Under our current stock repurchase program, we repurchased
approximately 6-5 . 2-5 million shares at an average price of $ 7472 . 78-25 per share for a cost of $ 445-397 million during
2622-2023 . Since inception of our stock repurchase program , we repurchased +5-20 . 2-7 million shares at an average price
of $ 63-65 . 32-69 per share for a cost of $ 964-1. 4 mithen-billion . As of December 31, 2022-2023 , we had $ 436-443 million
of remaining availability under our program. Dividend Policy We declared cash d1V1dends of $ 0. 32-3S per share in each of the
first, second third and fourth quarters of 20222023 ($ H6-119 million in aggregate) —Wh-teh—ts—eeﬁststeﬂt—w-rt-h-eiﬁpfe-

. In February 2623-2024 , the Board approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend
to $ 0. 35-38 per share. The declaration and payment of future d1v1dends to holders of our common stock is at the discretion of
our Board and depends upon many factors, including our financial condition, earnings, capital requirements of our business,
covenants associated with certain debt obligations, legal requirements, regulatory constraints, industry practice and other factors
that our Board deems relevant. Foreign Earnings Although the one- time mandatory deemed repatriation tax during 2017 and the
territorial tax system created as a result of U. S. tax reform generally eliminate U. S. federal income taxes on dividends from
foreign subsidiaries, we continue to assert that all of our undistributed foreign earnings of $ 48-84 million will be reinvested
indefinitely as of December 31, 2022-2023 . In the event the Company determines not to continue to assert that all or part of its
undistributed foreign earnings are permanently reinvested, such a determination in the future could result in the accrual and
payment of additional foreign withholding taxes and U. S. taxes on currency transaction gains and losses, the determination of
which is not practicable due to the complexities associated with the hypothetical calculation. LONG- TERM DEBT
COVENANTS Our credit facilities contain customary covenants that, among other things, impose limitations on indebtedness;
liens; mergers, consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions; dispositions, restricted debt payments, restricted payments and
transactions with affiliates. Events of default in these credit facilities include, among others, failure to pay interest, principal and
fees when due; breach of a covenant or warranty; acceleration of or failure to pay other debt in excess of a threshold amount;
unpaid judgments in excess of a threshold amount, insolvency matters; and a change of control. The credit facilities require us to
comply with a financial covenant to be tested quarterly, consisting of a maximum first- lien leverage ratio of 5. 0 times. The
ratio is calculated by dividing consolidated first lien indebtedness (as defined in the credit agreement) net of consolidated
unrestricted cash as of the measurement date by consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement), as measured on a
trailing four- fiscal- quarter basis preceding the measurement date. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , our first- lien leverage ratio
was 2. 2-5 times. The indenture, as supplemented, under which the senior notes due 2028 were issued, contains covenants that




limit, among other things, our ability and that of certain of our subsidiaries to (i) create liens on certain assets; (ii) enter into sale
and leaseback transactions; and (iii) merge, consolidate or sell all or substantially all of our assets. These covenants are subject
to a number of important exceptions and qualifications. As of December 31, 28222023 , we were in compliance with the
financial covenants described above. SEASONALITY While the hotel industry is seasonal in nature, periods of higher revenues
vary property- by- property and performance is dependent on location and guest base. Based on historical performance,
revenues from franchise and-management-contracts are generally higher in the second and third quarters than in the first or
fourth quarters due to increased leisure travel during the spring and summer months. Our cash from operating activities may not
necessarily follow the same seasonality as our revenues and may vary due to timing of working capital requirements and other
investment activities. The seasonality of our business may cause fluctuations in our quarterly operating results, earnings, profit
margins and cash flows. As we expand into new markets and geographical locations, we may experience increased or different
seasonality dynamics that create fluctuations in operating results different from the fluctuations we have experienced in the past.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES We are involved in claims, legal and regulatory proceedings and governmental
inquiries related to our business. Litigation is inherently unpredictable and, although we believe that our accruals are adequate
and / or that we have valid defenses in these matters, unfavorable results could occur. As such, an adverse outcome from such
proceedings for which claims are awarded in excess of the amounts accrued, if any, could be material to us with respect to
earnings and / or cash flows in any given reporting period. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , the potential exposure resulting
from adverse outcomes of such legal proceedings could, in the aggregate, range up to approximately $ 3-10 million in excess of
recorded accruals. However, we do not believe that the impact of such litigation should result in a material liability to us in
relation to our financial position or liquidity. For a more detailed description of our commitments and contingencies see Note +5
14 - Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV of this report. CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES In presenting our financial statements in conformity with U. S. GAAP, we are
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported therein. Several of the estimates and assumptions
we are required to make relate to matters that are inherently uncertain as they pertain to future events. However, events that are
outside of our control cannot be predicted and, as such, they cannot be contemplated in evaluating such estimates and
assumptions. If there is a significant unfavorable change to current conditions, it could result in a material impact to our
consolidated results of operations, financial position and liquidity. We believe that the estimates and assumptions we used when
preparing our financial statements were the most appropriate at that time. Presented below are those accounting policies that we
believe require subjective and complex judgments that could potentially affect reported results. However, the majority of our
business activities are in environments where we are paid a fee for a service performed, and therefore the results of the majority
of our recurring operations are recorded in our financial statements using accounting policies that are not particularly subjective,
nor complex. Impairment of Long- Lived Assets We evaluate Goodwﬁ-l—goodwﬂl -ts—reﬁewed—and other lndefinlte and
definite long- lived assets for impairment annually (euring 0
annhual-foreeastingproeess), or more frequently if circumstances indicate that {-he—va-lue—e-f—an impairment has occurred prior
to our annual assessment date. For goodwill , we may elect be-impaired-to the-reporting-units™earrying-values-asrequired
perform this test through either a qualitative assessment or by the-guidanee-utilizing a quantitative impairment test . This
is-done-etther-We also evaluate the recoverability of each of our definite- lived intangible assets by performing a qualitative
assessment eﬁrt-rl-rzmg—t-he—eﬂe-sfep-to determlne if clrcumstances 1nd1cate that impairment may have occurred test-with-an

------- alue-. Such frany-given—year;weean-eleette
perfema—quahtatlve assessmeﬁt—assessments requlre management Judgement and 1nclude te—ele’eermme—whet-heﬁt—ts—mefe

test—"Phe—qua-l-tt&ﬁve—factorg eva-luated—tnel-ude—such as macroeconomic Condmons 1ndu9try and marl(et Con§1derat1on§ Coqt

factors, overall financial performance, our historical share price as well as other industry- specific considerations. Application

We—alse—eletermme—whet-heﬁhe—ea—rﬁ‘mg—va-lues—of a quantltatlve 1mpa1rment assessment of our goodw1ll and other

indeﬁnite— lived intangible assets @ y -
ppliea ; estrequires Judgment in the a%%umptlonstmelerly'rﬂg—t-he

approaeh-used to determine fair value. The falr Value of goodw1ll and cach other indefinite- lived intangible asset is estimated
using a discounted cash flow methodology. This analysis requires significant judgments, including estimation of future cash
flows, which are dependent on internal forecasts, discount rates and to a lesser extent, estimation of long- term rates of growth.
The estimates used to calculate the fair value of our goodwill and other indefinite- lived intangible assets change from year to
year based on operating results and market Condmons Change% in the%e estlmateq and as%umptlonq could materlally affect the
determmatlon of such fair valae-an Atg : : vattia

sueh—assefs—ls-redueed—te—faﬂ—va-lue— Loyalty Program We operate the Wyndham Reward% loyalty program Wyndham Reward%

members primarily accumulate points by staying in hotels operated under one of our brands and —WyndhamRevwards-members
may-alse-aceumutate-points-by purchasing everyday services and products with their Wyndham Rewards co- branded credit



card. We earn revenue related to the issuance of these loyalty points from these programs {i)-whena-memberstays-ata
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loyalty pointsearned-underthe-program-, including an estimate of loyalty points that will expire or will never be redeemed. As
members earn points through the Wyndham Rewards loyalty program, we record a liability for the estimated future redemption
costs, which is calculated based on (i) an estimated cost per point and (ii) an estimated redemption rate of the overall points
earned, which is determined with the assistance of a third- party actuarial firm through historical experience, current trends and
the use of an actuarial analysis . The estimated cost per point and estimated redemption rate used in the determination of
the liability for the estimated future redemption costs require management judgement. Changes in the estimated cost per
point and / or the estimated redemption rate used in the determination of the liability could result in a material change to
the liability recorded and our results of operations . Income Taxes We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on
the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using currently
enacted tax rates. We regularly review our deferred tax assets to assess their potential realization and establish a valuation
allowance for portions of such assets that we believe will not be ultimately realized. In performing this review, we make
estimates and assumptions regarding projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary
differences and the implementation of tax planning strategies. A change in these assumptions may increase or decrease our
valuation allowance resulting in an increase or decrease in our effective tax rate, which could materially impact our results of
operations. For tax positions we have taken or expect to take in our tax return, we apply a more likely than not threshold, under
which we must conclude a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained, assuming that the position will be examined by
the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information, in order to recognize or continue to
recognize the benefit. In determining our provision for income taxes, we use judgment, reflecting our estimates and assumptions,
in applying the more likely than not threshold. A change in the assumptions and estimates utilized could materially impact
our results of operations. RECENTLY ADOPTED AND NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS For a detailed
description of recently adopted and new accounting pronouncements see Note 2- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to
the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV of this report. OFF- BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS There
were no off- balance sheet transactions, arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons in
2023, 2022 rand 2021 and2626-that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial condition,
revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. Iltem 7A. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. We use various financial instruments, including interest swap contracts, to reduce
the interest rate risk related to our debt. We also use foreign currency forwards to manage and reduce the foreign currency
exchange rate risk associated with our foreign currency denominated receivables and payables, forecasted royalties, forecasted
earnings and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and other transactions. We are exclusively an end user of these instruments,
which are commonly referred to as derivatives. We do not engage in trading, market making or other speculative activities in the
derivatives markets. More detailed information about these financial instruments is provided in Note +4-13 - Fair Value to the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV of this report. Our principal market exposures are interest rate and
currency exchange rate risks. We assess our exposures to changes in interest rates utilizing a sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity
analysis measures the potential impact in earnings, fair values and cash flows based on a hypothetical 10 % change (increase and
decrease) in interest rates. Our variable- rate borrowings, which include our term loan, a portion of which has been swapped to a
fixed interest rate, and any borrowings we make under our revolving credit facility, expose us to risks caused by fluctuations in
the applicable interest rates. The total outstanding balance of such variable- rate borrowings, net of swaps, was $ 444-583
million as of December 31, 2622-2023 . A hypothetical 10 % change in our effective weighted average interest rate on our
variable- rate borrowings would result in a $ 2-3 million increase or decrease to our annual long- term debt interest expense, and
a one- point change in the underlying interest rates would result in approximately a $ 4-6 million increase or decrease in our
annual interest expense. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses
and other current liabilities approximate their carrying values due to the short- term nature of these assets and liabilities. We
have foreign currency rate exposure to exchange rate fluctuations worldwide, particularly with respect to the Canadian Dollar,
the-Chinese Yuan, the-Euro, the-Brazilian Real , British Pound and the-Argentine Peso. We anticipate that such foreign
currency exchange rate risk will remain a market risk exposure for the foreseeable future. We use a current market pricing model
to assess the changes in the value of our foreign currency derivatives used by us to hedge underlying exposure that primarily
consists of our non- functional- currency current assets and liabilities. The primary assumption used in these models is a
hypothetical 10 % weakening or strengthening of the U. S. dollar against all our currency exposures as of December 31, 2622
2023 . The gains and losses on the hedging instruments are largely offset by the gains and losses on the underlying assets,
liabilities or expected cash flows. As of December 31, 26222023 , the absolute notional amount of our outstanding foreign
exchange hedging instruments was $ 482-153 million. We have determined through such analyses, that a hypothetical 10 %
change in foreign currency exchange rates would have resulted in approximately ar-a $ H-1 million increase or decrease to the
fair value of our outstanding forward foreign currency exchange contracts, which would generally be offset by an opposite effect
on the underlying exposure being economically hedged. Argentina is considered to be a highly inflationary economy. As of
December 31, 2622-2023 , we had total net assets of § 2-1 million in Argentina. Our total market risk is influenced by a wide
variety of factors including the volatility present within the markets and the liquidity of the markets. There are certain
limitations inherent in the sensitivity analyses presented. While probably the most meaningful analysis, these “ shock tests ” are



constrained by several factors, including the necessity to conduct the analysis based on a single point in time and the inability to
include the complex market reactions that normally would arise from the market shifts modeled. Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data. The financial statements required to be filed pursuant to this Item 8 are appended to this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. A list of the financial statements filed herewith is found in Part IV, Item 15 commencing on page F- 1
hereof. Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. Item 9A. Controls and
Procedures. Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, with the participation of our principal executive and
principal financial officers, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in
Rule 13a- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act )) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our principal executive and principal financial officers have concluded that, as
of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective and operating to provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and to provide
reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management’
s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act. Our management
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2622-2023 . In making this
assessment, management used the criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {~€056-%5-. Based on this assessment, our management
believes that, as of December 31, 2622-2023 , our internal control over financial reporting is effective. Our independent
registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting, which is included within their audit opinion on page F- 2. There have been no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter to
which this report relates that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over
financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information. Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.
Not Applicable. PART III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. Except as otherwise disclosed in
Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10- K under the caption *“ Information About Our Executive Officers ”, the information
required by this item is included in the Proxy Statement for our 2623-2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
by reference in this report. Item 11. Executive Compensation. The information required by this item is included in the Proxy
Statement under the captions “ Compensation of Directors 7, ©“ 2023 Director Compensation Table ”, ¢ Executive
Compensation ” and “ Committees of the Board ”” and is incorporated by reference in this report. Item 12. Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. Equity compensation plan information as of
December 31, 2622-2023 : Plan CategoryNumber of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants
and RightsWeighted- Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and RightsNumber of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in the First Column) Equity
compensation plans approved by security holders2. 6-7 million (a) $ 55. 99-89 (b) 54 . 2-8 million (c) Equity compensation
plans not approved by security holdersNoneNot applicableNot applicable (a) Consists of shares issuable upon exercise of stock
settled stock options, restricted stock units, deferred stock units and performance vested restricted stock units at the maximum
achievement level under the 2018 Equity and Incentive Plan. (b) Consists of weighted- average exercise price of outstanding
stock settled stock options. (c¢) Consists of shares available for future grants under the 2018 Equity and Incentive Plan. The
remaining information required by this item is included in the Proxy Statement under the caption “ Ownership of Company
Stock ” and is incorporated by reference in this report. Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence. The information required by this item is included in the Proxy Statement under the captions “ Related Party
Transactions ” and *“ Governance of the Company ” and is incorporated by reference in this report. Item 14. Principal
Accountant Fees and Services. The information required by this item is included in the Proxy Statement under the captions “
Disclosure About Fees ”” and *“ Pre- Approval of Audit and Non- Audit Services ” and is incorporated by reference in this report.
PART IV Item 15. Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedules. #erm+5-(a) (1) Financial Statements. See Financial Statements
and Financial Statements Index commencing on page F- 1 hereof. Bem+5-(a) (3) Exhibits. See Exhibit Index commencing on
page G- 1 hereof. Item 16. Form 10- K Summary. SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized. WYNDHAM HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. By: /s / GEOFFREY A. BALLOTTIGeoffrey A.
BallottiPresident and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Date: February +6-15 , 2623-2024 Pursuant to the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. SignatureTitleDate /s / GEOFFREY A. BALLOTTIPresident,
Chief Executive Officer and DirectorFebruary +6-15 | 2623Geeffrey-2024Geoffrey A. Ballotti (Principal Executive Officer) /s /
MICHELE ALLENChief Financial OfficerFebruary +6-15 , 2623Miehete-2024Michele Allen (Principal Financial Officer) /s /
NICOLA ROSSIChief Accounting OfficerFebruary +6-15 , 2023Nteeta-2024Nicola Rossi (Principal Accounting Officer) /s /
STEPHEN P. HOLMESNon- Executive Chairman of the Board of DirectorsFebruary +6-15 , 2623 Stephen-2024Stephen P.
Holmes /s / MYRA J. BIBLOWITDirectorFebruary +6-15 , 2023Myra-2024Myra J. Biblowit /s / JAMES E.
BUCKMANDirectorFebruary +6-15 , 2623Jantes-2024James E. Buckman /s / BRUCE B. CHURCHILLDirectorFebruary +6
15 , 2623Bruee-2024Bruce B. Churchill /s / MUKUL DEORASDirectorFebruary +6-15 | 2023Muleat-2024Mukul Deoras /s /
RONALD L. NELSONDirectorFebruary +6-15 , 2623Renatd-2024Ronald L. Nelson /s /PAULINE D. E.
RICHARDSDirectorFebruary +6-15 , 2623 Pawutine-2024Pauline D. E. Richards INDEX TO ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED
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Consolidated Financial StatementsF- 9 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the
Board of Directors and Stockholders of Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting We
have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company ) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, the related consolidated statements of income dess)-, comprehensive
income €ossy, equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022-2023 , and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “-" financial statements 2" ). We also have audited the Company’ s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2022-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( * COSO ). In our opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2624, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2022-2023 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2822-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by COSO. Basis for Opinions The Company’ s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management' s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) ( *“ PCAOB ” ) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits
of the financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures to respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter
arising from the current- period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the
audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way
our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below,
providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Deferred Revenues
and Liability — Wyndham Rewards Loyalty Program — Refer to Notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements Critical Audit Matter
Description The Company operates the Wyndham Rewards loyalty program under which members earn points that can be
redeemed for free nights or other rewards. Wyndham Rewards members primarily accumulate points by staying at a
participating hotel, club resort, or vacation rental or by making purchases with their Wyndham Rewards co- branded credit card.
Revenues related to the issuance of loyalty points are recognized net of redemptions over time based upon loyalty point
redemption patterns, including an estimate of loyalty points that will expire or will never be redeemed. In addition, the Company
records a liability for estimated future redemption costs of outstanding loyalty points. The Company estimates the value of the
deferred revenues and related liability (collectively referred to as the  liability ) related to the loyalty program based on (i) an
estimated cost per point and (ii) an estimated redemption rate of the overall points earned, which is determined with the
assistance of a third- party actuarial firm through historical experience, current trends and the use of an actuarial analysis, and
includes an estimate of the points that will expire or will never be redeemed. Changes in the estimated cost per point and / or the



estimated redemption rate used in the determination of the liability could result in a material change to the amount of liability
reported. We identified the estimated cost per pomt and the estimated redemptlon rate u%ed in the determmatlon of the hablhty
as a critical audit matter because of the signifie &t

redemptionrate—Thisrequired-a-high degree of audltor Judgment and an 1ncrea§ed extent of effort 1nclud1ng the 1nvolvement of
our actuarial specialists, when performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’ s estimates and
assumptions related to the selection of the estimated cost per point and the estimated redemption rate. How the Critical Audit
Matter Was Addressed in the Audit Our audit procedures related to the estimated cost per point and estimated redemption rate
used in the determination of the liability included the following, among others: * We tested the effectiveness of the controls
related to the liability, including those over the estimate of the cost per point and the estimate of the redemption rate. « We
evaluated the assumptions used by management to estimate the cost per point by:  Testing the underlying data that served as the
inputs for the historical cost per point, including historical redemptions. e Discussing with management the assumptions used in
the Company’ s estimated future cost per point and evaluating the reasonableness by comparing the projections to (1) forecasted
information included in industry reports, and (2) trends in Wyndham Rewards member behavior. ¢ Comparing management’ s
prior- year estimated cost per point to actual redemptions during the current year to identify potential bias in the determination
of the liability. ¢ Evaluating whether the assumptions used by management to estimate the cost per point were consistent with
evidence obtained in other areas of the audit. « We evaluated the assumptions used by management to estimate the redemption
rate by:  Testing the underlying data that served as the inputs for the actuarial analysis of the estimated redemption rate,
including earnings and redemptions. ° Evaluating whether any approved changes to the Wyndham Rewards loyalty program
have been appropriately considered in the actuarial analysis of the estimated redemption rate. ¢ Comparing management’ s prior-
year estimated redemption rate to actual redemptions during the current year to identify potential bias in the determination of the
liability. « With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we developed a range of independent estimates of the liability,
utilizing the same underlying data tested above, and compared our estimates to management’ s estimates. / s / Deloitte & Touche
LLP New York, New York February +6-15 , 2023-2024 We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2017. F- 3
WYNDHAM HOTELS & RESORTS, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AE=0SS5)(In millions, except per
share amounts) Year Ended December 31, 202226242620Ne+-202320222021Net revenuesRoyalties and franchise fees $ 532 §
512 $ 461 $328-Marketing, reservation and Jeyatty544-loyalty578 544 468 370-Management and other fees57fees14 57 117 64
License and other fees100-fees112 100 79 84-Othert4t+-Other148 141 120 +64-Fce- related and other revenues!, 384 1, 354 1,
245 950€est-Cost reimbursementst44-reimbursements13 144 320 356-Net revenues], 397 1, 498 1, 565 ;366
ExpensesMarketing, reservation and toyatty524-loyaltyS69 524 450 419-Operatingt06-Operating94 106 132 +69-General and
administrativet23- administrative130 123 1 13 H6-Cost reimbursementst44-reimbursements13 144 320 356-Depreciation
and amertizatten77amortization76 77 95 Transaction- related 98-Gain-onassetsate-, net-netll (35> — Separation-
related] 1 3 2-tmpairments-Gain on asset sale , net — 6206Restraeturing-(35) — Impairments —34-TFransaetion—related-,
net — — 42-6 Total expenses940-- expenses894 940 1, 119 4346-Operating inreeme-incomeS03 ~oss)-558 446 (46)-Interest
expense, ret86-net102 80 93 H2-Early extinguishment of debt2-debt3 2 18 —Income ~Adessy-before income taxesd?6
taxes398 476 335 (58 -Provision for Hbenefitfrem)-income taxesi2t-taxes109 121 91 26)-Net income § 289 Adess)-S 355 §
244 $H32y-Earnings Adess)-per shareBasic $ 3. 43 $3. 93 $ 2. 61 $H-—42-Diluted3 .41 3 . 91 2. 60 H-—42)>-Sce Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. F- 4 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEGSSIn
millions) Year Ended December 31, 2022202420620Net-202320222021Net income $ 289 Adess)-$ 355 § 244 $-H323-Other
comprehensive income / (loss), net of taxForeign currency translation adjustments-adjustments12 (5) — 3-Unrealized (losses) /
gains ~dessesy-on cash flow hedges58--- hedges (31) 58 37 28)-Other comprehensive (loss) / income ~doss)-, net of tax53—--
tax (19) 53 37 €5)>Comprehensive income $ 270 Adess)-$ 408 $ 281 $H5-Sce Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
F-5 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2022Beeember-2023December 3 |, 2024-AssetsCurrent
2022AssetsCurrent asscts: Cash and cash equivalents $ 66 $ 161 $4H-Trade receivables, aet234— net241 246-234 Prepaid
expensesS9-expenses27 5159 Other current assets9H— assets39 91 98-Assets-hetdfor-sale—154-Total current assets545-726
assets373 545 Property and equipment, #et99+66-net88 99 Goodwilll, 525 1, 525 Trademarks, netl, 232 1, 202232 Franchise
agreements and other intangibles, net374-- net347 473-374 Other non- current assets348—- assets468 243-348 Total assets $ 4,
033 $ 4, 123 $4,269-Liabilities and stockholders’ equityCurrent liabilities: Current portion of long- term debt $ 37 $ 20 $2+
Accounts payable39-payable32 3+-39 Deferred revenaes83-revenues91 76-83 Accrued expenses and other current habtlities264
liabilities299 264 258Ltabiities-heldforsale—1FTotal current habtities406-liabilities459 397406 Long- term debt2, 164 2,
057 2;-063-Deferred income taxes345-taxes325 366-345 Deferred reventesté4-revenues167 +65-164 Other non- current
Habtitiest89-liabilities172 189 Total liabilities3, 287 3, 161 3;486-Commitments and contingencies (Note +5-14 )
Stockholders’ equity: Preferred stock, $ 0. 01 par value, authorized 6. 0 shares, none issued and outstanding — — Common
stock, $ 0. 01 par value, 102. 1 and 101. 6 and+0+—3-issued at December 31, 2023 and 2022-20221 and2624+1 Treasury
stock, at cost — 20. 7 and 15. 2 and-9—0-shares at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-(1, 361) (964 H5+9-) Additional paid-
in capitall, §99 1, 569 +:-543-Retained earnings3+8-earnings488 79-318 Accumulated other comprehensive ineome-incomel9 #
fHess)-38 G5 -Total stockholders’ equity962-- equity746 962 1,-689-Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $ 4, 033 $4, 123 §
4:269-See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. F- 6 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Year
Ended December 31 %92%%92—1%9%99pefaﬁﬂg—~——— 2023202220210perating activitiesNet income $ 289 ~ess)-$ 355 § 244 &
H32-Adjustments to reconcile net income ~dess)-to net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities: Depreciation and
amottization77-amortization76 77 95 Provision for 98-(Reeovery-of)-/ provistonfor-(recovery of) doubtful aceounts
accounts3 (2) 21 3FImpairments, net — — 6 209-Deferred income taxes ( 17) (39) (1 H23-) Stock- based eempensation33
compensation39 33 28 24-Gain on asset sale, net — (35) Loss on early extinguishment of debt2-debt3 2 18 —Net
change in assets and liabilities: Trade reeetvablest6—- receivables (10) 16 25 38)>-Prepaid expenses-expensesS (0) (9) 3-Other




current assets-assets37 (3) (45) +Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current fabiittest4-- liabilities (4) 14 39 (46
Deferred reventes22-revenues10 22 16 (54)y-Payments of development advance notes ( 73) (52) (32 3H3++) Proceeds from
development advance netes4-notesl 4 2 +Other, ret}3-netl7 13 19 #Net cash provided by operating aetivities399-activities376
399 426 6FInvesting activitiesProperty and equipment additions ( 37) (39) (37 3+33-) Acquisition of hotel brand — (44 ) —
Loan advances (29 ) — — Loan advanees-repayments — —— (H-Eeanrepayments—3-3 Proceeds from asset sales, net263
net — 263 — Other, net — (1) Net cash (used in) / provided by Hused-m)-investing aetivitiest79---- activities (66) 179
(34 ¥+ Financing activitiesProceeds from berrewings400-borrowings1 , 378 400 45 +-244-Principal payments on long- term
debt (1, 245) (404) (574 37#66-) Finance lease payments (5) (5) (5) Debt issuance costs ( 10) (4) — €H¥-Dividends to
stockholders ( 118) ( 116) (82 353-) Repurchases of common stock ( 393) (448) (107) £58)-Exercise of stock eptions4-- options
— 4 17 —Net share settlement of incentive equity awards (9) ( 11) (7) t¢9-Other;ret————Net cash €used in Hprovided-by
financing activities ( 402) ( 584) (713) 363-Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ( 3)
(4) (1) —Net (decrease) Hnerease-in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ( 95) ( 10) (322) 399-Cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash, beginning of perteedH-period161 171 493 94-Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 66 $
161 $ 171 $493-See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. F- 7 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Common Shares OutstandingCommon StockTreasuryStockAdditional Paid- in CapitalRetained Earnings / (Accumulated
Deficit) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) Total EquityBalance as of December 31, 264994202093 $ 1 $ (
363408 )5 1,488 5 113 8 (27)......

comprehensive income — — — — — 37 37 Dividends — — — — (83) — (83) Repurchase of common stock (2) — (110) —
— — (110) Net share settlement of incentive equity awards — — — (7) — — (7) Change in deferred compensation — — —
28 — — 28 Exercise of stock options — — — 17 — — 17 Issuance of shares for restricted stock units vestingl — — — — —
— Other — — (1) 1 — — — Balance as of December 31, 202192 1 (519) 1, 543 79 (15) 1, 089 Net income — — — — 355 —
355 Other comprehensive income — — — — — 53 53 Dividends — — — — (116) — (116) Repurchase of common stock (6)
— (445) — — — (445) Net share settlement of incentive equity awards — — — (11) — — (11) Change in deferred
compensation — — — 33 — — 33 Exercise of stock options — — — 4 — — 4 Balance as of December 31, 202286 $-1 &
(964) $-1, 569 $-318 $-38 $962 Net income — — — — 289 — 289 Other comprehensive loss — — — — — (2519) (2519
) Dividends — — — — (53119 ) — ( 53-119 ) Repurchase of common stock (+5) — (45-397 ) — — — (45-397 ) Net share

settlement of incentive equlty awards _ (4—9 )——(49) Change in deferred compensation — — — 24-38 — — 38 2+
; : A an Other — — — €1 3¥—— €1 Y Balance as of
December 31, %9%993—202381 $ 1 $ (498)—1 361) $1,599 $ 488 $ 19 $ 746 Sce Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. F-
8 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION Wyndham Hotels & Resorts,
Inc. (collectively with its consolidated subsidiaries, “ Wyndham Hotels ™ or the “ Company ) is a leading global hotel
franchisor, licensing its renowned hotel brands to hotel owners in over 95 countries around the world. The Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared on a stand- alone basis. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Company’
s assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows and all entities in which it has a controlling financial interest. The
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. In presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements, management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported and related disclosures. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and
available information. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. In management’ s opinion, the
Consolidated Financial Statements contain all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of annual results
reported. Business Description -Wyndham Hetel-Hotels > primary segment is hotel Franehising-franchising —teenses
which principally consists of licensing the Company’ s lodging brands and prevides-providing related services to third- party
hotel owners and others . In the first quarter of 2023, the Company changed the composition of its reportable segments to
reflect the recent changes in its Hotel Management segment due to the exit from the select- service management business,
the sale of its two owned hotels and the exit from substantially all of its U. S. full- service management business in 2022.
The remaining hotel management business, which is predominately the full- service international managed business, no
longer meets the quantitative thresholds to be considered a reportable segment and as a result, the Company has
aggregated, on a prospective basis, such management business within its Hotel Franchising segment . 2. SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Principles of Consolidation When evaluating an entity for consolidation, the
Company first determines whether an entity is within the scope of the guidance for consolidation of variable interest entities (*“
VIEs ”) and if it is deemed to be a VIE. If the entity is considered to be a VIE, the Company determines whether it would be
considered the entity’ s primary beneficiary. The Company consolidates those VIEs for which it has determined that it is the
primary beneficiary. The Company will consolidate an entity not deemed a VIE upon a determination that it has a controlling
financial interest. For entities where the Company does not have a controlling financial interest, the investments in such entities
are classified as available- for- sale securities or accounted for using the equity ereest-method, as appropriate. Use of Estimates
and Assumptions The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Although these estimates and assumptions are
based on the Company’ s knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the future, actual results may ultimately
differ from estimates and assumptions. Revenue Recognition The principal source of revenues from franchising hotels is
ongoing royalty, marketing and reservation fees, which are typically a percentage of gross room revenues of each franchised
hotel. For a more detailed description of revenue recognition see Note 3- Revenue Recognition. The Company operates the
Wyndham Rewards loyalty program. Loyalty members primarily accumulate points by staying in hotels operated under one of




the Company’ s brands. Wyndham Rewards members may also accumulate points by purchasing everyday services and
products with their Wyndham Rewards co- branded credit card. The Company earns revenue from these programs (i) when a
member stays at a participating hotel or club resort or vacation rental from a fee charged by the Company to the property owner
or manager, which is based upon a percentage of room revenues generated from such stay which the Company recognizes, net of
redemptions, over time based upon loyalty point redemption patterns, including an estimate of loyalty points that will expire or
will never be redeemed, and (ii) based upon a percentage of the member’ s spending on the Wyndham Rewards co- branded
credit cards for which revenues are paid to the Company by a third- party issuing bank which the Company primarily recognizes
over time based upon the redemption patterns of the loyalty points earned under the program, including an estimate of loyalty
points that will expire or will never be redeemed. As members earn points through the loyalty program, the Company records a
liability for the estimated future redemption costs, which is calculated based on (i) an estimated cost per point and (ii) an
estimated redemption rate of the overall points earned, which is determined with the assistance of a third- party actuarial firm
through historical experience, current trends and the use of an actuarial analysis. The Company estimates the value of the future
redemption obligations by projecting the timing of future point redemptions based on historical levels, including an estimate of
the points that will expire or never be redeemed, and an estimate of the points members will eventually redeem. The recorded
liability related to the program totals $ 117 million and $ 118 million and-$4+09-miHien-as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and
2024 respectively, of which § 75 million and $ 74 mithenand-$-6Fmillion, respectively, are included in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities, and $ 42 million and $ 44 mithenand-$42-million, respectively, are included in other non- current
liabilities on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers highly- liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Valuation of Accounts
Receivable The Company measures the expected credit losses of its receivables on a collective (pool) basis which aggregates
receivables with similar risk characteristics and uses historical collection attrition rates for petiods-rangingfrontrseven-te-tcn
years to estimate its expected credit losses. For a more detailed description of the valuation of accounts receivable see Note 5-
Accounts Receivable. Advertising Expense Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred. Advertising expenses, which
are primarily recorded within marketing and reservation expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income ~Fess)-, were $
127 million, $ 124 million ;-and $ 85 million and-$-5Fmitten-in 2023, 2022 -and 2021 and-2020-, respectively. Property and
Equipment Property and equipment (including leasehold improvements) are recorded at cost ;-and presented net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation, recorded as a component of depreciation and amortization on the Consolidated
Statements of Income ~Je8s)-, is calculated utilizing the straight- line method over the lesser of the lease terms or estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements, also recorded as a component of depreciation and
amortization, is calculated utilizing the straight- line method over the lesser of the estimated benefit period of the related assets
or the lease terms. Useful lives are generally up to 20 years for leasehold improvements and from three to seven years for
furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Company capitalizes the costs of software developed for internal use in accordance with
the guidance for accounting for costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use. Capitalization of software
developed for internal use commences during the development phase of the project. The Company amortizes software
developed or obtained for internal use on a straight- line basis over its estimated useful life, which is generally three to five
years. Such amortization commences when the software is substantially ready for its intended use. The net carrying value of
software developed or obtained for internal use was $ 47 million and $ 56 million and-$-52-millienas of December 31, 2023
and 2022 , respectively. Depreciation expense on capitalized software developed or obtained for F- 10 internal use was $
40 million, $ 37 million and $ 33 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively ,
which is reported within depreciation and amortization on the Consolidated Statements of Income . Goodwill is reviewed
annually (during the fourth quarter of each year subsequent to completing the Company’ s annual forecasting process), or more
frequently if circumstances indicate that the value of goodwill may be impaired, to the reporting units’ carrying values as
required by the guidance. This is done either by performing a qualitative assessment or utilizing the F—6-one- step impairment
test, with an impairment being recognized only where the fair value is less than carrying value. In any given year, the Company
can elect to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is in excess of its carrying value. If it is not more likely than not that the fair value is in excess of the carrying value, or the
Company elects to bypass the qualitative assessment, the Company would use the one- step impairment test. The qualitative
factors evaluated include macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial
performance, its historical share price as well as other industry- specific considerations. The Company performed its annual
quantitative assessment for impairment on each reporting unit’ s goodwill as of October 1, 2022-2023 and determined that no
impairments existed and that it was more likely than not that the fair value of its reporting units continued to substantially
exceed their carrying values. The Company also determines whether the carrying values of other indefinite- lived intangible
assets are impaired on an annual basis or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist. Application of the other
indefinite- lived intangible assets impairment test requires judgment in the assumptlons underlyingthe-approaeh-used to
determine fair value. The fair value of each other indefinite- lived intangible asset is estimated using a discounted cash flow
methodology. This analysis requires significant judgments, including estimation of future cash flows, which are dependent on
internal forecasts, discount rates and to a lesser extent, estimation of long- term rates of growth. The estimates used to calculate
the fair value of other indefinite- lived intangible assets change from year to year based on operating results and market
conditions. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and the other
indefinite- lived intangible assets’ impairment. The Company performed its annual quantitative assessment for impairment on
its indefinite- lived intangible assets as of October 1, 2622-2023 and determined that no impairments existed and that it was
more likely than not that the fair value of its indefinite- lived intangible assets continued to exceed their carrying values. The
Company also evaluates the recoverability of each of its definite- lived intangible assets by performing a qualitative assessment



to determine if circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. If such circumstances exist, the Company performs a
quantitative assessment by comparing the respective carrying value of the assets to the expected future cash flows, on an
undiscounted basis, to be generated from such assets. The Company also evaluates the recoverability of its other long- lived
assets, including property and equipment, if circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred, pursuant to guidance for
impairment or disposal of long- lived assets. This analysis is performed by comparing the respective carrying values of the
assets to the current and expected future cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, to be generated from such assets. If such analysis
indicates that the carrying value of these assets is not recoverable, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to fair value.
Business Combinations The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with the guidance for business
combinations and related literature. Accordingly, the Company allocates the purchase price of acquired companies to the
tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the date of purchase. The
difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. In determining the
fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination, the Company uses various recognized valuation
methods including present value modeling and referenced market values, where available. Further, the Company makes
assumptions within certain valuation techniques including discount rates and timing of future cash flows. Valuations are
performed by management or external valuation specialists under management’ s supervision, where appropriate. The Company
believes that the estimated fair values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on reasonable
assumptions that marketplace participants would use. However, such assumptions are inherently uncertain and actual results
could differ from those estimates. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using currently enacted tax rates. The
Company regularly reviews F- 11 its deferred tax assets to assess their potential realization and establishes a valuation
allowance for portions of such assets that the Company believes will not be ultimately realized. In performing this review, the
Company makes estimates and assumptions regarding projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the reversals of
existing temporary differences and the implementation of tax planning strategies. A change in these assumptions may increase
or decrease the Company’ s valuation allowance resulting in an increase or decrease in its effective tax rate, which could
materially impact the Company’ s results of operations. F—H-For tax positions the Company has taken or expects to take in a
tax return, it applies a more likely than not threshold, under which the Company must conclude a tax position is more likely
than not to be sustained, based on the technical merits, assuming that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information, in order to recognize or continue to recognize the benefit. In
determining the Company’ s provision for income taxes, the Company uses judgment, reflecting its estimates and assumptions,
in applying the more likely than not threshold. The Company accounts for the global intangible low- taxed income provisions
under the period cost method. Stock- Based Compensation In accordance with the guidance for stock- based compensation, the
Company measures all employee stock- based compensation awards using a fair value method and records the related expense in
its Consolidated Statements of Income ~d=ess)-. The Company recognizes the cost of stock- based compensation awards to
employees as they provide services , and the expense is recognized ratably over the requisite service period. The requisite
service period is the period during which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for an award. Forfeitures are
recorded upon the actual employee termination for each outstanding grant. Derivative Instruments The Company uses derivative
instruments as part of its overall strategy to manage its exposure to market risks primarily associated with fluctuations in interest
rates and currency exchange rates. As a matter of policy, the Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative
purposes. All derivatives are recorded at fair value as either assets or liabilities. Changes in fair value of derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments and of derivatives designated as fair value hedging instruments are recognized currently in
operating income ~dessy-and interest expense, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income ~J=ess)-, based upon the nature of
the hedged item. The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments is
recorded as a component of other comprehensive income ~dessy- The ineffective portion is reported immediately in earnings as
a component of operating or interest expense, based upon the nature of the hedged item. Amounts included in other
comprehensive income A~Jess)-are reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged item affects earnings.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (“ AOCI ) (loss) consists of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments
and unrealized gains or losses on the Company’ s cash flow hedges. Foreign currency translation adjustments exclude income
taxes related to indefinite investments in foreign subsidiaries. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries having non- U. S.-
dollar functional currencies are translated at exchange rates at the balance sheet dates. Revenues and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates during the periods presented. The gains or losses resulting from translating foreign currency financial
statements into U. S. dollars, net of hedging gains or losses and taxes, are included in AOCI on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB
”) issued an accounting update, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures,
which is intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures
about significant segment expenses. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The guidance is to be
applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Upon transition, the segment expense
categories and amounts disclosed in the prior periods should be based on the significant segment expense categories
identified and disclosed in the period of adoption. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of adopting this new
guidance on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The Company will adopt the guidance on
January 1, 2024, as required. F- 12 In December 2023, the FASB issued an accounting update, Income Taxes (Topic
740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which modifies the rules on income tax disclosures to require entities to
disclose (1) specific categories in the rate reconciliation, (2) the income or loss from continuing operations before income



tax expense or benefit (separated between domestic and foreign) and (3) income tax expense or benefit from continuing
operations (separated by federal, state and foreign). This update also requires entities to disclose their income tax
payments to international, federal, state and local jurisdictions, among other changes. The guidance is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted for annual financial statements that have
not yet been issued or made available for issuance. This update should be applied on a prospective basis, but
retrospective application is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this new
guidance on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The Company will adopt the guidance on
January 1, 2025, as required . Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes.
On December 18, 2019, the FASB issued guidance which simplifies the accounting standards for income taxes. The amendment
clarifies and simplifies aspects of the accounting for income taxes to help promote consistent application of GAAP by
eliminating certain exceptions to the general principles of ASC 740, Income Taxes. This guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020 and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company
adopted the guidance on January 1, 2021, as required. There was no material impact on the Company’ s Consolidated Financial
Statements and related dlsclosures asa result of adoptm;: tlns new Stcln(ldld —Refemme—R&te—Refefm—F&eﬂﬂ&ﬁefref—t-he—Effeets

of revenues from franchising hotels is ongoing royalty fees, which are typlcqlly a pelcentdge of gross room revenues of each
franchised hotel. The Company recognizes royalty fee revenues as and when the underlying sales occur. The Company also
receives non- refundable initial franchise fees, which are recognized as revenues over the initial non- cancellable period of the
franchise agreement, commencing when all material services or conditions have been substantially performed. This occurs when
a hotel opens for business in the Company’ s system or when a franchise agreement is terminated after it has been determined
that the hotel will not open. The Company’ s standard franchise agreement typically has a term of 10 to 20 years. Additionally,
the Company recognizes occupancy taxes on a net basis. The Company’ s franchise agreements also require the payment of
marketing and reservation fees, which are intended to reimburse the Company for expenses associated with operating an
international, centralized reservation system, e- commerce channels such as the Company’ s brand. com websites, as well as
access to third- party distribution channels, such as online travel agents, advertising and marketing programs, global sales
efforts, operations support, training and other related services. Marketing and reservation fees are recognized as revenue when
the underlying sales occur. The Adtheunghthe-Company is generally contractually obligated to spend the marketing and
reservation fees it collects from franchisees, in accordance with the franchise agreements ;. marketing-Marketing and
reservations costs are expensed as incurred , which may not occur in the same period as the recognition of marketing and
reservation revenues . The Company earns revenues from its Wyndham Rewards loyalty program when a member stays at a
participating hotel, club resort or vacation rental. These revenues are derived from a fee the Company charges a franchised or
managed hotel based upon a percentage of room revenues generated from a Wyndham Rewards member’ s stay. These fees are
to reimburse the Company for expenses associated with member redemptions and activities that are related to the administering
and marketing of the program. Revenues related to the loyalty program represent variable consideration and are recognized net
of redemptions over time based upon loyalty point redempt1on patterns which include an estimate of loyalty pomts that will
expire or will never be redeemed. A o 8 v




ended—Beeember—}-l—Z’-@%@—The Company earns revenue from its Wyndham Reward% co- branded eredrt Card program, Wthh is
primarily generated by cardholder spending and the enrollment of new cardholders. The advance payments received under the
program are recognized as a contract liability. The program primarily contains two performance obligations: (i) brand
performance F—3-services, for which revenue is recognized over the contract term on a straight- line basis, and (ii) issuance and
redemption of loyalty points, for which revenue is recognized over time based upon the redemption patterns of the loyalty points
earned under the program, including an estimate of loyalty points that will expire or will never be redeemed. The Company
provrdeq management services for certain international hoteli under management contracts —Wﬂatelﬁreffe%hetel-eWﬁefs-&H—t-he

term of 10 to 20 years. The Company s management fee% are eomprlsed ofbage fees, which are typreally a specified pereentage
of gross revenues from hotel operations, and, in some cases, incentive fees, which are typically a specified percentage of a hotel’
s gross operating profit. The base fees are recognized when the underlying sales occur and the management services are
performed. Incentive fees are recognized when F- 13 determinable, which is when the Company has met hotel operating
performance metrics and the Company has determined that a significant reversal of revenues recognized will not occur. The
Company also recognizes reimbursable payroll costs for operational employees and other reimbursable costs at certain of the
Company’ s managed hotels as revenue. Although these costs are funded by hotel owners, accounting gurdance requrres the
Company to report these fees on a gross basis as both revenues and expenses. A rey-th reeo e y
taxes-onanetbasis—The Company recognizes license and other revenues from Wyndham Worldwrde (- former Parent ”) now
known as Travel Leisure Co., for use of the “ Wyndham ” trademark and certain other trademarks. In addition, the Company
earned revenues from its previously two owned hotels (sold in 2022), which consisted primarily of (i) gross room rentals, (ii)
food and beverage services and (iii) on- site spa, casino, golf and shop revenues. These revenues were recognized upon the
completion of services. Deferred revenues, or contract liabilities, generally represent payments or consideration received in
advance for goods or services that the Company has not yet provided to the customer. Deferred revenues as of December 31,
2023 and 2022 and-Peeember3+H202+4-are as follows: December 31, 2622Deeember-2023December 3 |, 2024 Deferred
2022Deferred initial franchise fee revenues $ 145 § 143 $345-Deferred loyalty program revenues85-revenues95 76-85
Deferred co- branded credit card program revenues3 — Deferred other reventest9-revenuesl1544-19 Total $ 258 $ 247 §
235-Deferred initial franchise fees represent payments received in advance from prospective franchisees upon the signing of a
franchise agreement and are generally recognized to revenue within 13 years. Deferred loyalty revenues represent the portion of
loyalty program fees charged to franchisees, net of redemption costs, that have been deferred and will be recognized over time
based upon loyalty point redemption patterns. Deferred co- branded credit card program revenue represents payments
received in advance from the Company’ s co- branded credit card partners, primarily for card member activity, which is
typically recognized within one year. Performance Obligations A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer
a distinct good or service to a customer. The consideration received from a customer is allocated to each distinct performance
obligation and recognrzed as revenue when, or as, each performance obligation is satisfied. The following table summarizes the
Company’ s remaining performance obligations for the years set forth below: 202320242025 ThereafterTotalnitial—-
202420252026Thereafter Totallnitial franchise fee revenues $45-17 $ 8 $ 7 $ 113 $ 443-145 Loyalty programfevenuesé‘l-
revenues61 24+-8-23 9 2 85-95 Co- branded credit card program revenues3 — — — 3 Other reventest4-revenuesl0 | +3-49
— 415 Total $83-91 $36-32 § 16 $ H8-119 $ 247258 Disaggregation of Net Revenues F- 14 Disaggregation-of Net
Reventres-The table below presents a disaggregation of the Company’ s net revenues from contracts with customers by major
services and products for each of the Company’ s segments: Year Ended December 3 1, 262226242020Heotel----
202320222021Hotel FranchisingRoyalties-Franchising (a) Royalties and franchise fees $ 532 $ 496 § 436 $3089-Marketing,
reservation and teyalty543-loyaltyS78 543 467 369-Management fees14 — — License and other feest06-fees112 100 79 84
Cost reimbursements13 — — Othert38---- Other (b) 148 138 117 +64+-Total Hotel Franchisingl, 397 1, 277 1, 099 863-Hotel
ManagementRoyalties and franchise feest6-feesn / al6 25 +9-Marketing, reservation and teyattytloyaltyn +/ al | Owned
hotel reventes42-revenuesn / a42 82 37+-Management feest5-feesn / al5 35 27-Cost reimbursementsi44-reimbursementsn /
ald4 320 350-Other3-Othern 3-/ a3 3 Total Hotel Management22+-Managementn / a221 466 437Net revenues $ 1,397 $ 1,
498 $ 1, 565 $+ (a) For 2023 , 366-the Hotel Franchising segment includes the former Hotel
Management segment, which is primarily comprised of the Company' s remaining international full- service managed
business. (b) The Company’ s other revenues are primarily related to revenues from its co- branded credit card program
and property management systems. Capitalized Contract Costs The Company incurs certain direct and incremental sales
commissions costs in order to obtain hotel franchise and management contracts. Such costs are capitalized and subsequently
amortized beginning upon hotel opening over the first non- cancellable period of the agreement. In the event an agreement is
terminated prior to the end of the first non- cancellable period, any unamortized cost is immediately expensed. In addition, the
Company also capitalizes costs associated with the sale and installation of property management systems to its franchisees,
which are amortized over the remaining non- cancellable period of the franchise agreement. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022
and-DPeeember 34,2024 capitalized contract costs were $ 68 million and $ 34 million and-$33-millien-, reipeetlvely, of which
$ 4 million for both periods was and-$-5-mithtonrespeetivelywere-included in other current assets, and $ 64 million and $ 30

mitienand-$28-million, respectively, were included in other non- current assets on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance




Sheets. In addition, as of December 31, 2022, capitalized contract costs of $ 27 million were included in prepaid expenses
on the Company' s Consolidated Balance Sheet. - 15 4. EARNINGS PER SHARE The computation of basic and diluted
earnings ~dessyper share (“ EPS ) is based on net income ~dessj-divided by the basic weighted average number of common
shares and diluted weighted average number of common shares, respectively. The following table sets forth the computation of
basic and diluted EPS (in millions, except per- share data) for the years ended December 3 1: 202226242626Net
202320222021Net income $ 289 Adess)-$ 355 $ 244 $-H323Basic weighted average shares eutstanding98-outstanding84 . 4
90 . 3 93—4-93. 4 Stock options and restricted stock units (“ RSUs ) (a) 0. 5 0. 5—0. 5 Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding 84. 9 90. 8 93. 9 934-Earnings ~dess}per share: Basic $3.43$3.93 $§ 2. 61 $--42Diluted3 . 413 .91 2. 60 &=
42y Dividends: Cash dividends declared per share $ 1. 40 $ 1. 28 $ 0. 88 $-6-56-Aggregate dividends paid to stockholders $ 118
$ 116 $ 82 $53-(a) Due-Diluted shares outstanding exclude shares related to stock options which were immaterial in 2023
and 0. 4 million in 2022. Diluted shares outstanding exclude shares related to RSUs of 0. 4 million and 0. 2 million for
2023 and 2022, respectively. Such options and RSUs were excluded as t-he—thelr effect would have been anti- dllutlve

under effeet—resu-}ﬁﬂg—freﬂa—the treasury stock method

table summarizes stock repurcha@e acthlty under the current stock repurcha@e program (1n mllllom except per 91’12116 data):
SharesCostAverage Price Per ShareAs of January+-December 31 , 20249-202215 . 6-2 $ 549-964 $ 5763 . 55-32 For the twelve
months ended December 31, 2022620235 . 2445745 397 72 . 76-25 As of December 31, 262245202320 . 2-7 $ 964-1, 361 $
63-65 . 32-69 The Company had $ 436-443 million of remaining availability under its program as of December 31, 20222023 .

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Allowance for Doubtful Accounts The Company generates trade receivables in the ordinary
course of its bu%lnei% and pr0V1de§ for e%tlmated bad debts on iuch recelvableg The Company adepfed—t-he—new—aeeetmt—mg

collectlve (pool) ba@l@ which aggregate% receivables Wlth qlmllar risk characterlitlc% and uses lll§t0r1C211 collectlon attrition ratei
or pertods-ranging-from-sevente-ten years to estimate its expected credit losses. As such, the Company measures the expected
credlt losses of its receivables by segment and geographical area. The BeginningFantary+52626;the-Company provides an
estimate of expected credit losses for its receivables immediately upon origination or acquisition and may adjust this estimate in
subsequent reporting periods as required. When the Company determines that an account is not collectible, the account is
written- off to the allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company also considers whether the historical economic conditions are
comparable to current economic conditions. If current or expected future conditions differ from the conditions in effect when
the historical experience was generated, the Company would adjust the allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect the expected
effects of the current environment on the collectability of the Company’ s trade receivables which may be material. F- 16 The
following table sets forth the activity in the Company’ s allowance for doubtful accounts on trade accounts receivables for the
years ended: December 31, 2023December 31 2022December 31 %G%I-Beeember%HG%Begmmng—ZﬂllBegmmng balance
$64 $ 81 $ 72Provision for A setraccounting standa e /
(recovery of) doubtful aeeeunts—accounts3 (2) 2—1—3—7—Bad—~ 21Bad debt write- offs (7) (15) (12324 Endlng balance $ 60 $ 64
$ 81 $F2-Notes Receivable As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, the Company had notes receivable of $ 28 million
and $ 3 million ard-$4-mittten-, respectively, net of &5 1 million and-$3-mithen-allowance for both years , respeetively-which
is primarily included in other non- current assets on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheets . For a significant
portion of such notes receivable, the Company has received persenat-guarantees from the owners of these hotels. In addition, the
Company had $ 15 million and $ 12 million ard-$26-mtHien-of notes receivable , which is included in other current assets
on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and202+-, respectively, which are fully
offset by a corresponding amount in deferred revenues. 6. HOTEL BRAND ACQUISITION During September 2022, the
Company completed the acquisition of the Vienna House hotel brand for a total purchase price of $ 44 million. Vienna House’ s
portfolio consisted of 41 franchised hotels across Europe, predominantly in Germany. This acquisition enables the Company to
grow the Vienna House brand by leveraging its global scale and franchise expertise and is consistent with the Company’ s
strategy to expand its brand portfolio and total system size. The purchase price was allocated based on the fair value of the
indefinite lived trademark and franchise agreements acquired, which have a 20 year life. The following table summarizes the
fair value of the assets acquired in connection with Wyndham' s acquisition of Vienna House: AmountFranchise agreements $
16 Trademark28Total assets acquired $ 44 This asset acquisition was assigned to the Company’ s Hotel Franchising segment.
The results of operations of Vienna House have been included in the Consolidated Statements of Income since its date of
acquisition. Such results were not material to the Company' s results of operations for the three months and year ended

December 31, 2022. 477 ~ASSEFSAND-HABHHHES HEED FOR-SALE During-the-fourth-quarterof 2624-the

AND EQUIPMENT NET Plopelty and equlpment net con%l%ted of: As ofDecember 31 %92—2—2—92—H:easehe-l-d=
20232022Leasehold improvements30-improvements29 30 Capitalized seftware296-software258 326-290 Furniture, fixtures
and equipment24 32-24 Finance leases64 64 Construction in preg-ress9—pr0gressl3 29 388 417 464—Le§§ Accumulated
depreetation318-depreciation300358-318 $ 88 $ 99 6 g




Company recorded deprecratron expense or $ 49 mllllon, $ 46 mrIIron and $ 57 mrIIron —aﬁd—$—6—1—m-1-1-1-ten—durmg 2023 2022 5
and 2021 and-2026-, respectively, related to property and equipment. F- +89-17 8 . INTANGIBLE ASSETS Intangible assets
conmted of the rollowmg December 31, %922-Beeembe1e2023December 31, 202+6re55-2022Gross Carrying AmountGross
W it rrela Net-Carrying AmountGoodwill $ 1, 525 $45-539-$44-$ 1, 525
December 31 %92—2—9eeember2023December 31 %G%IG-fess—ZOZZGross Carrying AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet
Carrying AmountGross Carrying AmountAccumuIated AmortizationNet Carrying AmountUnamortized intangible assets:
Trademarks $ 1, 232 $ 1, 231 $4-20+-Amortized intangible assets: Franchise agreements $ 913 $ 567 $ 346 $ 913 § 541 $ 372
$-895-$-513-$382-Management agreementst5— agreementsl 1 — 15 14 | 4354494+ Frademarkst— Trademarks — — |

—2—1—1 Otherl —11—1 —$ 915 $ 568 $347 $ 930 $ 555 $ 375 $+933—$é§9—$—444—6a9—9ue+0—t-he—s&e—ef—ﬁs+we—ewne&

ba-Ia-nees—The change% n the carrymg amount of goodwrll by reportmg unlt are as follows: Balance as or -J-&ﬂuafy—l—December
31, 26212022-and-202+-Adjustments-2021Adjustments to GoodwillBalance as of December 31, 2022Hetet-2023Hotel
Franchising $ 1,441 $ — $ 1, 441 Hotel Management84 — 84 Total $ 1, 525§ —$ 1, 525 Amortrzatron expense relating to
amortizable intangible assets was as follows for the years ended December 31: %922%92—1%9%9&&1&%
202320222021Franchise agreements $ 26 $ 2426 $ 27 Management agreementsS-agreementsl 5 11 -1-9—TotaI (a)$278315%
38 $37-(a) Included as a component of depreciation and amortization on the Consolidated Statements of Income ~Jess}-. Based
on the Company’ s amortizable intangible assets as of December 31, 2622-2023 , the Company expects related amortization
expense as follows: Ameunt2023-Amount2024 $ 27 2820242702527 202626 202726 202825 F49-In March 2022, the
Company completed the exit of its select- service hotel management business and received an $ 84 million termination fee,
which under the terms of the agreement with CorePoint Lodging (“ CPLG ”) effectively resulted in the sale of the rights to the
management contracts that were acquired as part of the La Quinta Holdings purchase in 2018. The termination fee proceeds
were completely offset by the write- off of the remaining balance of the related hotel F- 18 management contract intangible
asset and thus resulted in a full recovery of such asset. The proceeds were reported in proceeds from asset sales, net on the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The franchise agreements for these hotels remained in place at their stated fee structure.

MARKETING AND RESERVATION ACTIVITIES Royaltle@ and franchlse Iee revenues on the Con@ohdated Statement% of
Income Hdessy-include initial franchise fees of $ 16 million, $ 15 million ;-and $ 14 million ard-$26-miien-in 2023, 2022 5
and 2021 and-2028-, respectively. In accordance with its franchise agreements, the Company is generally contractually
obligated to expend the marketing and reservation fees it collects from franchisees for the operation of an international,
centralized, brand- specific reservation system and for marketing purposes such as advertising, promotional and co- marketing
programs, and training for the respective franchisees. Development Advance Notes The Company may, at its discretion, provide
development advance notes to certain franchisees / hotel owners in order to assist them in converting to one of its Zbrands, in
building a new hotel to be flagged under one of its Zbrands or in assisting in other franchisee expansion efforts. Provided the
franchisee / hotel owner is in compliance with the terms of the franchise #meanagement-agreement, all or a portion of the
development advance notes may be forgiven by the Company over the period of the franchise ~management-agreement.
Otherwise, the related principal is due and payable to the Company. In certain instances, the Company may earn interest on
unpaid franchisee development advance notes. The Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements include the following with
respect to development advances: Consolidated Balance Sheets: As of December 31, 202226240ther-202320220ther non-
current assets $ 228 § 144 During 2023, the Company made a non- cash reclass of $ +68-29 million to development advance
notes in connection with the execution of franchise agreements, of which $ 25 million was from other current assets and $
4 million was from other non- current assets. Consolidated Statements of Income ~dess)~ Year Ended December 31,
202220242020Fergiveness—-- 202320222021Forgiveness of notes (a) $ 158 12 $ 11 $9-Bad debt expense related to notes1 |
1 (a) Amounts are recorded as a reduction of royalties and franchise fees and marketing, reservation and loyalty revenues on the
Consolidated Statements of Income . - 26-H-19 10 . ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of: As of December 31, 20222024Aeerued-20232022Accrued loyalty
program liabilities (Note 2) $ 74-75 § 67Aeerued-payrottandrelatedexpenses73-74 Accrued taxes payable38-payable64 33-38
Accrued payroll and related expenses57 73 Accrued self- insurance fabiities26-liabilities21 25-Aeerted-marketing
expensest0—+-20 Due to former Parent (Note 18) 20 3 Accrued professional expensesto-expenses19 9-10 Accrued interestd
interest10 9 Accrued legal settlements (Note +5-14 ) 7 8 6-Accrued marketing expenses4 10 Operating lease liabilities (Note

26-19 ) 4 4 Due-to-formerParent-(Note19)3-5-Othert5-Otherl8 15 $ 299 $ 264 11 $25842- INCOME TAXES The income



tax provision Hbenefi-consists of the following: Year Ended December 3 1, 202220242620€CurrentFederal-—---
202320222021CurrentFederal $ 72 $ 116 § 65 Statel4 22 $+(5)-State22-16 2)Foreign22-Foreign40 22 11 4-126 160 92 3>
DeferredFederal ( 6) (30) (5) (H0y-State (4) (9) — 8-Foreign (7) — 4 (517 ) (39) (1 3H23-) Provision for Hbenefitfrony
income taxes $ 109 $ 121 $ 91 $26)-Pretax income ~doss)}-for domestic and foreign operations consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31, 2622202420206Dentestie—--- 202320222021Domestic $ 332 $ 432 § 312 $-(H3)Fereignd4d
Foreign66 44 23 (45)-Pretax income $ 398 ~dess)-$ 476 § 335 $58)-F- 24-20 Deferred Taxes Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are comprised of the following: As of December 31, 20222024 Deferred---- 20232022Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued liabilities and deferred revenues $ 95 $ 85 $F7#-Tax credits (a) 79 7 Other comprehensive income and ethert4-other13
14 Provision for doubtful aeeeunts7accounts8 +6-7 Net operating loss carryforward (b) 23 22 24-Valuation allowance (c) (23) (
2723 ) Deferred income tax assetsH2-- assets125 +02-112 Deferred income tax liabilities: Depreciation and amertizationd++
amortization412 444-417 Other comprehensive income and other35+9-other26 35 Deferred income tax Habilities452
liabilities438 463-452 Net deferred income tax liabilities $ 313 $ 340 $363+-Reported in: Other non- current assets $ 512 § 5
Deferred income taxes345-taxes325 366-345 Net deferred income tax liabilities $ 313 § 340 $364(a) As of December 31, 2622
2023 , the Company had $ 49 million of foreign tax credits. The foreign tax credits expire no later than 2632-2033 . (b) As of
December 31, 28222023 , the Company’ s net operating loss carryforwards primarily relate to state net operating losses, which
are due to expire at various dates, but no later than 20422043 . (c) The valuation allowance of $ 23 million at-as ef December
31,2022-2023 relates to net operating loss carryforwards, certain deferred tax assets and foreign tax credits of $ +4-12 million, $
2 million and $ 79 million, respectively. The valuation allowance of $§ 2723 million at-as of December 31, 2024-2022 relates to
net operating loss carryforwards, certain deferred tax assets and foreign tax credits of $ +7-14 million, $ 6-2 million and $ 4-7
million, respectively. The valuation allowance will be reduced when and if the Company determines it is more likely than not
that the related deferred income tax assets will be realized. Although the one- time mandatory deemed repatriation tax during
2017 and the territorial tax system created as a result of U. S. tax reform generally eliminate U. S. federal income taxes on
dividends from foreign subsidiaries, the Company continues to assert that all of the undistributed foreign earnings of $ 48-84
million will be reinvested indefinitely as of December 31, 2822-2023 . In the event the Company determines not to continue to
assert that all or part of its undistributed foreign earnings are permanently reinvested, such a determination in the future could
result in the accrual and payment of additional foreign withholding taxes and U. S. taxes on currency transaction gains and
losses, the determination of which is not practicable due to the complexities associated with the hypothetical calculation. F22
The Company’ s effective income tax rate differs from the U. S. federal statutory rate as follows for the years ended December
31:262220242620Federal-—--- 202320222021Federal statutory rate21. 0 % 21. 0 % 21. 0 % State and local income taxes, net of
federal tax benefits2. § 2. 8 3. 1 5—5-Taxes on foreign operations at rates different than U. S. federal statutory ratestrates2 . 6 1
.9 2. 0-Taxes on foreign income, net of tax credits0. 3 0. 4 0. 3 +2-Nondeductible executive eompensationd
compensationl . 2 0 . 7 0. 7 -9 Noendeduetible-goodwilHmpairment————8)-Foreign- derived intangible income (0. 8) (0.
5) (0. 2) Valuation allowances0. 1 (0. 6) 0. 5 Other0. 5 (0. 3) (0. 2 ¥aluationalewanees0—6-) 27 6552 Other (0362
- 4 3% 25.4 % 27. 2 % F- 21 +6-5%The effective income tax rate for 2023, 2022 ;-and 202 | and2026-differs from the U.
S. Federal income tax rate of 21 % prlmarlly due to state taxes and U. S. and forelgn taxes, 1nclud1ng w1thh01d1ng taxes on the
Company s 1nternat10nal operatlon% - z effeetive-tax—rate-was P rela g

summarizes the acthlty related to the Company s unrecognlzed tax beneﬁt% as of December 31 %92—2%92—1—29%98eg&}mﬁg—~
202320222021Beginning balance $ 8 $ 7 $ 9 $H-Increases related to tax positions taken during a prior perted4-period7 4 | —
Increases related to tax positions taken during the current perted-period2 — — +Decreases related to settlements with taxing
authorities —(2) — — Decreases as a result of a lapse of the applicable statute of limitations ( 4) ( 3) (2 H3-) Decreases related
to tax positions taken during a prior period — — (1) —Ending balance $ 11 $ 8 $ 7 $9-The gross amount of the unrecognized
tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the Company’ s effective tax rate was $ 11 million, $ 8 million ;-and $ 7 million
and-$9-mithteras of December 31, 2023, 2022 ;and 2021 ard-2620-, respectively. The Company recorded both accrued interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of provision for Aberefit-from)-income taxes on the
Consolidated Statements of Income ~AJ=ess)}- The amount of potential penalties and interest related to these unrecognized tax
benefits recorded in the provision for income taxes svas-were immaterial during 2023, 2022 and 2021 and-abenefitef$+
mitenduring 2020~ The Company had a liability for potential penalties of § 1 million as of December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and
2021 and2026-, and potential interest of $ 3 million as of December 31, 2023 and $ 2 million as of December 31, 2022 ;-and
2021 and2026-. Such liabilities are reported as a component of accrued expenieq and other current habllmeq and other non-
current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company dees et-th ;
stgm—ﬁeaﬁ&ye’v‘effhe—ne*H—Z—meﬁfhs—"Phe-Gempaﬂyﬁle% income tax returni in the U. S. federal and state _]url%dlCthl’B as Well
as in foreign jurisdictions. With certain exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal income tax examinations for
years prior to 2849-2020 . The 20472018 through 2024-2022 tax years generally remain subject to examination by many state
tax authorities. In significant foreign jurisdictions, the 2645-2016 through the 26242022 tax years generally remain subject to
examination by their respective tax authorities. The statute of limitations is scheduled to expire and current open examinations
are expected to be resolved within 12 months of the reporting date in certain taxing jurisdictions, and the Company therefore
believes that it is reasonably possible that the total amount of its unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by $ 4-8 million to $ 5
9 million , inclusive of interest and penalties . The Company made cash income tax payments, net of refunds, of $ 95 million,

$ 123 m11110n d-ttftﬂg—}}92—2—and $1 14 mllhon durlng 2023 2022 and 2021 —'Phe-eempaﬂy—feeeﬁfed-meeme—&ﬁeftmds—ﬂet—ef

Sheets-. On Auguqt 16, 2022, the Inflation Reductlon Act (“ IRA ”) was %1gned into law in the Unlted State% The ee-na-paﬂy



does-IRA did not eurrentty-expeetthe HRAte-have a material impact on its financial results, including on its annual estimated
effective tax rate or liquidity. F- 234322 12 . LONG- TERM DEBT AND BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS The Company’
s indebtedness consisted of: As of December 31, 2622262H-o1g-20232022Long - term debt: (a) AmountWeighted Average
Rate (b) AmountWeighted Average Rate (b) $ 750 million revolving credit facility (due April 2027) $ —1607.30 % $ — $
400 million term loan A (due April 2027) 384 6. 82 % 399 5. 92 % —=§ 1. 6 billion term loan B (due May 2025) — 1, 139 3. 70
% $ 1 7541+3-. 671 billion term loan B (due May 2030) 1, 123 4. 10 % — $ 500 million 4. 375 % senior unsecured notes (due
August 2028) 494-495 4. 38 9% 493494 4. 38 % Finance leases45-leases39 4. 50 % 5645 4. 50 % Total long- term debt2, 201 4.
77 % 2,077 2,-884-3. 79 % Less: Current portion of long- term debt20-24+-debt37 20 Long- term debt $ 2, 164 $ 2, 057 $2,-0863
(a) The carrying amount of the term tean-loans and senior unsecured notes are net of deferred debt issuance costs of $ 16
million and $ |1 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The carrying amount of the term loan B is net of
unamortized discounts of $ +5-5 million as of December 31, 2622-2023 and262+respeetively-. (b) Weighted average interest
rate-rates are based on the stated interest rate for the ycar- end-batanees;-to- date periods and ineluding-include the effects
from hedging. Maturities and Capacity The Company’ s outstanding debt as of December 31, 2022-2023 matures as follows:
Long- Term DebtWithin 1 year § 20-37 Between | and 2 years26-years45 Between 2 and 3 yearst-years48 - +73-Between 3 and
4 sears37-years485 Between 4 and 5 years343-years514 Thereafter508-Thereafterl , 072 Total § 2, 877201 As of December
31, 2022-2023 , the available capacity under the Company’ s revolving credit facility was as follows: Revolving Credit
FacilityTotal capacity $ 750 Less: Borrowings160 Less: Letters of credit9 Available capacity $ 744581 $ 750 million
Revolving Credit Facility PuringMay2648-In April 2022 , the Company entered into afr-the Third Amendment to the Credit
agreement-Agreement for-a-dated May 30, 2018 (“ Third Amendment ) which amended its original five- year $ 750
million revelvingeredit-faeility-expiringtn-Mayrevolver to extend the term to April 2623-2027 . This-faeitity- The
benchmark rate applicable to the revolver has changed from LIBOR to Secured Overnight Funding Rate (“ SOFR ”).
The revolver is subject to an interest rate per-anntm—equal to, at the Company’ s option, either (i) a base rate plus a margin
ranging from 0. 50 % to 1. 00 % or HFBOR-(ii) SOFR, plus a margin ranging from 1. 50 % to 2. 00 % and an additional 0. 10
% SOFR adjustment . in cither case based F- 23 upon the total leverage ratio of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries.
addition-The revolver is subject to the same prepayment provisions and covenants applicable to the previous revolver.

Durmg 2023 the C ompany wrl-l—pay—a—eeﬂamﬁmeﬁt—fee—borrowed $ 160 mllllon, net of repayments, on the-anused-portion-of

e-its revolving credit

for a new senior secured term loan A facility (“ Term Loan A ) in an aégregate prmClpal dmount of ‘{> 400 m11110n maturing in
April 2027, the proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of the existing Term Loan B facility in 2022 . The Term Loan A
is subject to an interest rate equal to, at the Company’ s option, either (i) a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0. 50 % to 1. 00
% or (ii) SOFR, plus a margin ranging from 1. 50 % to 2. 00 % and an additional 0. 10 % SOFR adjustment, in either case based
upon the total leverage ratio of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries. The termTerm lean-Loan A is subject to the same
prepayment provisions and covenants applicable to the existing Term Loan B. The Term Loan A is subject to quarterly
principal payments as follows: (i) 0. 0 % per year of the initial principal amount during the first year, (ii) 5. 0 % per year of the
initial principal amount payable in equal quarterly installments during the second and third years and (iii) 7. 5 % per year of the
initial principal amount payable in equal quarterly installments during the fourth and fifth years, with final payments of all
amounts outstanding, plus accrued interest, being due on the maturity date in April 2027. $ 1. €-1 billion Term Loan B
Agreement During-On May 2648-25, 2023 , the Company entered into a Fourth Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated
May 30, 2018 (the “ Fourth Amendment ”), which, prior to giving effect to the Fourth Amendment, provided for senior
secured credit agreement-facilities in an aggregate principal amount of $ 2. 35 billion, consisting of (i) a term loan B
facility in an aggregate principal amount of $ 1. 6 billion maturing in May 2025 and (ii) a revolving credit facility in an
aggregate principal amount of $ 750 million maturmg in April 2027. The Fourth Amendment provides for a new senior
secured $3—6-bithen-term loan B facility (the “ New Term Loan B ) expiring-in an aggregate principal amount of $ 1. 14
billion maturing in May 2625-2030, the proceeds of which were used to repay the existing Term Loan B facility . The
interest rate per annum applicable to the New Term Loan B facility is equal to, at our the-Company—s-option (s-eithera ) base
Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement), plus an applicable rate of 1. 25 % or (b) Term SOFR, inclusive of the
SOFR Adjustment (defined as 0. 10 % per annum in the Credit Agreement), plus a-matgir-an applicable rate of 6-2 . —7’5
25 % erHIBORphis-a-margtrof +-75% . The HIBORrate-Term SOFR with respect to the New Term Loan B is subject to a
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of 0. 00 % The NeW

same prepayment prov1s1ons and covenants apphcable to the exrstmg Term Loan B fac1hty, subject to customary
exceptions and limitations. These provisions include a standard mandatory prepayment provisions including (i) 100 % of the
net cash proceeds from issuances or incurrence of debt by the Company or any of its restricted subsidiaries (other than with
respect to certain permitted indebtedness); (ii) 100 % (with step- downs to 50 % and 0 % based upon achievement of specified
first- lien leverage ratios) of the net cash proceeds from certain sales or other dispositions of assets by the Company or any of its
restricted subsidiaries in excess of a certain amount and subject to customary reinvestment provisions and certain other
exceptions; and (iii) 50 % (with step- downs to 25 % and 0 % based upon achievement of specified first- lien leverage ratios) of
annual (commencmg with the 2019 fiscal year) excess cash flow of the C ompany and its restricted subsidiaries, Subject to

-I:ean—B—The revolvmg credlt facﬂlty and term -}eaﬂ—loans (the “ Cledlt F acﬂltlei ”) are guaranteed Jomtly and iever"llly, by
certain of the Company’ s wholly- owned domestic subsidiaries and secured by a first- priority security interest in substantially
all of the assets of the Company and those subsidiaries. The Credit Facilities were initially guaranteed by former Parent, which
guarantee was released immediately prior to the consummation of the spin- off. The Credit Facilities contain customary
covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, the Company and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability to
grant liens on the Company and its restricted subsidiaries’ assets, incur indebtedness, sell assets, make investments, engage in
acquisitions, mergers or consolidations and pay certain dividends and other restricted payments. The Credit Facilities require the
Company to comply with financial maintenance covenants to be tested quarterly, consisting of a maximum first- lien leverage
ratio. Subject to customary conditions and restrictions, the Company may obtain incremental term loans and / or revolving loans
in an aggregate amount not to exceed (i) the greater of § $58-650 million and 100 % of EBITDA, plus (ii) the amount of all
voluntary prepayments and commitment reductions under the Credit Facilities, plus (iii) additional amounts subject to certain
leverage- based ratio tests. F=25-The Credit Facilities also contain certain customary events of default, including, but not limited
to: (i) failure to pay principal, interest, fees or other amounts under the Credit Facilities when due, taking into account any
applicable grace period; (ii) any representation or warranty proving to have been incorrect in any material respect when made;
(iii) failure to F- 24 perform or observe covenants or other terms of the Credit Facilities subject to certain grace periods; (iv) a
cross- default and cross- acceleration with certain other material debt; (v) bankruptcy events; (vi) certain defaults under ERISA;
and (V11) the 1nvahd1ty or impairment of %ecurlty Interests. S—The NeW Term Loan B is sub]ect to equal quarterly
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r-the flrst full fiscal quarter after aceeleration-of-deferred
® n-the closing date Conselidated-Statements-offneome/
(—I:ess)— 4 375 % Semor Unsecured Notes ln August 2020 the Company issued $ 500 million of senior unsecured notes, which
mature in 2028 and bear interest at a rate of 4. 375 % per year, for net proceeds of $ 492 million. Interest is payable semi-
annually in arrears on February 15 and Auouﬂt 15 of each year Commencmg on February 15, 2021 —"Phe—netes—are—re&eerﬂab-}e

eredi-t—faei-l-rw— Flnance Lease% The Company’ s finance leases primarily consist of the le"lie OfltS corporate headqualters In
connection with the Company’ s separation from former Parent, it was assigned the lease for its corporate headquarters located
in Parsippany, New Jersey from its former Parent, which resulted in the Company recording a finance lease obligation and asset.
Deferred Debt Issuance Costs The Company classifies deferred debt issuance costs related to its revolving credit facility within
other non- current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Such deferred debt issuance costs were $ 3 million and $ 4
million aad-$2-mitien-as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively. Cash Flow Hedge The 1n2048the
Company has hedged—a—pertteﬁ-ef—rts%—l—é—bﬂi-teﬁ—term—leaﬂ—?he—pay fixed / receive- variable interest rate swaps which hedge
$41-bithen-ofthe Company—stermiean-interest rate exposure ;-on $ 1. 1 billion of whiek-its outstanding variable- rate
debt, effectively representing more than 97 % of the outstanding term loan B, as of December 31, 2023. The interest rate
swaps consist of $ 600 million of swaps that expires- expire in the second quarter of 2024 and has-have a weighted average
fixed rate of 2. 58-33 % (plus applicable spreads) and $ 500 million of swaps that expires— expire in the fourth quarter of
2024 and has-have a weighted average fixed rate of 0. 99-91 % (plus applicable spreads) . The-As a result of the Fourth
Amendment, as well as the discontinuance of LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate, during the second quarter of 2023 the
Company amended its interest rate swaps to align with the change in the benchmark interest rate of the underlying debt.
As such, the variable rates of the-such swap agreements are based on one- month HHBOR-SOFR. During the third quarter of
2023, the Company entered into new pay- fixed / receive- variable interest rate swaps that hedges the interest rate
exposure on $ 600 million of its variable- rate debt with an effective date in the second quarter of 2024 and an expiration
date in the second quarter of 2028. The fixed rate associated with the new swaps is 3. 84 % (plus applicable spreads).
Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2023, the Company entered into new pay- fixed / receive- variable interest rate
swaps that hedges the interest rate exposure on $ 200 million of its variable- rate debt with an effective date in the fourth
quarter of 2024 and an expiration date in the fourth quarter of 2027. The fixed rate associated with the new swaps is 3.

55 % (plus applicable spreads) . The aggregate fair value of these interest rate swaps was an asset of § 13 million and $ 53
million and-atabitity-of $23-miblienas of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, respectively, which was included within
other non- current assets aﬁd—et-her—neﬁ—emreﬂt—habﬂ-tﬁes—on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively. The effect of interest



rate swaps on interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements of Income ~Jzess}were $ 36 million of income during
2023 and $ 2 million ;-and $ 26 mitenrand-$22-million of expense during 2022 s-and 2021 and2626-, respectively. There was
no hedging ineffectiveness recognized in 2023, 2022 ;-or 2021 e+2626-. The Company expects to reclassify approximately $ 34
29 million of gains from AOCI to interest expense during the next 12 months. Interest Expense, Net The Company incurred
interest expense of $ 108 million, $ 85 million -and $ 94 million and-$H4-mithen-in 2023, 2022 ;-and 202 | and-2626-,
respectively. Cash paid related to such interest was $ 103 million, $ 82 million ;-and $ 96 million and-$30+millien-for 2023,
2022 yand 2021 ard-2020-, respectively. Interest income was $ 6 million, $ 5 million ;-and $ 1 million and-$2-mittien-for 2023,
2022 sand 2021 and-2026-, respectively. Early Extinguishment of Debt The Company incurred non- cash early extinguishment
of debt costs of $ 3 million, $ 2 million #+and $ 18 million during 2023, 2022 relating-and 2021 respectively. The 2023
amount relates to the ereditagreementrefinancing of the Company’ s term loan B during the second quarter of 2023. The
2022 amount relates to the Third amenrdment-Amendment and $ 400 million partial pay down of its term loan F- 25 B, as
discussed above —fer—t-he—yeaieeﬂded—Beeefnber—B-l—zGQ—z— The FeH-he—year—ended—BeeembeH—l—ZOZl amount related the

; Ste arelating-to the redemption of its § 500 million 5. 375 %
senior unsecured notes redeemed in 2021. 13 -F-—2-6—1-4— F AIR VALUE The Company measures its financial assets and liabilities
at fair value on a recurring basis and utilizes the fair value hierarchy to determine such fair values. Financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories: Level 1: Quoted prices for identical
instruments in active markets. Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model- derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose
significant value driver is observable. Level 3: Unobservable inputs used when little or no market data is available. In certain
cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in
the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls has been determined based on the lowest level input
(closest to Level 3) that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company’ s assessment of the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment ;-and considers factors specific to the asset or
liability. The fair value of financial instruments is generally determined by reference to market values resulting from trading on
a national securities exchange or in an over- the- counter market. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair
value is based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques, as appropriate. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximate fair value
due to the short- term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of all other
financial instruments are as follows: December 31, 2022€arrying-2023Carrying AmountEstimated Fair ValueDebt $ 2, 697
201 $ 2,9835-195 The Company estimates the fair value of its debt using Level 2 inputs based on indicative bids from investment
banks or quoted market prices with the exception of finance leases, which are estimated at carrying value. Financial
Instruments Changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates expose the Company to market risk. The Company uses cash
flow hedges as part of its overall strategy to manage its exposure to market risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. As a matter of policy, the Company only enters into transactions that it believes will be highly
effective at offsetting the underlying risk, and it does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The Company
estimates the fair value of its derivatives using Level 2 inputs. Interest Rate Risk A portion of debt used to finance the
Company’ s operations is exposed to interest rate fluctuations. The Company uses various hedging strategies and derivative
financial instruments to create a desired mix of fixed and floating rate assets and liabilities. Derivative instruments currently
used in these hedging strategies include interest rate swaps. The derivatives used to manage the risk associated with the
Company’ s fleating-variable- rate debt are derivatives designated as cash flow hedges. See Note +3-12 - Long- Term Debt and
Borrowing Arrangements for the impact of such cash flow hedges. Foreign Currency Risk The Company has foreign currency
rate exposure to exchange rate fluctuations worldwide, particularly with respect to the Canadian Dollar, the-Chinese Yuan, the
Euro, the-Brazilian Real , British Pound and the-Argentine Peso. The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts at
various times to manage and reduce the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with its foreign currency denominated
receivables and payables, forecasted royalties and forecasted earnings and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and other
transactions. The Company recognized gatns-lesses from freestanding foreign currency exchange F- 26 contracts of $ 3 million
during 2023 and gains of $ 2 million during 2022 and 2021 anddesses-ef-$3-mithon-during2626-. Such gains and losses are
included in operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income ~d=zess)-. F=2FThe Company accounts for Argenting
certain countries as a highly inflationary economy , with its exposure primarily related to Argentina . The Company
incurred foreign currency exchange losses related to Argentina of $ 14 million, $ 4 million ;and $ | million and-$2-mitien
during 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2026-, respectively. Such losses are included in operating expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Income ~Jess)-. Credit Risk and Exposure The Company is exposed to counterparty credit risk in the event of
nonperformance by counterparties to various agreements and sales transactions. The Company manages such risk by evaluating
the financial position and creditworthiness of such counterparties and often by requiring collateral in instances in which
financing is provided. The Company mitigates counterparty credit risk associated with its derivative contracts by monitoring the
amounts at risk with each counterparty to such contracts, periodically evaluating counterparty creditworthiness and financial
position, and where possible, dispersing its risk among multiple counterparties. The Company is subject to risks relating to the
geographic concentration of its hotel properties, which may result in the Company’ s results of operations being more sensitive
to local and regional economic conditions and other factors, including competition, natural disasters and economic downturns,
than the Company’ s results of operations would be, absent such geographic concentrations. Local and regional economic
conditions and other factors may differ materially from prevailing conditions in other parts of the world. Excluding cost-
reimbursement revenues, which are offset by cost- reimbursement expense, revenues from transactions in the states of Texas
and Florida as a percent of U. S. revenues were approximately 10 % and 17 %, respectively, during 2023, 10 % and 24 %,




respectlvely, during 2022 s-and 10 % and 18 %, respectively, during 202 | and+0-%-and+9-%;respeetively;-during 2626~

Revenues in the state of Florida include license and other fees from the Company’ s former Parent. Excluding these revenues,
revenues in the state of Florida as a percent of U. S. revenues were 7 %, 16 % sand 12 % and-9-%-during 2023, 2022 ;-and
2021 and2626-, respectively. During 2021 and-2620-CorePoint accounted for 20 % and25-%;respeetively;-of revenues.
Excluding cost- reimbursement revenues, which are offset by cost- reimbursement expenses, CorePoint accounted for 8 % and
+6-%-during 2021 and2620;respeetively-. During the first quarter of 2022, CorePoint terminated its management contracts with
the Company. +5-14 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES The Company is involved, at times, in claims, legal and
regulatory proceedings and governmental inquiries arising in the ordinary course of its business, including but not limited to:
breach of contract, fraud and bad faith claims with franchisees in connection with franchise agreements and with owners in
connection with management contracts, as well as negligence, breach of contract, fraud, employment, consumer protection and
other statutory claims asserted in connection with alleged acts or occurrences at owned, franchised or managed properties or in
relation to guest reservations and bookings. The Company may also at times be involved in claims, legal and regulatory
proceedings and governmental inquiries relating to bankruptcy proceedings involving efforts to collect receivables from a debtor
in bankruptcy, employment matters, claims of infringement upon third parties’ intellectual property rights, claims relating to
information security, privacy and consumer protection, fiduciary duty / trust claims, tax claims, environmental claims and
landlord / tenant disputes. Along with many of its competitors, the Company and / or certain of its subsidiaries have been named
as defendants in litigation matters filed in state and federal courts, alleging statutory and common law claims related to purported
incidents of sex trafficking at certain franchised and managed hotel facilities. Many of these matters are in the pleading or
discovery stages at this time. In certain matters, discovery has closed , and the parties are engaged in dispositive motion practice.
As of December 31, 2622-2023 , the Company is aware of approximately 35 pending matters filed naming the Company and / or
subsidiaries. Based upon the status of these matters, the Company has not made a determination as to the likelihood of any
probable loss of any one of these matters and is unable to estimate a range of losses at this time. The Company records an
accrual for legal contingencies when it determines, after consultation with outside counsel, that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In making such determinations, the Company evaluates,
among other things, the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome, and when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred, its ability to make a reasonable estimate of loss. The Company reviews these accruals each reporting period and makes
revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances, including changes to its strategy in dealing with these matters. F- 27 The
Company believes that it has adequately accrued for such matters with reserves of $ 7 million and $ 8 million and-$-6-mithen-as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard2624-, respectively. The Company also had receivables of $ 4 million and $ 6 million and
$3-millienas of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, respectively, for certain matters which are covered by insurance and
were included in other current assets on its Consolidated Balance Sheets. Litigation is inherently unpredictable and, although the
Company believes that its F=28-accruals are adequate and / or that it has valid defenses in these matters, unfavorable results
could occur. As such, an adverse outcome from such proceedings for which claims are awarded in excess of the amounts
accrued, if any, could be material to the Company with respect to earnings and / or cash flows in any given reporting period. As
of December 31, 26222023 , the potential exposure resulting from adverse outcomes of such legal proceedings could, in the
aggregate, range up to approximately $ 3-10 million in excess of recorded accruals. However, the Company does not believe that
the impact of such litigation will result in a material liability to the Company in relation to its combined financial position or
liquidity. Guarantees Separation- Related Guarantees The Company assumed one- third of certain contingent and other
corporate liabilities of former Parent incurred prior to the spin- off, including liabilities of former Parent related to, arising out of
or resulting from certain terminated or divested businesses, certain general corporate matters of former Parent and any actions
with respect to the separation plan or the distribution made or brought by any third party. Credit Support Provided and Other
Indemnifications Relating to former Parent’ s Sale of its European Vacation Rentals Business In May 2018, former Parent
completed the sale of its European Vacation Rentals business to Compass IV Limited, an affiliate of Platinum Equity, LLC (*
Buyer 7). In connection with the sale of the European Vacation Rentals business, the Company provided certain post- closing
credit support in the form of guarantees to help ensure that the business meets the requirements of certain credit card service
providers, travel association and regulatory authorities. Such post- closing credit support may be enforced or called upon if the
European vacation rentals business fails to meet its primary obligation to pay certain amounts when due. The European vacation
rentals business has provided an indemnity to former Parent in the event that the post- closing credit support is enforced or
called upon. Pursuant to the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement that was entered into in connection with the
Company’ s spin- off, the Company will assume one- third and former Parent will assume two- thirds of losses that may be
incurred by former Parent or the Company in the event that these credit support arrangements are enforced or called upon by
any beneficiary in respect of any indemnification claims made. The table below summarizes the post- closing credit support
guarantees related to the sale of the European Vacation Rentals business, the fair values of such guarantees and the receivables
from its former Parent representing two- thirds of such guarantees at-as of December 31, 2622-2023 : GuaranteesFair Value of
GuaranteesReceivable from former ParentPost- closing credit support at time of sale $ 81 § 39 $ 26 Additional post- closing
credit support46 22 15 Total $ 127 $ 61 $ 41 The fair value of the guarantees was $ 61 million as of December 31, 2023 and
2022 and262+-and were included in other non- current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In connection with these
guarantees the Company had receivables from its former Parent of § 41 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-2624-,
which were 1ncluded in other non- current assets on its Consolidated Balance Sheets 15 Hetel-—M&n&gemeﬂt—Gu&f&ﬂfees—"Phe




Company has a qtock baqed Compenqanon plan avallable to grant non- quahﬁed %tock options, incentive stock options, stock-
settled appreciation rights (“ SSARs ™), RSUs, performance- vesting restricted stock units (“ PSUs ) and / or other stock- based
awards to key employees and non- employee directors. Under the Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, Inc. 2018 Equity and Incentive
Plan (““ Stock Plan ), which became effective on May 14, 2018, a maximum of 10. 0 million shares of common stock may be
awarded. As of December 31, 20222023 , 5-4 . 2-8 million shares remained available. F- 28 During 26222023 , the Company
granted incentive equity awards totaling $ 30 million to key employees and senior officers in the form of RSUs. The RSUs
generally vest ratably over a period of four years based on continuous service. Additionally, the Company approved incentive
equity awards to key employees and senior officers in the form of PSUs with a maximum grant value of $ 42-19 million. The
PSUs generally cliff vest on the third anniversary of the grant date based on continuous service with the number of shares
earned (0 % to 200 % of the target award) depending-dependent errupon the extent to which the Company achieves certain the
speetfted-performance metrics. Incentive Equity Awards Granted by the Company The activity related to the Company’ s
incentive equity awards for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 consisted of the following: RSUsPSUsNumber of
RSUsWeighted Average Grant PriceNumber of PSUsWeighted Average Grant PriceBalance as of December 31, 2624H— 20221 .
2-$60-370%$67.900 . 3 $ 5769 . 5182 Granted (a) 0. 4 77.10 0. 3 83-(b) 77 . 7445 Vested ( 0. +Hb)-82-F4-Vested0-4) 58
63 . 5862 — — Canceled —— (0. 1) 66-53 . 40 98-(0—1)-5526-Balance as of December 31, 2022420231 . 0 (c) $ 6772 . 96
80 0.3-5 (d) $69-76 . 82-56 (a) Represents awards granted by the Company primarily in March 2622-2023 . (b) Represents
awards granted by the Company at the maximum achievement level of 200 % of target payout. Actual shares that may be issued
can range from 0 % to 200 % of target. (c) RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2622-2023 have an unrecognized
compensation expense of $ 48-47 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2. 5 years. (d)
PSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2622-2023 have an aggregate maximum potential unrecognized compensation expense of
$ +6-22 million, which may be recognized over a weighted average period of 1. 69 years based on attainment of targets. F36
There were no stock options granted in 2023 or 2022. The activity related to stock options granted-by-the-Cempany-for the
year ended December 31, 2022-2023 consisted of the following: Number of OptionsWeighted Average Exercise PriceWeighted
Average Remaining Contractual Life (Years) Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in millions) Outstanding as of December 31, 26244
20221 . +0 $ 5655 . 8490 Granted — — Exercised — — #0-4-58-8F-Canceled — — Outstanding as of December 31, 20224
20231 .0 $ 55.903-89 2 . 67 $ +6-25 Unvested as of December 31, 26226-20230 .2 (a) $ 56.47 2 . 4 (a)-$ 4 55473956
Exercisable as of December 31, 20226-20230 . 6-8 $ 56-55 . 36-3-79 2 . 5-7 $ 46-21 (a) Unvested options as of December 31,
2622-2023 are expected to vest over time and have an aggregate unrecognized compensation expense of $ 2-1 million, which
will be recognized over a weighted average period of +0 . 5-9 years. F- 29 The fair value of stock options granted by the
Company were estimated on the date of the grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model with the relevant assumptions
outlined in the table below. Expected volatility is based on both historical and implied volatilities of the stock of comparable
companies over the estimated expected life of the options. The expected life represents the period of time the options are
expected to be outstanding. The risk- free interest rate is based on yields on U. S. Treasury strips with a maturity similar to the
estimated expected life of the options. The projected dividend yield was based on the Company’ s anticipated annual dividend
divided by the price of the Company” s stock on the date of the grant. 20242020Grant----- 2021Grant date fair value $ 19. 58%
$-59Grant-58Grant date strike price $ 65. 2-$-53-40Expeeted-21Expected volatility40. 18 %424-308-% Expected lifed 25
yearsd-. 25 yearsRisk- free interest rate0. 40 % +2+%-Projected dividend yield0. 98 %2-46-% Stock- Based Compensation
Expense Stock- based compensation expense was $ 39 mllllon, $ 33 m11110n —and $ 28 m11110n aﬁd—$£—1—m—1-1—heﬂ—f0r 2023 2022 5
and 202 | and-2026-, respectively. 16 1n § d s-on-th RS
Statements-ofineeme-—oss)yF—3+3+7+ SEGMENT INF ORMATION The reportable @egment% pre@ented below repreqent the
Company’ s operating segments for which separate financial information is available and is utilized on a regular basis by its
chief operating decision maker to assess performance and allocate resources. In identifying its reportable segments, the
Company also considers the nature of services provided by its operating segments. Management evaluates the operating results
of each of its reportable segments based upon net revenues and “ adjusted EBITDA ”, which is defined as net income / (loss)
excluding net interest expense, depreciation and amortization, early extinguishment of debt charges, impairment charges,
restructuring and related charges, contract termination costs, separation- related items, transaction- related items (acquisition-,
disposition- , or separatten-debt - related), (gain) / loss on asset sales, foreign currency impacts of highly inflationary countries,
stock- based compensation expense, income taxes and development advance notes amortization. The Company believes that
adjusted EBITDA is a useful measure of performance for its segments which, when considered with U. S. GAAP measures,
allows a more complete understanding of its operating performance. The Company uses this measure internally to assess
operating performance, both absolutely and in comparison to other companies, and to make day to day operating decisions,
including in the evaluation of selected compensation decisions. The Company’ s presentation of adjusted EBITDA may not be
comparable to similarly —titled measures used by other companies. Buring-In the first quarter of 2624-2023 , the Company

medifted-changed the definttiorrcomposition of its reportable segments adjﬂsfed—EBl:PBA—te-exe}ude—t-he—ameﬁtzaﬁeﬁ—ef

development-advaneenotes—to reflect how-the recent changes
performanee-beginning-in 262+-its Hotel Management segment due to the exit from the select- service management




business, the sale of its two owned hotels and the exit from substantially all of its U. S. full- service management business
. The remaining hotel management business, which is predominately the full- service international managed business, no
longer meets the quantltatlve thresholds to be c0n51dered a reportable segment and as a result, the Company has apptied
- 0 d d rted-aggregated, on a prospective basis, such management
busmess within its Hotel Franchising segment . F 30 Hote FranchisingHotel ManagementCorporate and Other (a) TotalYear
Ended or as of December 31, 2023Net revenues $ 1,397 n/a$ —$ 1,397 Adjusted EBITDA727 n / a (68) 659
Depreciation and amortization66 n / al0 76 Segment assets3, 880 n / a153 4, 033 Capital expenditures33 n / a4 37 Year
Ended or as of December 31, 2022Net revenues $ 1,277 $221 § — $ 1, 498 Adjusted EBITDA679 37 (66) 650 Depreciation
and amortization63 5 9 77 Segment assets3, 711 113 299 4, 123 Capital expenditures33 — 6 39 Year Ended or as of December
,2021Net revenues $ 1,099 $ 466 S — $ 1, 565 Adjusted EBITDA592 57 (59) 590 Dep1eudt10n and amortlzatlon()() 7() 995
Seunent assetsg 575 394 300 4 "()9 C dpltdl erendltuIes%O 43 37 ; v 6

eas eonform h yea S PrO\ ided belOV\ is a 1econe1llat10n of net income
+6less)—t0 ad]usted EBITDA Yecn Ended Deeember 31 202320222021Net 202220242020y Net-income $ 289 ~doss)-S 355
244 $32y-Provision for Hberefitfrem)-income taxesi2d-taxes109 121 91 26)-Depreciation and amertization??
amortization76 77 95 98-Interest expense, aet86-net102 80 93 H2-Early extinguishment of debt2-debt3 2 18 —Stock- based
compensation expense33-expense39 33 28 +9-Development advance notes amertizationt2-amortization1S 12 11 Transaction-
related expenses 9-Gain-onrassetsale-, net-netll 35> — Separation- related expenses| 1 3 2-tmpairments-Gain on asset

sale , net — (35) 6206 Restrueturing-eosts— Impairments —34-Fransaetion—relatedexpenses-, net — — +2-6 Foreign
currency impact of highly lllﬂdtlondly eeﬂﬁtﬂes4—countrles14 41 Q—Adjusted EBITDA “p 659 $ 650 “p 590 F-31 -$—3-36

geographic segment mfmmatlon provided below is cldssmed bdsed on the <’€001dpth locatlon of the Company’ s subsldlaues
United StatesAll Other Countries (a) TotalYear Ended or As of December 31, 2023Net revenues $ 1 142 $255$ 1,397 Net
long- lived assets3, 002 190 3, 192 Year Ended or As of December 31, 2022Net revenues $ 1,271 § 227 § 1, 498 Net long-
11\ ed assetsg 126 104 3, 230 Year Ended or As of December 31, 20"1Net revenues $ 1, 3()() b 199 $ 1, 565 Net long lived

3—34—1-84—3%—1-8—(&) Includes U. S ter11tor1es -1-8—17 ()THER EXPENSES AND C HAR(JES Transactlon- RelatedGam—eﬁ
Asset—Sa-l-e— Net The -l-n—Mareh%@Q%—t-he—( ompany eemp-leted—t-he—sa-le—recogmzed transaction- related expenses of its

$ 424 11 million during $H8millien; net-eftransaction-eosts)
sfer-the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 related svhich-was

attﬂbtttab-le—to costs assoc1ated w1th (1) an unsohc1ted exchange offer from Choice Hotels International, Inc to acquire all
outstandlng shares of the Company S stock and (n) the reﬁnancmg of the C ompany s term loan B hetel—m&ﬂageﬁ&eﬂ-t-

fr&ﬂel&se—&gfeefneﬁt—W%th—the—btryer.—F—%—?y—The Company incurred sepamtlon related costs dssoemted with its spin- off trom
former Parent of “p million ;-during 2023 and 2022 and $ 3 million and-$2-mithen-during 2022;-202 | and-2626-, which

i primarily consisted of legal and tax- related costs. Puring-Gain on Asset Sale,
Net In March 2626-2022 , these—- the Company completed the sale of its Wyndham Grand Bonnet Creek Resort for gross
proceeds of $ 121 million ($ 118 million, net of transaction costs ) primarily-eonsisted-of severanee-and otheremployee-
related-recognized a $ 35 million gain, net of transaction costs , for the year ended December 31, 2022. Such amounts were
attributable to the Company’ s hotel management business and were reported within gain on asset sale, net on the
Consolidated Statement of Income. Additionally, the Company entered into a 20 year franchise agreement with the
buyer. In May 2022, the Company completed the sale of its Wyndham Grand Rio Mar Resort for gross proceeds of $ 62
million ($ 61 million, net of transaction costs). There was no gain or loss on the sale. Additionally, the Company entered
into a 20 year franchise agreement with the buyer . [mpairments, Net During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company’ s
Board approved a plan to sell its two owned hotels. As a result of the Board approval, the Company evaluated the recoverability
of its owned hotels long- lived assets and in the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company recorded a $ 6 million impairment charge

W l]th was 1e|301ted w ithin 1mpanments net on the C onsolldated Statement of lneome 7%]:0&3}— Femefe—rﬂ-fefma—t—teﬁ—see—l’#ete




aeﬁvrﬁes—fer—ﬂae—aeqtﬂst&en—e—ﬁ]:a—QtﬂmM— TRAN SACTIONS WITH FORMER PARENT The Company has a number of

arrangements with its former Parent for services provided between both parties as described below. License Agreement and
Other Agreements with Former Parent In connection with the Company’ s spin- off, the Company and former Parent entered
into long- term exclusive license agreements to retain former Parents’ affiliations with one of the hospitality industry’ s top-
rated loyalty programs, Wyndham Rewards, as well as to continue to collaborate on inventory- sharing and customer cross- sell
initiatives. In connection with the Company’ s license, development and non- competition agreement, the Company recorded
license fees from former Parent in the amounts of $ 90 million, $ 83 million darmrg2022-and $ 65 million during beth-2023,
2022 and 202 | and2626-, respectively . Further, the Company recorded revenues of $ 15 million, $ 10 million ;-and $ 9
million aad-$43-mithen-during 2023, 2022 ;-and 202 | ard2026-, respectively, for activities associated with the Wyndham
Rewards program. The Company also recorded license fees from a former affiliate of § 7 million ;-during 2023 and 2022 and $
5 million and-$-6-mithen-during 2022;-202 | and-2020;respeetively-. Such fees are recorded within license and other fees on the
Consolidated Statements of Income AJ=ess)- Transfer of Former Parent Liabilities and Issuances of Guarantees to Former
Parent and Affiliates Upon the distribution of the Company’ s common stock to former Parent stockholders, the Company
entered into certain guarantee commitments with its former Parent. These guarantee arrangements relate to certain former Parent
contingent tax and other corporate liabilities. The Company assumed and is responsible for one- third of such contingent
liabilities while its former Parent is responsible for the remaining two- thirds. The amount of liabilities assumed by the
Company in connection with the spin- off was $ 20 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, of which $ 20 million and $ 3
million, respectively were included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities and $ 17 million in and-$3&
mithen-as-of Deeember3+-2022 was aﬁd—Z@Q—l—respeet-we}y—wlﬂeh—wefe—mcluded w1thm other non- current hablhtres on its
Consohdated Balance Sheet% he y as

%92—1—1=espeetwel-y—ln addltron the Company had $ 3 m-l-l-l-teﬂ—and—$—4—m11hon of receivables due from former Parent as of both
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-202+;respeetively-which were included within current assets on its Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Former Parent’ s Sale of its European Vacation Rentals Business In connection with the sale of the European Vacation
Rentals business, the Company was entitled to one- third of the excess of net proceeds from the sale above a pre- set amount.
During 2019, the Buyer notified former Parent of certain proposed post- closing adjustments of approximately $ 44 million
which could serve to reduce the net consideration received F=35-from the sale of the European Vacation Rentals business. On
December 13, 2021, former Parent entered into a settlement agreement, contingent upon regulatory approval, to settle the post-
closing adjustment claims for $ 7 million which was split one- third and two- thirds between the Company and former Parent,
respectively. The Company had a $ 2 million reserve for such settlement as of December 31, 2021. During the third quarter of
2022, the settlement was approved by the regulatory authority and as a result, the Company paid $ 2 million for its obligation of
the settlement and all claims on the Company were dismissed. 26-F- 33 19 . LEASES The Company leases property and
equipment under finance and operating leases. For leases with terms greater than one year, the Company records the related
asset and obligation at the present value of lease payments over the term. The Company does not separate lease and non- lease
components of equipment leases. The table below presents the lease- related assets and liabilities recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Classification on the Balance SheetsDecember 31, 2622Beeember-2023December 3 |, 262+AssetsOperating
2022AssetsOperating lcase assetsOther non- current assets $ 10 § 11 $34-Finance lease assetsProperty and equipment, #et26
net22 29-26 Total lease assets $ 32 $ 37 $43-LiabilitiesCurrentOperating lease liabilitiesAccrued expenses and other current
liabilities $ 4 $ 4 Finance lease liabilitiesCurrent portion of long- term debt5-debt6 5 Non- currentOperating lease
liabilitiesOther non- current habihttesFliabilities6 +6-7 Finance lease liabilitiesLong- term debt46-45-debt33 40 Total lease
liabilities $ 49 $ 56 $-64-The table below presents the remaining lease term and discount rates for finance and operating leases.
December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 202+ Wetghted-2022Weighted - average remaining lease termOperating
feases4-leases3 . 6 years4 . | years4-yearsFinance leasesS . 7 yearsFinaneeteases6—7Fyears7-years6 . 7 yearsWeighted- average
discount rateOperating leases4. 9 % 4. 2 %-3-9-% Finance leases4. 3 % 4. 3 % F36-Undiscounted Cash Flows The table below
reconciles the undiscounted cash flows for each of the first five years and total of the remaining years to the finance lease
liabilities and operating lease liabilities recorded on the Company’ s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2622-2023
. Operating LeasesFinance Feases2023-Leases2024 $ 4 $726243-7 20252 8 2626420262 8 20271 & 20281 8 Thereafter] 43-5
Total minimum lease paymentst2-paymentsl1 5+44 Less: amount of lease payments representing interestl -5 Present value of
future minimum lease -payaﬁeﬂ-ts—l—l—paymentslﬂ 45—39 Less: current obligations under leases4 5-6 Long- term lease obligations $
76 $ 33 F- 34 The 49-Unde card he-Company recorded the following related to leases on
the Consolidated Financial Statement% Consohdated Statements of Caih Flows: Year Ended December 31,
26222621426260perating-—--- 2023202220210perating activitiesCash payments related to operating and ﬁnance leases $656 8
7 $-8-Financing activities Cash payments related to finance leases5 5 5 Consolidated Statements of Income ~dess)- Year Ended
December 31, 2022202426200perating-—--- 2023202220210perating lease expense $ 5 $ 4 § 4 $5-Finance lease




expenseAmortization of right- of- use assets4 4 4 Interest expense2 2 2 2420 . ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) The components of AOCI are as follows: Net of TaxForeign Currency Translation
Adjuitment@Ca%h Flow HedgesAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) Balance as of December 31, 2049-$-(H-$
2020 $ 2 $ (54) $ (52) Period change — 37 37 Balance as of
December 31,2021 $2 $ (17) $ (15) Period change (5) 58 53 Balance as of December 31, 2022 § (3) $ 41 $ 38 Period
changel2 (31) (19) Balance as of December 31,2023 $9 $ 10 $ 19 - 3735 EXHIBIT INDEX Exhibit No. Description2.
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- v —9 The followmg iummary de%crlbes the
common qtock par value $ 0. Ol per ihare of Wyndham Hotel% & Re%ort% Inc. (“ Wyndham Hotels, ” *“ our company, ” ““ we, ”
“us, ”and “ our ), which are the only securities of Wyndham Hotels registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The following description is a summary and does not purport to be complete. It is subject
to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, our third amended and restated certificate of incorporation (our “ certificate of
incorporation ) and our third amended and restated by- laws (our *“ by- laws ), each of which is incorporated by reference as
an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10- K of which this Exhibit 4. 9 is a part. In addition, you should refer to the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “ DGCL ), which may also affect the terms of our capital stock. Authorized
Capital Stock We are authorized to issue a total of 606 million shares of capital stock consisting of (i) 600 million shares of
common stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share, and (ii) 6 million shares of preferred stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share. Dividends.
Subject to prior dividend rights of the holders of any preferred shares, holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to
receive dividends when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. We are
incorporated in Delaware and are governed by Delaware law. Delaware law allows a corporation to pay dividends only out of
surplus, as determined under Delaware law, or, if no such surplus exists, out of the corporation' s net profits for the fiscal year in
which the dividend is declared and / or the preceding fiscal year (provided that such payment will not reduce capital below the
amount of capital represented by all classes of shares having a preference upon the distribution of assets). Voting Rights. Each
share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Holders of shares of our
common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. In other words, a holder of a single share of common stock cannot cast
more than one vote for each position to be filled on our Board of Directors. A consequence of not having cumulative voting
rights is that the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock entitled to vote in the election of Directors can elect all
Directors standing for election, which means that the holders of the remaining shares will not be able to elect any Directors.
Liquidation Rights. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company, after the satisfaction in full of the
liquidation preferences of holders of any preferred shares, holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to ratable
distribution of the remaining assets available for distribution to stockholders. The shares of our common stock are not subject to
redemption by operation of a sinking fund or otherwise. Holders of shares of our common stock are not currently entitled to pre-
emptive rights. Fully Paid. All of our outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. The holders of our
common stock have no preemptive rights and no rights to convert their common stock into any other securities, and our common
stock is not subject to any redemption or sinking fund provisions. Preferred Stock We are authorized to issue up to 6 million
shares of preferred stock, par value $ 0. 01 per share. Our Board of Directors, without further action by the holders of our
common stock, may issue shares of our preferred stock. Our Board of Directors is vested with the authority to fix by resolution
the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, and such qualifications, limitations or
restrictions thereof, including, without limitation, redemption rights, dividend rights, liquidation preference and conversion or
exchange rights of any class or series of preferred stock, and to fix the number of classes or series of preferred stock, the number
of shares constituting any such class or series and the voting powers for each class or series. The authority possessed by our
Board of Directors to issue preferred stock could potentially be used to discourage attempts by third- parties to obtain control of
our company through a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise by making such attempts more difficult or more costly.



Our Board of Directors may issue preferred stock with voting rights or conversion rights that, if exercised, could adversely affect
the voting power of the holders of common stock. There are no current agreements or understandings with respect to the
issuance of preferred stock and our Board of Directors has no present intention to issue any shares of preferred stock. Anti-
Takeover Effects of Our Certificate of Incorporation, By- laws and Delaware Law Our certificate of incorporation, our by- laws
and Delaware statutory law contain provisions that may impact the prospect of an acquisition of our company by means of a
tender offer or a proxy contest. These provisions may discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. We
believe that the benefits of such increased protection would give us the potential ability to negotiate with the proponent of an
unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure us and outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging those proposals because
negotiation of the proposals could result in an improvement of their terms. Election and Removal of Directors Our certificate of
incorporation and by- laws contain provisions that establish specific procedures for appointing and removing members of our
board of directors. As of the 2021 annual meeting of stockholders, our board of directors is no longer classified under Section
141 (d) of the Delaware General Corporation Law and Directors are no longer divided into three classes and may be removed
with or without cause. Under our certificate of incorporation and a by- laws, each Director is elected to serve a term of one year,
with each Director’ s term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders next following such Director’ s election. Newly
created directorships resulting from any increase in our authorized number of Directors will be filled by a majority of our Board
of Directors then in office, provided that a majority of our entire Board of Directors, or a quorum, is present, and any vacancies
in our Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause will
be filled generally by the majority vote of our remaining Directors in office, even if less than a quorum is present. In the case of
an uncontested Director election at which a quorum is present, the election will be determined by a majority of the votes cast by
the stockholders entitled to vote therein, with any Directors not receiving a majority of the votes cast required to tender their
resignations following the certification of the stockholder vote. The Corporate Governance Committee will promptly consider
the tendered resignation and will recommend to the Board of Directors whether to accept the tendered resignation or to take
some other action, such as rejecting the tendered resignation and addressing the apparent underlying causes of the withheld
votes. In making this recommendation, the Corporate Governance Committee will consider all factors deemed relevant by its
members. In the case of a contested election, the election will be determined by a plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders
entitled to vote in the election. Size of Board Our certificate of incorporation and by- laws provide that our Board of Directors
may consist of no less than three and no more than 15 Directors. The number of Directors on our Board of Directors will be
fixed exclusively by our Board of Directors, subject to the minimum and maximum number permitted by our certificate of
incorporation and by- laws. Elimination of Stockholder Action by Written Consent Our certificate of incorporation and by- laws
expressly eliminate the right of our stockholders to act by written consent. Stockholder action must take place at the annual or a
special meeting of our stockholders. Stockholder Meetings Under our certificate of incorporation and by- laws, only the
ehairman-Chair of our Board of Directors or our ehtef-Chief exeentive-Executive offieer-Officer will be able to call special
meetings of our stockholders. Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Nominations and Proposals Our by- laws
establish advance notice procedures and requirements with respect to stockholder proposals and nomination of candidates for
election as Directors other than nominations made by or at the direction of our Board of Directors or a committee of our Board
of Directors at either an Annual Meeting or Special Meeting . Delaware Anti- takeover Law We are subject to Section 203 of
the DGCL, an anti- takeover law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a
business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years following the date such person becomes an
interested stockholder, unless the business combination or the transaction in which such person becomes an interested
stockholder is approved in a prescribed manner. Generally, a “ business combination  includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or
other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. Generally, an * interested stockholder ” is a person
that, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years prior to the determination of interested stockholder status
did own, 15 % or more of a corporation' s voting stock. The existence of this provision may have an anti- takeover effect with
respect to transactions not approved in advance by our Board of Directors and the anti- takeover effect includes discouraging
attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of our common stock. Access to Proxy Our by- laws
provide for ““ proxy access ” that allows a stockholder s-or a group of up to twenty stockholders, owning at least three percent of
our outstanding stock continuously for at least three years, to nominate and include in our annual meeting proxy materials
director nominees constituting up to the greater of two directors or twenty percent of the Board of Directors, provided that the
stockholders and director nominees satisfy the disclosure and procedural requirements specified in the by- laws . Postponement
of Meetings The Board of Directors may postpone, reschedule or cancel any Annual Meeting of Stockholders and any
Special Meeting of Stockholders previously scheduled. At the adjourned meeting, the Corporation may transact any
business which might have been transacted at the original meeting . No Cumulative Voting Our certificate of incorporation
and by- laws do not provide for cumulative voting in the election of Directors. Undesignated Preferred Stock The authorization
in our certificate of incorporation of undesignated preferred stock makes it possible for our Board of Directors to issue our
preferred stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to change control of us.
The provision in our certificate of incorporation authorizing such preferred stock may have the effect of deferring hostile
takeovers or delaying changes of control of our management. Amendments to Our Certificate of Incorporation and By- laws The
DGCL provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding stock entitled to vote on amendments to a
corporation' s certificate of incorporation or bylaws is required to approve such amendment, unless a corporation' s certificate of
incorporation or bylaws, as the case may be, requires a greater percentage. Our certificate of incorporation and by- laws provide
that the by- laws may be amended, altered, changed or repealed by a majority vote of our Board of Directors, provided that, in
addition to any other vote otherwise required by law, our by- laws may also be amended, altered, changed or repealed by the
affirmative vote of at least a majority of the voting power of our outstanding shares of capital stock. Exclusive Jurisdiction of



Certain Actions Our by- laws require, to the fullest extent permitted by law that derivative actions brought in the name of
Wyndham Hotels, actions against Directors, officers and employees for breach of fiduciary duty and other similar actions may
be brought only in the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection
of an alternative forum . Although we believe this provision benefits Wyndham Hotels by providing increased consistency in
the application of Delaware law in the types of lawsuits to which it applies, the provision may have the effect of discouraging
lawsuits against our Directors and officers. Our by- laws also provide that unless the Corporation consents in writing to the
selection of an alternative forum, the U. S. federal district courts shall be the exclusive forum for the resolution of claims
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Limitations on Liability of Directors and Officers and Indemnification of
Directors and Officers Section 145 of the DGCL provides that a corporation may indemnify directors and officers as well as
other employees and individuals against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement in
connection with any threatened, pending or completed actions, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative, in which such person is made a party by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee
or agent of the corporation (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation — a * derivative action ), if such person
acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such person' s conduct
was unlawful. A similar standard is applicable in the case of derivative actions, except that indemnification extends only to
expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of such action, and the statute requires
court approval before there can be any indemnification where the person seeking indemnification has been found liable to the
corporation. The statute provides that it is not exclusive of other indemnification that may be granted by a corporation' s by-
laws, disinterested director vote, stockholder vote, agreement or otherwise. Our certificate of incorporation provides that no
Director or officer shall be liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a Director or
officer , except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation on liability is not permitted under the DGCL, as now in
effect or as amended. Currently, Section 102 (b) (7) of the DGCL requires that liability be imposed for the following: ¢ any
breach of the Director' s or officer’ s duty of loyalty to our company or our stockholders; ¢ any act or omission not in good faith
or which involved intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; * a Director for unlawful payments of dividends or
unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; and-+ any transaction from which the
Director or officer derived an improper personal benefit ; and * an officer in any action by or in the right of the corporation
. Our certificate of incorporation and by- laws provide that, to the fullest extent authorized or permitted by the DGCL, as now in
effect or as amended, we will indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was our Director or officer, or by
reason of the fact that our Director or officer is or was serving, at our request, as a Director, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit
plans maintained or sponsored by us. We will indemnify such persons against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if such
person acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interests and, with respect to
any criminal proceeding, had no reason to believe such person' s conduct was unlawful. A similar standard is applicable in the
case of derivative actions, except that indemnification extends only to expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in
connection with the defense or settlement of such actions, and court approval is required before there can be any indemnification
where the person seeking indemnification has been found liable to us. Any amendment of this provision will not reduce our
indemnification obligations relating to actions taken before an amendment. We insure our Directors and officers and those of our
subsidiaries against certain liabilities they may incur in their capacities as Directors and officers. Under these policies, the
insurer, on our behalf, may also pay amounts for which we have granted indemnification to the Directors or officers. Listing Our
shares of common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange and trade under the ticker symbol “ WH. ” Transfer Agent
and Registrar The transfer agent and reglstrar for our common stock is Broadrldge Corporate Issuer Solutions, Inc. Exhibit 10.
25 December 14, 2020 ( ] mended-amended and

Restated-restated February 13 2023) Dear Ms. Melancon' We are pleased to conﬁrm the terms and conditions of your

Employment-employment Agreement-with Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, Inc. ( this-the * Agreement-Company ) ;-dated-as
of—NeveﬂabeH—Chlef Human Resources Officer , effectlve as of March 1, %92—2—2021 (the Effectlve Date ) —ts—hefeby

-Frﬂanetal-efﬁee%e-ﬁfhe—eempaﬂy—aﬂd—wm—fqaeﬁ—reports to —aﬁd-be—subjeet—te—t-he—dtreeﬁeﬁ—ef—the Ch1ef Executlve Officer of
the Company (-fhe—Supefvnsmg—efﬁeeH Your base salary the—E*eeﬁﬁve—er-perfeﬂ%Sﬂeh—dtms—and-e*ereﬁe-Sﬂeh




e e '\\1llbt$15eeﬂ‘rpeﬂsa-ted-as—fel-}ews.—A—
t-he—Geﬂ‘rp&ny—er—pay—t-he—E*eetmve—a%M 62, which equates to an
annualized deL salaly at—of $ 400 000 00, sub]ect to apphcable w1thhold1ngs an—and deductlons, and subJect to annual
review by ta A ; v h
ﬂ:ﬂﬂﬂﬂ'l—lﬁefeases—&s-th ( ompany’ s Board of DIILLIOIS (omptnsau()n (OmmlIILL (the ¢ Compensatlon (OmmlIILL )deefﬁs
appropriate-in its sole discretion (“Base-Salary>)- Base-Salary-As a condition to your position as Chief Human Resources

Officer, you will be required payable-aceording-to relocate to the-eustomary-payrottpraetiees-of-the Company —B-—Annuat
Ineentive-Awards-" s headquarters in Parsippany, New Jersey upon the latter of: (a) the Effective Date, or (b) the date

upon which the Company’ s headquarters will reopen (as a result of closure due to COVID - 19) for use by Company
personnel . The Exeentive-Company will provide you with relocation services through a company of its choice consistent
with Company policy (“ Relocation Allowance ). The Relocation Allowance will be a taxable benefit to you and will be
grossed up to compensate you for any income taxes due thereon. You will be cligible to earn-an-participate in the
Company’ s annual incentive compensation aware-plan as in effect from time respeetofeachfiseal-year-ofthe-Company
ending-during-the Period-of Employment;subjeet-to time ( the “ AIP ”) Gemmrttee—s—d-rseret—reﬂ—te—gfant—setelﬁmv&rds— with
based-upon-a target annual incentive compensation award opportunity equal to no less than 75 % of your eligible Base-base
Satary-salary (“FargetAward-")-earned-during-each-sueh-year-, and with your actual subjeetto-the-terms-and-econditions-ofthe

annual incentive platreevering-employees-of-compensation award (if any) determined based upon the Company;-and-further
subjeetto-attainment 01 stteh—one or more pm formance u)als —eﬂterta—eﬁ&rgets—cslablls hed &ﬂd—eeft-rﬁed-b} the Compensatlon

(ommmgp Your inits-sele

W 111 be pdld to y0u the-Exeeuntive-at such lll]]L as w-rl-l—shall be

dLllede by he Compensatlon ( Ommlllu pttrsttaﬂt—te—t-he—&ﬂﬂua-l—rﬂeeﬂt—rve—p-}an— but in no event later than the last day of the
calendar year immediately following the calendar year in with-respeette-which such annual the-performanee-targetsrelate—C-
LongTFermIneentive-incentive Awards-compensation award is earned . TheExeeutive-Subject to approval by the

Compensation Commlttee inits F ebruary 2021 meetlng, you will bL, granted an el-rgrb-}e—feHeﬂg—teﬂn-meeﬂﬁve—aw&rds—

award under s

vestire—and-witl-besubiee ms—aideonditionsot (ompdnv S "()18 Equity and ll]LCnll\L Plan and-any-amended-or
sueeessor-plan-thereto-(the Eqﬂﬁy—[’ an ) with and-- an aggregate value of One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000), consisting
of a combination of Restricted Stock Units and / or stock options and vesting in one - quarter increments on the first
anniversary of the grant and each anniversary thereafter. Such award shall have such the-other applieabte-terms and
conditions set forth in the Plan and the final award agreement evideneing-respecting such award as-determined-by-the
QOmmrtt-ee- You Aﬂy—]:eﬂg—"l?erm—lﬂeeﬁﬁveﬂ%wards—\\ ill be ellglble for executive prerequisites made-in-the-Committee™ssole
—Pr od-6 ; the—whlch currently 1nclude aC ompdnv Wi pre*ﬂde

provided automoblle h ety h-ems .
Company;-and financial plannlng assnstance, however Wi

e*eetrﬁve—e-f-ﬁeers—e%t-he—@emp&rw— our program is sublect to change the—terms—e-ﬂthe—&pphe&b-}e—phﬁsheﬁaehetes-eﬁhe

business expenses to you on or before th P oHow g ey et
your the-Exeeuttve>s-taxabl ¢ year following the ldxable year m \\l ch Ihe expenses are lllLUIILd Per-S-EG"PI-GN—HLBEAr’H-I

—)—'Phe—( ompany’ eb-l-rga-t—ten—standard pohcy, thls letter agreement (thls « Agreement ”) is not 1ntended nor should 1t be



considered, to make-payments-to-be an employment contract for any definite or indefinite period of time. As you know,
employment with the Exeeutive-under-Company is at will, and either you or the Company may terminate your
employment at any time, w1th or w1thout Cause and w1th or without prlor notice. For purposes of this Amumant er-l-

Termmdtlon for Cause ” means any of the followmg (a iiatt p y
te—(a—) your the-Exeenttve™s-willful failure to substantially perform your t-he—E—xeettt—we—s—dutlLs as an Cmplovu of the Company
or any e%&s—strbs-td-l&ﬂes-submdlary (othu lhan any such ldllLlIC ILSI.llIlI]L’ from incapacity due to physical or mental illness) o
matertal-breae A sBusiressP p , (b) any act of fraud, misappropriation, dishonesty,
embezzlement or similar LOHdLlLI by you -t-l‘le—E-xeeu-t-we-dgdmsl the Company or any efits-subsidiaries-subsidiary , (c) your the
Exeentives-conviction erplea-of nele-eontenderefor-a felony of tor-itsstatetaw-equivalent-er-any crime involving moral
Iulpltudc er—d-tsheﬂes’fy—(w hth conviction, due to the passaoc 01 lll]]L or olhurmsc is not subjul to further appeal) (d)













your purpesefatty—-- purposely or negligently making (or hav mg been found to hd\ e made) a false certification to the ( ompdny
pertaining to its financial statements. Unless the Company reasonably determines in its sole discretion that your conduct is not
subject to cure, then the Company will provide notice to you of its intention to terminate your employment for Cause hereunder,
along with a description of your conduct which the Company believes gives rise to Cause, and provide you with a period of
fifteen (15) days in which to cure such conduct and / or challenge the Company’ s determination that Cause exists hereunder;
provided ;however, that (i) the determination of whether such conduct has been cured and / or gives rise to Cause shall be made



by the Company in its sole discretion; and (ii) the Company shall be entitled to immediately and unilaterally restrict or suspend
your duties during such fifteen (15) — day period pending such determination. In the event your employment with the Company
is terminated by the Company other than for Cause (not, for the avoidance of doubt, due to your death or yent-Disability (as
such term is defined in the Company’ s long —= term disability plan)) (a “ Qualifying Termination ™), subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, you will receive severance pay equal to 200 % multiplied by the sum of: (a) your then
current base salary; plus (b) an amount equal to the highest annual incentive compensation award paid to you with respect to the
three (3) fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the fiscal year in which your termination of employment occurs,
but in no event shall the amount in (b) exceed +86-%-of-your then enrrent-base-salary-target compensation incentive award . In
the event you become entitled to severance pay under the circumstances described in this Agreement during the three (3) years
following the Effective Date, the amount in subseetterr(b) above shall be no less than your then-eutrent-base-salary-target
annual incentive compensation award . The severance pay will be paid to you in the form of a cash lump sum payment, less
all applicable withholdings and deductions, in the first payroll period following the date on which the separation agreement
referenced in the following paragraph becomes effective and non — revocable; provided that, to the extent your severance
payment is subject to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations and guidance issued
thereunder (collectively, “ Code Section 409A ), your termination of employment must constitute a *“ separation from service ”
under Code Section 409A; provided, further, that in the event the period during which you are entitled to consider (and revoke,
if applicable) such separation agreement spans two calendar years, then any payment that otherwise would have been payable
during the first calendar year will in no case be made until the later of (a) the end of the revocation period (assuming that you do
not revoke) and (b) the first business day of the second calendar year (regardless of whether you used the full time period
allowed for consideration), as and to the extent required for purposes of Code Section 409A; and provided, further, that the
Company shall have the right to offset against such severance pay any then - existing documented and bona fide monetary
debts you owe te-the Company or any of its subsidiaries, to the extent permissible under Code Section 409A. The above
provision of severance pay is subject to, and contingent upon, your execution and non —= revocation of a separation agreement,
in such form as is determined by the Company, within sixty (60) €ays-says of your termination date. Such separation agreement
will require you to release all of your actual and purported claims against the Company and its affiliates (including, without
limitation, the Company’ s affiliated individuals and entities) and will be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.
You will be cligible to continue to participate in the Company s health plans in which you the-Exeeuntive-partietpates—
participate (medical,dental and vision) through the end of the month in which your the-Exeeuntive’s-termination becomes
effective. Followmg As-aresuitefsuch time termination-of patrtieipation, you the-Exeentive-may clect to continue health plan
coverage in accordance with the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (“ COBRA ”),and if the
Executive elects such coverage,the Company will reimburse you the-Exeeuntive-for the costs associated with such continuing
health coverage under COBRA until the earlier of (x) eighteen (18) months from the coverage commencement date er-and (y)
the date on which you the-Exeeuntive-beeomes— become cligible for health and medical benefits form a subsequent
employer.You agree that you will, with reasonable notice during or after your employment with the Company, furnish such
information as may be in your possession and fully cooperate with the Company and its affiliates as may be requested in
connection with any claims or legal aetienractions in which the Company or any of its affiliates is or may become a party.
During your employment, you will comply in all respects with the Company’ s Business Principles, policies and standards. After
your employment with the Company, you will cooperate as reasonably requested with the Company and its affiliates in
connection with any claims or legal actions in which the Company or any of its affiliates is or may become a party. The
Company agrees to reimburse yeuw-your for any reasonable out - of — pocket expenses incurred by you by reason of such
cooperation, including any loss of salary due, to the extent permitted by law, and the Company will make reasonable efforts to
minimize interruption of your life in connection with your cooperation in such matters as provided for in this paragraph. You
recognize and acknowledge that all information pertaining to this Agreement or to the affairs; business; results of operations;
accounting methods, practices and procedures; members; acquisition candidates; financial condition; clients; eusterers—
customer or other relationships of the Company or any of its affiliates (“ Information ") is confidential and is a unique and
valuable asset of the Company or any of its affiliates. Access to and knowledge of certain of the Information is essential to the
performance of your duties under this Agreement. You will not, during your employment with the Company or thereafter,
except to the extent reasonably necessary in performance of your duties under this Agreement, give to any person, firm,
association, corporation, or governmental agency any Information, except as may be required by law. You will not make use of
the Information for your own purposes or for the benefit of any person or organization other than the Company or any of its
affiliates. You will also use your best efforts to prevent the disclosure of this Information by others. All records, memoranda,
ete—documents and information, including but not limited to the Information, relating to the business of the Company or its
affiliates, whether made by you or otherwise coming into your possession, are confidential and will remain the property of the
Company or its affiliates. Upon a Qualifying Termination, you will be eligible to vest in and be paid a pro == rata portion of any
performance — based long — term incentive award (excluding stock options and stock appreciation rights) that you may hold at
the time of such Qualifying Termination, with such pro —= ration based upon the portion of the full performance period during
which you were employed by the Company plus twelve (12) months (or, if less, assuming your continued employment for the
entire performance period remaining after your Qualifying Termination); provided that the performance goals applicable to the
performance — based long — term incentive award are achieved. Payment of any such vested performance — based long —
term incentive award will occur at the same time that such performance — based long — term incentive awards are paid to
actively — employed employees generally. In addition, all long —= term incentive awards that are not subject to performance —-
based vesting and that would have otherwise vested within the twelve (12) =month period following your Qualifying
Termination will become vested upon your Qualifying Termination, and any such long — term incentive awards which are stock



options or stock appreciation rights will remain outstanding for a period of two (2) years (but not beyond the original expiration
date) following your Qualifying Termination. This paragraph shall not supersede or replace any provision or right relating to the
acceleration of the vesting of any long — term incentive award (whether or not performance — based) in the event of a change in
control of the Company or your death or disability, whether pursuant to an applicable stock plan document or award agreement.
Although the Company does not guarantee to you any particular tax treatment relating to any payments made or benefits
provided to you in connection with your employment with the Company, it is intended that such payments and benefits be
exempt from, or comply with, Code Section 409A, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in a manner
consistent with the requirements for avoiding taxes or penalties under Code Section 409A. You hereby acknowledge and agree
to the dispute resolution provisions set forth in AppendixA-Exhibit B attached hereto. Fhank-This Agreement has been
executed and delivered in the State of New Jersey, and its validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement will be
governed by the internal laws of that state. [ Remainder of page intentionally left blank | We are excited to have you for
contribute to the success of the Company and look forward to having your as member eontinued-eontribution-to-the-sueeess
of our eempany-senior executive team . Sincerely, By: Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, Inc. / s / MaryFalvey Name-Geoffrey A.
Ballotti By : MaryFatvey-Geoffrey A. Ballottl Title: President and Chicf Administrative-Executive Officer
ACKN()WLEDGED AND AC ( EPTED: /s -Seeft—Sfﬂek}&ﬁdN&me—Monlca Melancon Name : -Seeft—S’fﬂeH&ﬂd-Ba{e-Momca

EXHIBIT A FORM OF RELEASE As a condition plecedent to Wyndham Hotels & Resorts, Inc. (the Company ) prov 1dmg

of the Separation and Release Agreement dated

the consideration set forth in Section



, 26— 20_ (“ the SeparatierrAgreement 2-), to which this Release is attached as Exhibit A, on or following the
“ ADEA Release Effective Date ” (as defined below) to the undersigned executive (“ Executive ), Executive hereby agrees to
the terms of this Release as follows: 1. Release. £a 3. Subject to Section 1 (c) below, Executive, on behalf of Executive and
Executive’ s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, hereby voluntarily, unconditionally, irrevocably and
absolutely releases and discharges the Company, its parent entities, and each of its subsidiaries, affiliates, and all of its past and
present employees, officers, directors, agents, owners, shareholders, representatives, members, attorneys, insurers and benefit
plans, and all of their predecessors, successors and assigns (collectively, the “ Released Parties ”, and each a *“ Released Party )
from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, controversies, actions, cross == claims, counter —- claims, demands,
debts, compensatory damages, liquidated damages, punitive or exemplary damages, any other damages, claims for costs and
attorneys’ fees, losses or liabilities of any nature whatsoever in law and in equity and any other liabilities, known or unknown,
suspected or unsuspected of any nature whatsoever (hereinafter, “ Claims ) that Executive has or may have against the Released
Parties: (i) from the beginning of time through the date upon which Executive signs this Release; (ii) arising from or in any way
related to Executive’ s employment or termination of employment with any of the Released Parties; (iii) arising from or in any
way related to any agreement with any of the Released Parties, including butnettmited-te-the eﬂap}eymeﬂt—Employment fetter
agreement-exectted-by Exeeutiveon————26—(“-Agreement ) and / or (iv) arising from or in any way related to
awards, policies, plans, programs or practices of any of the Released Parties that may apply to Executive or in which Executive
may participate, in each case, including, but not limited to, under any federal, state or local law, act, statute, code, order,
judgment, injunction, ruling, decree or writ, ordinance or regulation, including, but not limited to: * Title VII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964; + Sections 1981 through 1988 of Title 42 of the United States Code; * The Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974 (" ERISA") (as modified below); * The Immigration Reform and Control Act;  The Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990; * The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (* ADEA ”); » The Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Notification Act; * The Fair Credit Reporting Act; « The Family and Medical Leave Act; * The Equal Pay Act; « The Genetic
Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008; « The Occupational Safety and Health Act; « The Family First Coronavirus
Response Act; * The New Jersey Law Against Discrimination; « The New Jersey Civil Rights Act; « The New Jersey Family
Leave Act; » The New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law; « The Millville Dallas Airmotive Plant Job Loss Notification Act; ¢
The New Jersey Conscientious Employee Protection Act; « The New Jersey Equal Pay Law; « The New Jersey Occupational
Safety and Health Law; « The New Jersey Smokers’ Rights Law; « The New Jersey Genetic Privacy Act; * The New Jersey Fair
Credit Reporting Act; » The New Jersey Paid Sick Leave Act; « The New Jersey Statutory Provision Regarding Retaliation /
Discrimination for Filing A Workers' Compensation Claim; « The New Jersey Public Employees' Occupational Safety and
Health Act; « New Jersey laws regarding Political Activities of Employees, Lie Detector Tests, Jury Duty, Employment
Protection, and Discrimination; « the Texas Commission on Human Rights Act (Tex. Lab. Code Ch. 21), as amended; * any
provision of the Texas Payday Act;  any provision of the Texas Labor Code; * the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies
Code; * the Texas Health and Safety Code; * any other federal, state or local law, rule, regulation, or ordinance; * any public
policy, contract, tort, or common law; or ¢ any basis for recovering costs, fees, or other expenses including attorneys' fees
incurred in these matters. £b y. Executive understands that Executive may later discover claims or facts that may be different
than, or in addition to, those which Executive now knows or believes to exist with regards to the subject matter of this Release
and the releases in this Section 1, and which, if known at the time of executing this Release, may have materially affected this
Release or Executive’ s decision to enter into it. Executive hereby waives any right or claim that might arise as a result of such
different or additional claims or facts. < }. This Release is not intended to bar or affect: (i) any Claims that may not be waived
by private agreement under applicable law, such as claims for workers’ compensation or unemployment insurance benefits; (ii)
vested rights under the Company’ s 401 (k) or pension plan; (iii) any right to the payments and benefits set forth in Section —2.
1 of the Separatien-Agreement; and / or (iv) any earned, but unpaid, wages or paid == time - off payable upon a termination of
employment that may be owed pursuant to Company policy and applicable law or any unreimbursed expenses payable in
accordance with Company policy. £d 3. Nothing in this Release is intended to prohibit or restrict Executive’ s right to file a
charge with, or participate in a charge by, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or any other local, state, or federal
administrative body or government agency; provided, however, that Executive hereby waives the right to recover any monetary
damages or other relief against any Released Parties to the fullest extent permitted by law, excepting any benefit or remedy to
which Executive is or becomes entitled to pursuant to Section 922 of the Dodd —= Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act. ¢ ¥. Notwithstanding anything in this Release to the contrary, Executive’ s release of Claims under the ADEA
(“the ADEA Release ) shall become effective only upon: (i) Executive’ s separate signature set forth on the signature page of
this Release reflecting his-her assent to his-her release of Claims under the ADEA; and (ii) the occurrence of the ADEA Release
Effective Date. ¢f ). Executive represents that Executive has made no assignment or transfer of any right or Claim covered by
this Section 1 and that Executive further agrees that he-she is not aware of any such right or Claim covered by this Section 1. g
¥. As of the date upon which Executive executes this Release, Executive acknowledges that he-she does not have any current
charge, complaint, grievance or other proceeding against any of the Released Parties pending before any local, state or federal
agency regarding his-her employment or separation from employment. This provision shall in all respects be subject to
Subsection (d) herein and Section 6 of this Release. €h 3. As of the date upon which Executive executes this Release, Executive
affirms that he-she has not knowingly provided, either directly or indirectly, any information or assistance to any non —=
governmental party that may be considering or is taking legal action against any of the Released Parties with the purpose of
assisting such person in connection with such legal action. Executive understands that if this Release, and the Separation
Agreement to which this Release is attached, were not signed, ke-she would have the right to voluntarily provide information or
assistance to any party who may be considering or is taking legal action against any of the Released Parties. Executive hereby
waives that right and agrees that he-she will not provide any such assistance other than the assistance to a governmental party or



pursuant to a valid subpoena or court order. This provision shall in all respects be subject to Subsection (d) herein and Section 6
of this Release. 2. Return of Company Property. Executive represents that he-she has returned to the Company all Company
property and confidential and proprietary information in his-her possession or control, including but not limited to Confidential
Information as defined in the Separation-Agreement, in any form whatsoever, including without limitation, equipment,
telephones, smart phones, PDAs, laptops, credit cards, keys, access cards, identification cards, security devices, network access
devices, pagers, documents, manuals, reports, books, compilations, work product, e — mail messages, recordings, tapes,
removable storage devices, hard drives, computers and computer discs, files and data, which Executive prepared or obtained
during the course of his-her employment with the Company. Executive has also provided the Company with the passcodes to
any lock devices or password protected work —= related accounts. If Executive discovers any property of the Company (or any
Released Party) or confidential or proprietary information in his-her possession after the date upon which he-she signs this
SeparattorrAgreement and-Release-, Executive shall immediately return such property. 3. Non —= disparagement. Subject to
Section 6 below, Executive agrees not to: (a) make any statement, written or oral, directly or indirectly, which in any way
disparages the Released Parties or their business, products or services in any manner whatsoever, or portrays the Released
Parties or their business, products or services in a negative light or would in any way place the Released Parties in disrepute; and
/ or (b) encourage anyone else to disparage or criticize the Released Parties or their business, products or services, or put them in
a bad light. 4. Consultation / Voluntary Agreement. Executive acknowledges that the Company has advised Executive to consult
with an attorney prior to executing this Release. Executive has carefully read and fully understands all of the provisions of this
Release. Executive is entering into this Release, knowingly, freely and voluntarily in exchange for good and valuable
consideration to which Executive would not be entitled in the absence of executing and not revoking this Release. 5. Review and
Revocation Period. Executive has been given twenty — one (21) calendar days to consider the terms of this Release, although
Executive may sign it at any time sooner. Executive has seven (7) calendar days after the date on which Executive executes this
Release for purposes of the ADEA Release to revoke Executive’ s consent to the ADEA Release. Such revocation must be in
writing and must be e — mailed to , at ———

wyndham. com. Notice of such revocation of the ADEA Release must be received within the seven (7) calendar days referenced
above. In the event of such revocation of the ADEA Release by Executive, with the exception of the ADEA Release (which
shall become null and void), this Release shall otherwise remain fully effective. Provided that Executive does not revoke his-her
execution of the ADEA Release within such seven (7) day revocation period, the “ ADEA Release Effective Date ™ shall occur
on the eighth (8th) calendar day after the date on which Executive signs the signature page of this Release reflecting his-her
assent to the ADEA Release. If Executive does not sign this Release within twenty — one (21) days after the Company presents
it to kimrher , or if Executive revokes this Release within the permissible period, Executive shall have no right to the payments
and benefits set forth in the Separation-Agreement. 6. Permitted Disclosures. Nothing in this Release or any other agreement
between Executive and the Company or any other policies of the Company or its affiliates shall prohibit or restrict Executive or
Executive’ s attorneys from: (a) making any disclosure of relevant and necessary information or documents in any action,
investigation, or proceeding relating to this Release, or as required by law or legal process, including with respect to possible
violations of law; (b) participating, cooperating, or testifying in any action, investigation, or proceeding with, or providing
information to, any governmental agency or legislative body, any self —- regulatory organization, and / or pursuant to the
Sarbanes — Oxley Act; or (c) accepting any U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission awards. In addition, nothing in this
Release or any other agreement between Executive and the Company or any other policies of the Company or its affiliates
prohibits or restricts Executive from initiating communications with, or responding to any inquiry from, any regulatory or
supervisory authority regarding any good faith concerns about possible violations of law or regulation. Pursuant to 18 U. S. C. §
1833 (b), Executive will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a
trade secret of the Company or its affiliates that: (i) is made (x) in confidence to a Federal, state, or local government official,
either directly or indirectly, or to Executive’ s attorney and (y) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected
violation of law; or (ii) is made in a complaint or other document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. If
Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of law, Executive may disclose the
trade secret to Executive’ s attorney and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if Executive files any
document containing the trade secret under seal, and does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order. Nothing
in this Release or any other agreement between the Company and Executive or any other policies of the Company or its
affiliates is intended to conflict with 18 U. S. C. § 1833 (b) or create liability for disclosures of trade secrets that are expressly
allowed by such section. 7. No Admission of Wrongdoing. Neither this Release, nor the furnishing of the consideration for this
Release, shall be deemed or construed at any time to be an admission by the parties or any of the Released Parties of any
improper or unlawful conduct, all of which is denied. 8. Third —- Party Beneficiaries. Executive acknowledges and agrees that
all Released Parties are third = party beneficiaries of this Release and have the right to enforce this Release. 9. Amendments
and Waivers. No amendment to or waiver of this Release or any of its terms will be binding unless consented to in writing by
Executive and an authorized representative of the Company. No waiver by any Released Party of a breach of any provision of
this Release, or of compliance with any condition or provision of this Release to be performed by Executive, will operate or be
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach with respect to any other Released Party or any similar or dissimilar provision or
condition at the same or any subsequent time. The failure of any Released Party to take any action by reason of any breach will
not deprive any other Released Party of the right to take action at any time. 10. Governing Law; Jury Waiver. This Release shall
be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New Jersey, without regard to the application of any
choice == of == law rules that would result in the application of another state’ s laws. Subject to Section 13 below, Executive
irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of, and exclusive venue in, the state and federal courts in New Jersey with respect to any
matters pertaining to, or arising from, this Release. UNLESS OTHERWISE PROHIBITED BY LAW, EXECUTIVE




EXPRESSLY, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR
PROCEEDING RELATING TO OR ARISING IN ANY WAY FROM THIS RELEASE OR THE MATTERS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 11. Savings Clause. If any term or provision of this Release is invalid, illegal or unenforceable
in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other term or provision of this Release or
invalidate or render unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. Upon such determination that any term or
other provision of this Release is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, this Release shall be enforceable as closely as possible to its
intent of providing the Released Parties with a full release of all legally releasable claims through the date upon which
Executive signs this Release. 12. Continuing Obligations. Executive’ s post —= termination obligations set forth in the
Agreementand-Separation-Agreement, as well as Executive’ s obligations set forth in the Agreement and-SeparationAgreement
, are incorporated herein by reference (the “ Continuing Obligations ). If Executive breaches the Continuing Obligations, all
amounts and benefits payable under this Release shall cease and, upon request, Executive shall immediately repay to the
Company any and all amounts already paid pursuant to this Release. If any one or more of the Continuing Obligations shall be
held by an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessively broad as to duration, geography, scope, activity or
subject, such provisions shall be construed by limiting and reducing them so as to be enforceable to the maximum extent
allowed by applicable law. 13. Arbitration. Appendix A-B of the Employment Agreement is incorporated herein by reference
and such terms and conditions shall apply to any disputes under the Agreement rthe-Separatien-Agreement-and under this
Release. 14. Continuing Cooperation. Executive agrees, in addition to obligations set forth in this Release Fthe-Agreement-and
the Separatten-Agreement to which this Release is attached, to cooperate and make himself-herself available to the Company or
any of its successors (including any past or future subsidiary of the Company), any of the Released Parties, or its or their
General Counsel, as the Company may reasonably request, to assist in any matter, including giving truthful testimony in any
litigation or potential litigation, over which Executive may have knowledge, information or expertise. Executive shall be
reimbursed, to the extent permitted by law, any reasonable out — of —= pocket expenses associated with such cooperation,
provided those expenses are pre — approved by the Company (or Released Party, as applicable) prior to the Executive incurring
them. Executive acknowledges that his-her agreement to this provision is a material inducement to the Company to enter into
the Separatten-Agreement and pay the consideration described therein. 15. Business Expenses. As of the date upon which
Executive executes this Release, Executive confirms that any business —= related expenses for which ke-she seeks or will seek
reimbursement have been, or will be, documented and submitted to the Company within 10 business days after the Termination
Date. Furthermore, Executive represents that any amounts owed by hirm-her to the Company have been paid. In the event
Executive has been reimbursed for business expenses, but has failed to pay any Company —= issued charge card or credit card
bill related to such reimbursed expenses, Executive shall promptly pay any such amounts within 7 days after any request by the
Company and, in addition, the Company has the right and is hereby authorized to deduct the amount of any unpaid charge card
or credit card bill from the severance payments or otherwise suspend payments or other benefits in an amount equal to the
unpaid business expenses without being in breach of the Separation-Agreement. 16. Entire Agreement. Except as expressly set
forth herein, Executive acknowledges and agrees that this Release and the Separatton-Agreement to which this Release is
attached constitutes the complete and entire agreement and understanding between the Company and Executive with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and supersedes in its entirety any and all prior understandings, commitments, obligations and / or
agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto; it being understood and agreed that this Release, and the Sepearation
Agreement to which this Release is attached, including the mutual covenants, agreements, acknowledgments and affirmations
contained herein and therein, is intended to constitute a complete settlement and resolution of all matters set forth in Section 1
hereof. Executive represents that, in executing this Release, Executive has not relied upon any representation or statement made
by any of the Released Parties, other than those set forth in this Release and the Separatten-Agreement to which this Release is
attached, with regard to the subject matter, basis, or effect of this Release. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Executive has executed
this Release as of the below — indicated date (s). Date:

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED WITH RESPECT TO ADEA RELEASE
EXHIBIT B 1. You and the Company mutually consent to the resolution by final and binding arbitration of any and all
disputes, controversies, or claims related in any way to your employment and / or relationship with the Company,
including, without limitation, any dispute, controversy or claim of alleged discrimination, harassment, or retaliation
(including, but not limited to, claims based on race, sex, sexual preference, religion, national origin, age, marital or
family status, medical condition, or disability); any dispute, controversy, or claim arising out of or relating to any
agreements between you and the Company, including this Agreement; and any dispute as to the ability to arbitrate a
matter under this Agreement (collectively, “ Claims ”); provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shall require
arbitration of any Claims which, by law, cannot be the subject of a compulsory arbitration agreement, and nothing in
this Agreement shall be interpreted to mean that you are precluded from filing complaints with the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission or the National Labor Relations Board. 2. Any party who is aggrieved will deliver a notice to
the other party setting forth the specific points in dispute within the same statute of limitations period applicable to such
Claims. Any points remaining in dispute twenty (20) days after the giving of such notice may be submitted to arbitration
through JAMS Mediation, Arbitration and ADR Services, in New York, New York, before a single arbitrator appointed
in accordance with the Employment Arbitration Rules and Procedures of JAMS (“ JAMS Rules ) then in effect,
modified only as herein expressly provided. The arbitrator shall be selected in accordance with the JAMS Rules;
provided that the arbitrator shall be an attorney (i) with at least ten (10) years of significant experience and / or (ii) a
former federal or state court judge. After the aforesaid twenty (20) days, either party, upon ten (10) days’ notice to the
other, may so submit the points in dispute to arbitration. The arbitrator may enter a default decision against any party
who fails to participate in the arbitration proceedings. The arbitrator will be empowered to award either party any




remedy, at law or in equity, that the party would otherwise have been entitled to, had the matter been litigated in court;
provided, however, that the authority to award any remedy is subject to whatever limitations, if any, exist in the
applicable law on such remedies. The arbitrator shall issue a decision or award in writing, stating the essential findings
of fact and conclusions or law. Any judgement on or enforcement of any award, including an award providing for
interim or permanent injunctive relief, rendered by the arbitrator may be entered, enforced, or appealed in any court
having jurisdiction thereof. Any arbitration proceedings, decision, or award rendered hereunder, and the validity, effect,
and interpretation of this arbitration provision, shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U. S. C. § 1, et seq. 3.
Each party to any dispute shall pay their own expenses, including attorneys’ fees; provided, however, that the Company
shall pay all reasonable costs, fees, and expenses that you would not otherwise have been subject to paying if the Claim
had been resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction. 4. The parties agree that this Exhibit B has been included to
resolve expeditiously, inexpensively and confidentially any disputes between them, and that this Exhibit B will be
grounds for dismissal of any court action commenced by either party with respect to this Agreement, except as otherwise
provided in Paragraph 1 herein, other than: (i) any action seeking a restraining order or other injunctive or equitable
relief or order in aid of arbitration or to compel arbitration from a court of competent jurisdiction; (ii) any action
seeking interim injunctive or equitable relief from the arbitrator pursuant to JAMS Rules; or (iii) post - arbitration
actions seeking to enforce an arbitration award from a court of competent jurisdiction. IN THE EVENT THAT ANY
COURT DETERMINES THAT THIS ARBITRATION PROCEDURE IS NOT BINDING, OR OTHERWISE
ALLOWS ANY LITIGATION REGARDING A DISPUTE, CLAIM, OR CONTROVERSY COVERED BY THIS
AGREEMENT TO PROCEEED, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY
KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN OR WITH
RESPECT TO SUCH LITIGATION. 5. You have the right to seek the advice of legal counsel of your choosing before
signing this Agreement, and you have been encouraged by the Company to do so. 6. The parties will keep confidential,
and will not disclose to any person, except to counsel, insurers, financial advisors, accountants or auditors for either of
the parties and / or as may be required by law, the existence of any controversy hereunder, the referral of any such
controversy to arbitration of the status or resolution thereof. Accordingly, you and the Company agree that all
proceedings in any arbitration shall be conducted so as to be kept strictly confidential. In that regard, no party shall use,
disclose, or permit the disclosure of any information, evidence, or documents produced by any other party in the
arbitration proceedings or about the existence, contents, or results of the proceedings, except as necessary and
appropriate for the preparation and conduct of the arbitration proceedings, or as may be required by any legal process,
or as required in an action in aid of arbitration, or for enforcement of or appeal from an arbitral award. Before making
any disclosure permitted by the preceding sentence, the party intending to make such disclosure shall give the other
party reasonable written notice of the intended disclosure and afford such other party a reasonable opportunity to
protect its interests (e. g., by application for a protective order and / or to file under seal).



